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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

RAFHA  BXEZBMEN

“Acting in Concert Parties”

[—HITBHAL]

“AGM"

[BREEFRE]

“Articles of Association”

[RAEE]

“associate(s)"”

(B2 A

“Beijing OriginWater”

[ R B KR

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

(EEg]

“Chairman”

£

“Company”, “our Company”
or “Yunnan Water”

[RAB %[ EmREKE]

“connected person(s)”

[BEEAL]

THFAREAFATRE -

Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong, members of the senior management of
the Company

FRAEREEZEXREZNELE BEEREERALASREBREXREEE L

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held on 13 June 2019, or
any adjournment thereof

FRARBR - E-AFAAT=ZARTRREFRAGREENES

el

A

the articles of association of the Company

AARKEZEZAA

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LEMRAME FZA8EE

Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (It RENFERHZRMBRRAF]), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange (stock code: 300070)

IRBRKERERODER AR  RPBERYIHOBROER AR  ERGOEFIELERSFET
(B& 2 X8R : 300070)

the Board of Directors of the Company

KARMNESS

the Chairman of the Board

EEQEE

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (EFE/KKIEERHDBRAF]), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

EFKBERERMDAERAR RABFMAZARGERAT  EHREB AT ER EH R
B 5% : 6839)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LEMRANE TZANRE
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Definitions

“controlling shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
[ 42 A% P& 2R BB LEWHAETZANRE

"

“Corporate Governance Code the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in Appendix 14

to the Listing Rules

[EERSTA FHRAIMEETOAENEEE TR REEE WS

“Director(s)"” the director(s) of our Company

[E=%] KARES

“Domestic Share(s)” the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of
the Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

[RE&ERK] NARBERBIIMEFARNARARATEREAEARK1.00THEBITEBR

"ESG” environmental, social, and governance

[ESG] RIE -HEREA

"ESG Guide” environmental, social and governance guide

[ESGHE 5l | RE e kE®RiES

“Finergy Development” Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (BURKE (K
) BRIEREAELE (BRAE) ), a limited partnership established in the PRC

[ &R A & AMEXR(RZ)RBEREGEEE(BERER)  RPBEXUNBREBEE

“Group” or “our Group” the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time

[A&EHE] AR A RETEAKH B QA

“H Share(s)"” the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of
the Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

[HA% | FEHRMER ETOARRRATFREEARE100THE EHTEBRK

"HK$” Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[&7x] EREEEEET

"HKFRS"” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting Standard Board

[E &M RS R ERVBHRELED  BEEEGHEAREEGHEAZTEQHMNRE

“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

[&#] B BRI TR R
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“IPO"

[BRARAEE

“Listing Date”

[ £ A

“Listing Rules”

[ £ Al

“Model Code”

EESTN

“PPP Project”

[PPPIE H |

“PRC" or “China”

[

"Prospectus”

[FARER]

“Reporting Period”

(¥R &)

“RMB"

[AR¥]

ESEOE

[BHEHE G

“Share(s)"”

[Btn |

Definitions

the initial public offering of the Company’s Shares through the Stock Exchange in May 2015
TE-RAFARAARRAROBBABIAKIE A ARAEE

27 May 2015, being the date on which the H Shares were listed and from which dealings in
the H Shares of the Company commenced on the Stock Exchange

—ZE-hFRRZT+tH  BHRABXAM LT RAKREEN RS
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bk 22 P A8 25 =7 R A

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules

TR ATEHE EMBETAESTETEARARHNIFESTA
the public-private-partnership project
Mt eEAREEEA

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report only, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan

REARANE  EABRERNS  TREEE PEARAMBEMEITHE REE

the prospectus of the Company dated 13 May 2015, issued in relation to the IPO and listing of
H Shares on the Stock Exchange

HRA—Z—AFAAT=RAHERLAHEERHRRBRM LT AR R HARER
the 12-month period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
H-ZE-N\F-A—BRE-ZZ-N\F+A=+—HLETZEAHH

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEAEEEEARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEREMESEGES LAE GO

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
including the H Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)

RARBRATFREEARBEI.OTH L ER  BEHRERNER
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Definitions

“Shareholder(s)”
AR |

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 Py |
“subsidiary(ies)”

[Fff 8 2 & ]

el

“Supervisor(s)”

(B

“Supervisory Committee”

[E=Z8g]

“THB"

[ k]

“Undertaking Shareholders”

[ B AR ]

“YMCI”

ELEETL]

“Yunnan Province Water”

[ % k)

lo/X]

[ %]

* For identification purposes only

* 5

the holder(s) of the Share(s)

B EA A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

ERMEXSMER DA

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EBLTHRAE TZFANRE

supervisor(s) of the Company

RAFKEEE

the supervisory committee of the Company

FiN/NE]

el

)

BR

S

Thailand Baht(s), the lawful currency of Thailand

REVEEEERHK

namely YMCI, Yunnan Province Water and Beijing OriginWater

BNEmBERERE - A KB RIEREKIR

Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.* (EFAMMERREEEBRAF) , a

limited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole shareholder of Yunnan Province
Water, the Company’s controlling shareholder and one of the Undertaking Shareholders

EHERTERREEEERAA  RPBEXINBRETARREREKBEHME—BIR -
BEARAERBREESR - BB AHBHBR

Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (EFEEKBEEKREFRAF), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC

EHAKBEEREARAR R BEEMKINEREEAA

per cent

Bt
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The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights

EZ@MASH NINPHHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1t—-RHLEFE

2018 2017 Percentage
—E-N\F —T—tF Change
RMB’000 RMB’000 2

AR¥T T ARBTFT
Revenue & 6,255,628 5,142,242 21.7%
Gross profit EF 1,498,009 1,304,724 14.8%
Profit before income tax P 45 B¢ Al & A 644,226 702,244 -8.3%
Core business profit Nete D A% % eIl 496,715 414,757 19.7%
EBITDA (tote 2 RAE  HE - HER 1,693,610 1,664,973 1.72%

8 85 31 B 1122

Profit for the year F AR A 496,715 544,000 -8.7%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) f% 3R & £ EBl 8, X (%) 7.16% 8.14% N/A 3@ B
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BRERBI(ARET) 0.333 0.354 -5.9%

Note 1: Core business profit represents profit for the year excluding fair value gains or losses on the
remeasurement of investments accounted for using the equity method and one-off recovery of
other receivables.

Note 2:EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of finance cost — net, income taxation,
depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's audited profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately RMB397.8 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2017: approximately RMB422.8 million).

Basic earnings per share for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB0.333
per share (for the year ended 31 December 2017: basic earnings approximately
RMBO0.354 per share), the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, and the
weighted average number of Shares of approximately of 1,193,213,000 (2017:
1,193,213,000) in issue during the Reporting Period.

The Board recommended the payment of the final dividend of RMBO0.15 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (for the year ended 31
December 2017: RMBO0.13 per ordinary share). The Company did not declare or
pay any interim dividend or special dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The AGM will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, 13 June 2019 at conference
room, 5th Floor, Yunnan Water, 2089 Haiyuan Bei Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming,
Yunnan Province, the PRC. The proposed final dividend is subject to consideration
and approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.

MEEET : RO EBABEEFRBEF R ENTE AR
EARRENAAEENBERE - RMEDN

M2 : BAEKAFER MEH WEREHNAF
AMBRALS BE WEREHEIZAFER
F o

RAREHR  AEELCEXARARNLBR
BREEBESEFHNOABAREIVIEEET(HE
T tE+ A=+ ALEE: HAR
#4222 8E B IL) ©

WEENTREABFIGAAREB0333T (R

“EtFt+-AZt+-BLEE: TR
BRMBARK0ISAT)  HERERE
ST IR A A R AR A R R R
5079 B 5 77 0 004 49 A 19 491,193,213,000
BR(=ZZF—+4 :1,193,213,000/%) g 2 B &
-

EEgRERBEE_ZE-NF+_A=+—
BLEFENRBRSEREBRKRARKIS
THEEZ-—tF+-_A=+—"HLFE:
BREBRARKIZT) - BE-ZT—N\F
TZAZT-HALFE ARAARERHEX
RHE(E A B S SRR B -

BRRBFREEN_ZT-NFEFAT=B(E
Hm) EF R ERETREFZEEAT M
Bty B 2 (208 R 4k 18 2089 5% & R K 5548 & &
ERT-BERABREAEBRRNBRRBF
BELBBRIGTIEE -
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Chairman’s statement
FFEHE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

In 2018, the world economy saw ups and downs including decline in global
investment and the prevailing trade protectionism and unilateralism. Despite
the complicated and severe external environment, China’s economic operation
remained at a reasonable level and continuously presented the trend of
steady progress amidst stability. As the State further intensified emphasis on
environmental protection, the top-level design of ecological civilization has
gradually improved, and major policies for environmental protection sub-industries
have been successively introduced. While environmental protection inspection is
becoming normal, the State emphasized the importance of overall planning and
avoiding “non-discretionary treatment”. In the face of financing difficulties in the
context of deleveraging, it was proposed at the Central Working Conference to
increase the proportion of direct financing to improve the financing environment
for private enterprises. In 2018, the environmental protection industry underwent
test. The Group conducted continuous improvement and exploration, laying a new
foundation for future development.

10 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A " Annual Report 2018 4 [& i &
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The Board thoroughly analysed the domestic and international economic situation
and, following the principle of adaptability and forward-looking, proactively
leveraged on favorable policies to overcome challenges continuously. Centering on
the positioning of “first-rate urban environmental protection integrated services
provider”, the Board led the Group to prudently develop the key regional markets
at home and abroad, comprehensively improved the management level of existing
operating assets, and proactively promoted technology research, development
and innovation and quality and efficiency enhancement for projects. In the midst
of severe external environment and fierce market competition, the Group's
performance remained stable with healthy growth and the management standard

was further improved.

During the Reporting Period, under the leadership of the Board, the Group, in
the face of difficulties, proactively adjusted its asset structure and continuously
improved its project operation management, resulting in the steady and healthy
growth of operating results. During the Reporting Period, the Group recognized
a total annual revenue of approximately RMB6,255.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 21.7% as compared to approximately RMB5,142.2
million of last year. Profit for the year was approximately RMB496.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 8.7% as compared to approximately
RMB544.0 million of last year. Through investments in new construction and
equity acquisition, the Group has owned 208 water treatment projects with a
total treatment volume of approximately 5,627,000 tonnes per day. The Group's
business segment of solid waste treatment, an important focus of strategic
development of the Group, continued rapid development during the year. As of
31 December 2018, the Group owned 20 solid waste treatment projects with
treatment capacity of approximately 3,673,500 tonnes per year.

On the basis of the Group’s good operating results and financial position, and
considering the long-term sustainable development of the Group, the Board
proposes to distribute a final dividend of RMBO0.15 to Shareholders to repay their
long-term support and contribution to the Group. The distribution of final dividend
shall be subject to approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. The final
dividend is expected to be paid on or about 30 July 2019 (Tuesday).

Chairman’s statement
FFEHE

EE@RAOMBRIINEELE - @R
TRTE LR RE - BRICERRAMNLT - TH R
REFERE  FEAEEES —RMEARER
HARBE MEL BERLREAIEHE
BTG 2ERAFTEELEETIEKE -

EEESRMAEAMKIERREER - &
BRI INBREMANOTSEHFR - A&
BExXERTRFEER BEKELE-—FTTE -

RBEHA  AEEAEEFSNREE T LHEN
b EEARRESE BERTEBELRE
KA ReRHEIRRERBIER - AEE

F#&iﬁﬁm,\iﬁéiﬁ@%”i’l/\ﬁﬁ% 255.6
HELT BRE-—FEXHENHAREKS1422
HE LB REN21.7%  FREFNN4I67TE S
T BE—FEERHARESI4088E TR
DHI8.T% o AN G B i 1% A I N AR A U RE
SR BHBKEEIEE208E A5TERE
8 #935%5,627,0000F /B o /£ B {E A5 B B 2%
REFFENERBEZMEEEBIRRE  £F
FEMEERERR  BLE=_F—-N\F+=A
=+—HBit EHEEEEEEEAB 20
B2 IR 38 #H 49 53,673,500 £ o

ERNAEBRFINEEEBEURTBHR -
EEINAKENRMAUSERR EFSH
AR E R AR EFRARE0NST - UM
BRERBYAKENIHMNER - REK
SHRESNNKERORRAFREG LK
PRORHLE - REIRSREMER T &t
A=+R(EHAERN -
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Chairman’s statement
FFEHE

In 2019, the Group will continue to pay great efforts in two principal businesses
of water and solid waste treatment, prudently conduct market development and
project investment, and continue to improve project construction and all stages of
project operation. In addition, the Group will practically adjust and optimize the
income and profit structure and promote comprehensive and extensive reform to
lay a solid foundation for its future development.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to the management and employees of the Group for their loyalty
and diligence, and also to our Shareholders, our Board members, investors and
partners for their long-term support. The Group will continue to create great value
for its Shareholders with excellent performance and contribute to the construction
of a “Beautiful China”.

Yang Tao
Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
27 March 2019

12 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A " Annual Report 2018 4 [& i &

“E-NAF  AKEBEEIT K TE RE
MATER FHEHMHFTHMAE BERE
T TERBRER BRBEELERERIE
DEFHBENECEAMMNBERS  HEL2E
RIERE  REERRNERETREMNE

o

FABRRESS BUKSHFEEER
ERETIMAEDY - KART  URYHE
RRE EEERE REERAEBEN
—ELE  BUMRSE o REESEEN
ERMOZEARTABEAMERS bR
BRE WRREMAR -

s
FE

HE B
—T-NAF=A=++tH



Chief Executive Officer’s Report

E

In 2018, China’s ecological civilization construction was fully promoted and
the ecological civilization was historically included in the Constitution. With the
establishment of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment, the State implemented
various policies and further intensified law enforcement. In addition, environmental
protection supervision has become a normal practice and the role of market in
the allocation of environmental governance resources is increasingly apparent. At
the same time, in light of the de-leveraging in the field of finance, the tightening
of financing has caused pressure to environmental enterprises. The division of
labor in the environmental industry tended to be refined and deep integration
was carried out one after another. In the second half of 2018, policies including
the Action Plan on Pollution Control for Agriculture and Rural Areas*( ( B &
SRR BB 1TE)FTE]) ) was successively promulgated. Rural environmental
governance received attention and has become legal. With the steady growth
of the country, the implementation of the policy of the ease of credit, and the
improvement of the financing environment, the environmental industry will usher
in new opportunities.
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Report
TTRAER RS

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

In 2018, given the liquidity crunch, the Group adopted the strategy of prudent
investment and efficiency improvement, relied on resource advantages in key
areas, and strictly reviewed investment boundary conditions and investment
exit mechanisms. While increasing investment in projects with good short-term
operating efficiency and stable positive cash flow the Group strengthened control
over investment in PPP projects by placing the focus on high-quality projects
and paid close attention to the proportion of operating assets in the PPP project
package and the financial capacity of the local governments.

The Group achieved significant breakthroughs in key regional markets including
Guangdong and Xinjiang. In particular, the Group successively won the bids of 5
PPP projects with operating assets in Guangdong and 1 PPP project for solid waste
treatment in Xinjiang. The implementation of the abovementioned projects will lay
a good foundation for the sustainable development of the Group.

TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group adheres to a technology-driven development model and values the
importance of the role of core technologies for the long-term development of
enterprises. In 2018, the Group successfully promoted the research, development
and design of devices for sludge carbonization treatment, waste pyrolysis
gasification treatment, integrated treatment for villages, hydrolytic acidification
pilot test, integrated treatment of membrane process, integrated treatment of
non-membrane process and MBR tank aeration, and applied the same in a number
of projects, which achieved good results; in 2018, the Group applied for 5 utility
patents and was awarded 1 utility patent and 1 invention patent. Through the
research, development and application of a series of new technologies, the Group
further enhanced the standard of services of core technology output and system

integration, and enhanced market competitiveness and project profitability.

FINANCING

In 2018, in view of the severe situation of tightened financing, the Group
continued to strengthen its cooperation with financial institutions and expanded
its financing size through multiple channels, including successful issuance of
medium-term notes and ultra-short-term financing bonds with a total amount
of RMB2.0 billion; the Group proactively expanded overseas financing channels,
in particular, the Group was granted a loan in an amount of US$17.2 million
to the Group by way of financial guarantee. In reliance of a project currently in
operation in Thailand, the Group further obtained an operating loan in an amount
of THB460.0 million, which effectively solved the overseas funding needs of the
Company. Due to the gradual adjustment of the long-term and short-term debt
structure, the Group matched financing with business development to properly
alleviate its funding problem.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Riding on the resource advantages of projects in various regions, the Group fully
played its financing function in key projects in Shandong, Wuxi, Xinjiang, Harbin,
Fujian, Guangdong, Hong Kong and Thailand, and unswervingly promoted project
loans and operating loans to avoid the risk of excessive financing costs caused by
concentrated financing and single financing channel.

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION

In 2018, the Group accelerated the construction progress of projects under
construction. Being profit-oriented, it focused on the direction of asset structure
alteration, to reduce unnecessary resource occupation and consumption and
improve the efficiency of operational assets, and strictly controlled costs and
construction period. It is expected that operating income will increase significantly
in 2019.

In 2018, relying on its existing operating assets, the Group comprehensively
improved its operation management capabilities and continuously improved
its operational efficiency and cash generating capacity of existing projects.
At the same time, the Group proactively promoted the quality and efficiency
enhancement of projects in operation. With the advancement of quality and
efficiency enhancement, the Group will further expand the follow-up space in the
existing business market and obtain positive economies of scale.

With the development of intelligent water projects, the Group thoroughly
promoted the construction of the operation center management and control
platform, proactively explored the grading operation management model which is
in line with the Group’s project characteristics of “small scale and cross-region”,
and built an operation management model with the Group’s characteristics. On
the other hand, the Group continued to strengthen its own team and talent team
construction, pooled superior resources, and enhanced management output and
technical support capabilities.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND FUTURE
PROSPECT

Going forward in 2019, upholding the positioning of “first-rate urban
environmental protection integrated services provider”, the Group will continue to
pay great effort on two principal businesses of water and solid waste treatment
and perform well in all stages of project investment, construction and operation. It
will continue to adjust and optimize the income and profit structure and promote
comprehensive and intensify reforms to achieve new results, to achieve stable

operation and sustainable development of the Group.
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In terms of new businesses, the Group will continue to implement the regional
management model to consolidate and expand the results of the original
business segments provided that the government’s various stimulus policies
will be implemented as scheduled and the external financing environment of
environmental enterprises will be marginally improved. The off-balance sheet
financing refers to industrial M&A funds and financial leasing will be adopted to
accelerate the cultivation of key businesses including industrial hazardous waste,
medical hazardous waste, and garbage incineration-power generation. Relying on
its advantageous resources in the key regions, the Group will proactively expand
the financing channels, and prudently select and develop high-quality businesses
in the market. In particular, it will strengthen the control over investment in PPP
projects. Besides, the Group will continue to acquire high-quality water and solid
waste treatment operating assets in the PRC and abroad, to further increase
the market share of the Group's business segments, intensify the development
of the overseas Blue Ocean market, and vigorously set its presence in emerging
market segments including soil remediation and improvement based on its existing
technology accumulation and outreach cooperation.

In terms of new technologies, the Group will increase investment in technology
research and development to solve engineering construction problems, improve
operational quality, and maintain core technological competitiveness. It will
promote a number of technical research and development projects and
continuously increase efforts on talent introduction and personnel training to lay a
foundation for the Group’s soft power reserves.

In terms of financing and operations, the Group will continue to strengthen
centralized management of funds and internal fund arrangements, to improve the
Group's capital usage efficiency. The Group will fully tap the financing functions
of projects in each region to solve the funding needs in the regions. At the
same time, project management and operation management will be reinforced to
further enhance the operational efficiency and cash generating capacity of existing
projects, and more investment will be made in projects with good short-term
operating efficiency and stable positive cash flow.

In 2019, the Group will continue to integrate resources and prudently proceed
with development as a urban environmental protection integrated services
provider. It will make scientific investments in water, solid waste treatment and
other segments and provide local governments with urgent one-stop solutions,
with a view to further enhance the Group’s market competitiveness and strive for
the sustainable development of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

With the increasing emphasis on the environmental protection from the Party
and the State, along with the gradual improving top-level design of ecological
civilization in recent years, the environmental protection industry is forming a
new development pattern. In 2018, the inclusion of “ecological civilization” into
the Constitution of the PRC and establishment of the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment *( 4 #& IR #% £B ) and the Ministry of Natural Resources *( B A &
JR &0 ) strengthened the integrated management of ecology and environment.
The environmental protection supervision “review” was officially launched and
supervision was completed at the grassroots level during the year. The long-
term mechanism for environmental protection supervision has become more
standardized. The official release of the Three-Year Action Plan for Ecological
Environment Monitoring Quality Supervision and Inspection* ( (£ BEIRIZEL B S &
EERE =F 17 E]) ) marked government's increasing emphasis on the quality
of environmental monitoring. The Action Plan on Pollution Prevention and Control
Campaign for Agriculture and Rural Areas* (2% 2553 8K B8 ITEH 5 21)
clarified the overall requirements, action objectives, main tasks and safeguard
measures as well as deployment for the pollution governance for agriculture
and rural areas. At the end of the year, the State Council conducted the special
action to solve the problem of payments to enterprises in arrears, which is of
great significance for the improvement of cash flow in the environmental industry,
and it was proposed at the Central Economic Working Conference *( 1 #R 4% 7
T {E & & ) to improve the monetary policy transmission mechanism, resulting in
improved financing environment and stronger confidence of enterprises. In the
new circumstances, the environmental protection segment market has shown
vigorous vitality, and rural environmental protection, hazardous waste treatment,
soil remediation, environmental monitoring and other fields have become popular
aspects for future development.

Under the background of ecological civilization construction and environmental
protection supervision, the operational pressure of the water business industry has
become more prominent. On one hand, under the requirements of enhancement,
reconstruction and standardization of operation, the industry construction and
operation capacity does not match with the high standard operation requirements;
on the other hand, the below-standard water inflow, aging of pipe network and
other problems also restrict the further development of certain enterprises’ water
business segments. However, the water business industry still has demands in
many segments — the industrial wastewater treatment still has a vast market. The
wastewater treatment in villages and towns is also in urgent need to be resolved
under the support of relevant national policies; the municipal pipe network is
the “shortcoming” of the industry which needs to be further improved and
constructed; the treatment of black and odorous water needs to be upgraded
from quantity to quality.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Attributing to the increasingly stringent national policies, solid waste treatment,
an indispensable part of ecological civilization construction, has become one of
the fastest growing areas among China’s environmental industry. In 2018, despite
the overall downturn in the environmental industry, the solid waste treatment
markets including garbage incineration power generation and hazardous waste
treatment developed at a strong pace. In particular, hazardous waste treatment
is in a growing period, featured by high profitability and strong demands. The
production capacity will develop at a faster pace in the future.

In terms of soil remediation, the promulgation of the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Soil Pollution Prevention and Control* ( ( ff % A R £ 1 B 1 355 3
B 58 7% ) ) filled a gap in respect of laws on soil pollution prevention and control
in China and also brought new development opportunities for the soil pollution
prevention and control market. At present, the soil remediation industry is still
in its infancy, and the industry’s output value accounts for a small proportion of
the total output value of the environmental protection industry. There is still a
large gap as compared with developed countries. As the national macro-control
and industrial policies pay more attention to soil remediation, the market demand
will gradually increase and the scale of the industry will usher in a huge room for
improvement.

As a key part in the industry chain of environmental governance, environmental
monitoring will become the internal driving force for the transformation and
upgrading of the environmental industry. Environmental enterprises that master the
intelligent environmental protection data and technologies will enjoy advantages
in the future development of environmental protection intelligence and realize the
transition from equipment suppliers to system integrators and platform operators.

2018 is the 40th anniversary of reform and opening up of the PRC with its
ecological civilization construction has entered into a new era of development.
Meanwhile, the concept of “Lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable
assets”* (#/K B IWWFZ € LR IL) has gradually been in place, and the country’s
determination in the treatment of the ecological environment is unprecedentedly
strong. With the implementation of various policies, the market potential for
environmental treatment will be continuously released, which will generate more

opportunities and greater potential for development in the environmental industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

In 2018, under the backdrop of “de-leverage”*( &1&#2) in the macro environment
and strict supervision of the environmental protection industry, opportunities
and challenges coexisted in the environmental protection industry. The Group
paid close attention to the changes in the external business environment, timely
adjusted the asset structure, and proactively expanded domestic and international
key regional markets. Through continuous improvement of the operational
management of projects, the Group overcame many difficulties and achieved
certain operational benefits and stable development.

The Group strengthened project collaboration and business synergy by actively
promoting a new model of regional management. On one hand, the Group
continued to expand the market size of the water business segment through
proactive participation in market bidding, investment in new construction and
equity acquisition; on the other hand, the solid waste treatment business segment,
as the cultivation focus in the Group’s business strategy, also realized rapid
growth of scale in 2018, laying a solid foundation for future development. In the
future, the Group will pay close attention to the impacts on its business operation
of the policies and regulations as well as the change in interest rate, and focus
on improving its operational management level and quality. Meanwhile, on the
basis of consolidating and expanding the scale of water business, the Group will
accelerate the development of solid waste treatment business, and proactively
engage in emerging environmental protection fields by virtue of its existing
technology accumulation and outreach cooperation, while continually consolidating
and developing the Group’s market competitiveness among the industry.

In terms of financing, against the backdrop of credit scale getting tighter and
capital cost rising gradually in 2018, the Group made over arrangements for
financing. First, it continued to deepen cooperation with financial institutions and
expand the scale of financing through multiple channels. Second, it proactively
expanded the overseas financing channels. Third, based on the project resource
advantages of different projects, the Group give full play to the financing
function of key projects to enrich the capital needs of the Group. In the future,
in the external environment where the financing environment recovers and on
the premise of control of liability ratio, the Group will continue to strengthen
centralized management of funds and internal and external funds accommodation,
and solve fund demand by making full use of the financing functions of the
regions.

In terms of investment, the Group will uphold the efficiency principle for external
investment projects and equity mergers and acquisitions, and will give priority
to the operational projects which are supported by stable cash flow and with
reasonable gain; for operation management, the Group will speed up the pace
of quality improvement and efficiency enhancement for the existing operating
projects to reduce operating costs and relevant expenses, while continuously
improving the operational efficiency of existing projects, to increase the positive
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Management Discussion and Analysis

cash flow of the Group's operating activities. Meanwhile, the Group will strictly
control the financial costs, strengthen management of funds to further improve
the efficiency of the use of internal funds of the Group, and reinforce overall
arrangement to prevent liquidity risks. In 2019, with the implementation of
government'’s various stimulus policies on schedule and the marginal improvement
of the external financing environment of environmental protection enterprises,
the Group will accelerate the cultivation of industrial hazardous waste, medical
hazardous waste, and garbage incineration while consolidating and expanding
its existing businesses, and proactively engage in emerging fields including soil
remediation and improvement and smart environmental protection by leveraging
on its existing technology accumulation and outreach cooperation.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to adhere to the development goal of
“based in Yunnan, covering the country and going global, striving to be a leading
integrated service provider of municipal environment” * (37 @ EF  EEZE « E[A
BIR - BRRK BB VB3R IEAR S AR 7% ), and to seize more market opportunities
in the environmental protection industry. Meanwhile, by taking advantage of new
environmental protection policies, the Group will further enhance its technological
capabilities, innovation capabilities, investment and financing capabilities, core
competitiveness and social influence, thereby continuously creating greater value for
shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in China. The Group mainly adopts the BOT
("Build-Operate-Transfer”), BOO (“Build-Own-Operate”), TOT (“Transfer-
Operate-Transfer”), TOO (“Transfer-Own-Operate”), BT (“Build and
Transfer”), EPC (“Engineering-Procurement-Construction”), ROT (Rehabilitate-
Operate-Transfer), O&M (”Operation and Maintenance”) and licensed operation
models to provide customized and integrated turnkey solutions for water supply,
wastewater treatment and solid waste treatment as well as system integration
services of core technologies to customers. The Group's businesses are carried
out in China and the Southeast Asian countries, the Group’s principal businesses
comprise five major segments, namely, wastewater treatment, water supply, solid
waste treatment, construction and sales of equipment and others.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s water related projects (including the
following wastewater treatment projects, water supply projects and all water
related projects under other business segments) had the total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 5,627,000 tonnes, representing an increase of
approximately 19.4% as compared to the total daily treatment capacity of
4,712,700 tonnes as at 31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group’s solid waste treatment related projects (including the following solid waste
treatment projects and all solid waste treatment related projects under other
business segments) had the total annual treatment capacity of approximately
3,673,500 tonnes, representing an increase of approximately 66.1% as compared
to the total annual capacity of 2,211,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2017.
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Meanwhile, the Group has been closely following the policies introduced by the
Chinese government, and actively capturing the market opportunities to expand its
footage in the municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects. During
the Reporting Period, the Group had obtained 12 main relevant projects including
“urban water comprehensive treatment works” in Qinyang City, Henan Province,
“construction of wastewater treatment facilities” in the entire Xuwen County,
Zhanjiang City, Guangdong Province, “urban water transformation and upgrading
works” in Wuzhi County, Jiaozuo City, Henan Province, “the integration of water
supply and drainage” in Shuangcheng District, Harbin City, Heilongjiang Province,
“the wastewater treatment system” in Xianmei Area, Rongcheng District, Jieyang
City, Guangdong Province, “the integrated treatment of solid wastes” for the
Venous Industrial Park in Ganquanpu Economic Development Zone in Urumgqi
and etc., The total investment amount of the abovementioned 12 projects was
approximately RMB9 billion with business involving wastewater treatment, the
integration of water supply and solid waste treatment and etc., among which
most of the projects are carried out by way of service concession arrangement
(eg. BOT model). As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 26 projects in relation

to the municipal environment comprehensive treatment under construction.

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 115 concession wastewater
treatment projects under construction and in operation, including 7 BOO projects,
68 BOT projects, 2 TOO projects, 20 TOT projects, 1 ROT project and 17 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects, with total daily treatment capacity
of approximately 3,027,200 tonnes, representing an addition of 2 BOO projects,
2 BOT projects, 6 TOT projects, 1 ROT project and 7 municipal environment
comprehensive treatment projects year-on-year, and an increase in the total daily
wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 508,200 tonnes or a growth rate
of approximately 20.2% as compared with the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, 83 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 2,352,000 tonnes had commenced commercial
operation, representing an addition of 6 TOT projects year-on-year which
commenced commercial operation and an increase in total daily treatment capacity
of approximately 168,000 tonnes compared with the year ended 31 December
2017. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective wastewater treatment
utilization rate was approximately 75.51%, and the average unit charge of
wastewater treatment was approximately RMB1.35 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2018, 32 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 675,200 tonnes (including 17 municipal environment
comprehensive treatment projects with total daily treatment capacity of
approximately 294,700 tonnes) had not commenced commercial operation,
representing an addition of 2 BOT projects, 2 BOO project, 1 ROT project and 7
municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects and an increase in total
daily treatment capacity of approximately 340,200 tonnes as compared with 31
December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Water Supply Projects

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 62 concession water supply
projects with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 2,221,000 tonnes
under construction or in operation, including 15 BOO projects, 31 BOT projects,
11 TOT projects and 5 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects,
representing an addition of 7 BOT projects, 2 BOO projects and 3 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects year-on-year, and an increase in
total daily capacity of approximately 354,000 tonnes compared with 31 December
2017, representing a growth rate of approximately 19%.

As at 31 December 2018, 32 concession projects with total daily capacity
of approximately 1,285,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective water supply utilization rate
was approximately 70.18%, and the average unit charge of water supply was
approximately RMB2.39 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2018, 30 concession projects with total daily capacity
of approximately 936,000 tonnes had not commenced commercial operation
(including 5 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects with
total daily treatment capacity of approximately 332,000 tonnes), representing
an addition of 7 BOT projects, 2 BOO projects and 3 municipal environment
comprehensive treatment projects year-on-year and an increase in total daily
capacity of approximately 354,000 tonnes.

Solid Waste Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 19 solid waste treatment projects with
total annual treatment capacity of 3,527,500 tonnes, 8 of which with an annual
treatment capacity of 1,168,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
and 11 of them with an annual treatment capacity of 2,359,500 tonnes was
under construction (including 4 municipal environment comprehensive treatment
projects with total annual treatment capacity of approximately 1,243,000 tonnes).
As compared to 31 December 2017, 7 additional solid waste treatment projects
were under construction and the total annual treatment capacity increased by
1,480,500 tonnes. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective solid waste
treatment utilization rate was approximately 87.6%.

Construction and Sales of Equipment

The Group’s construction and sales of equipment segment comprises BT projects,
EPC projects and sales of equipment. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a
total of 11 BT projects, which were either under construction and/or completed,
among which income of 10 BT projects were recognised during the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 10 EPC projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

The Group engages in the production, sales and installation of equipment for
wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment and other infrastructure
facilities. The major category of water related equipment in the Group's
production is membrane. Most of the membrane products are produced by the
own plant of the Group.

Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M projects for
wastewater treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment facilities owned
by third parties as well as provision of technical and consultancy services in
relation to environmental protection. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
32 O&M projects, including 30 wastewater treatment projects with total daily
treatment capacity of approximately 373,800 tonnes (including the capacity of
wastewater treatment projects adopting O&M model within municipal environment
comprehensive treatment projects), 1 water supply project with daily capacity
of approximately 5,000 tonnes and 1 solid waste treatment project with annual
capacity of approximately 146,000 tonnes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB6,255.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 21.7% compared
with the year ended 31 December 2017. During the Reporting Period, the Group
realized core business profit of approximately RMB496.7 million, representing an
increase of approximately 19.7% as compared with the year ended 31 December
2017. Core business profit represents profit for the year excluding fair value gains
or losses on the remeasurement of investments accounted for using the equity
method and one-off recovery of other receivables. During the Reporting Period,
the Group realized a net profit of approximately RMB496.7 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 8.7% compared with the year ended 31 December
2017. Profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB397.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately 5.9%
as compared with 31 December 2017. Earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately RMB0.333.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased from approximately RMB5,142.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB6,255.6 million for the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 21.7%.

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from wastewater
treatment tremendously increased from approximately RMB1,683.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB3,295.0 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from water supply decreased by approximately 1.9%
from approximately RMB1,194.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately RMB1,171.8 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from solid
waste treatment increased by approximately 30.6% from RMB573.5 million for
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Management Discussion and Analysis

the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB749.0 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from construction and sales of equipment decreased by
approximately 17.7% from approximately RMB1,175.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB967.9 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from other business decreased from approximately RMB515.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB71.9 million for the
Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the wastewater treatment segment was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in construction revenue generated by the large-
scale construction investments of certain municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects during the Reporting Period; (ii) certain wastewater projects
acquired and recorded less than 12 months’ revenue in 2017, realized full year
revenue during the Reporting Period; and (iii) certain wastewater treatment
projects newly acquired by the Group in 2018 which generated operating revenue
during the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the water supply segment was mainly attributable
to (i) a decrease in construction revenue due to several main water supply projects
were nearly completed during the Reporting Period; and (ii) the increase in
operating revenue is less than the decrease in construction revenue.

The increase in revenue from the solid waste treatment segment was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in construction revenue generated by certain solid
waste treatment projects under construction; (ii) certain solid waste projects
which acquired at the second half of 2017 recorded a full year revenue during
the Reporting Period; and (iii) existing solid waste treatment projects recorded an
increase in revenue which credit to the successful market exploration.

The decrease in revenue from the construction and sales of equipment segment
was mainly attributable to (i) the completion of the exiting BT projects and the
decrease amount of new BT projects; and (ii) the decrease of the construction and
equipment sales of EPC projects during the Reporting Period.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB4,757.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 24.0% as
compared with approximately RMB3,837.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in construction
costs due to the constructions of several ongoing and newly-gained wastewater
treatment and solid waste treatment projects; (ii) certain solid waste treatment
projects acquired in 2017 achieved full year operation during the Reporting
Period; (iii) certain wastewater and water supply projects acquired in 2018 had
commenced commercial operation, resulting in an increase in operating costs;
and (iv) the operating expansion of the existing water supply and wastewater
treatment projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

Gross Profit Margin

During the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
23.9%, representing a slight decrease of approximately 1.5% as compared with
approximately 25.4% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Other Income

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income of approximately
RMB144.7 million as compared with approximately RMB309.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017, representing a decrease of approximately 53.3%.
The decrease in other income during the Reporting Period was mainly due to (i)
the recovery of certain other receivables in the first half of 2017, which return
to normal during the Reporting Period; and (ii) a decrease in government grants
during the Reporting Period.

Other Gains — net

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net gains of approximately
RMB10.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 81.7% as compared
with approximately RMB57.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
decrease was mainly due to fair value gains on the remeasurement of a joint
venture and an associate for the year ended 31 December 2017, whereas there
was no such remeasurement during the Reporting Period.

Selling Expenses

During the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB43.9 million, representing an increase of approximately 11.1% from
approximately RMB39.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase
was due to selling development of water supply and waste treatment businesses

which led to an increase in employee benefit expenses and vehicle costs.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by RMB36.4 million from
approximately RMB431.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately RMB395.1 million for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease
of approximately 8.4%. The decrease in administrative expenses was primarily
due to a decrease in legal and professional fees which was led by slowing-down
business acquisitions during the Reporting Period.

Finance Costs — net

Net finance costs increased by RMB57.0 million from approximately RMB521.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB578.5 million
for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 10.9%. The
increase in net finance costs was primarily due to an increase of bank borrowings
and the issuance of debt instruments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for the Reporting Period
was approximately 4.86% per annum, representing an increase compared with
approximately 4.27% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2017 due to
the increase in market interest rate and diversified financing channels.

Profit Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded profit before income tax of
approximately RMB644.2 million for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease
of approximately 8.3% as compared with approximately RMB702.2 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased by RMB10.7 million from approximately RMB158.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB147.5 million
for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 6.8%. The
weighted average effective tax rate was approximately 20.1% (2017: 20.1%).

Profit and Net Profit Margin for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the Reporting Period decreased by
RMB47.3 million from approximately RMB544.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately RMB496.7 million for the Reporting Period,
representing a decrease of approximately 8.7%. Net profit margin decreased from
approximately 10.6% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
7.9% for the Reporting Period.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group's receivables under service concession arrangements decreased by
RMB888.0 million from approximately RMB5,111.1 million as at 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB4,223.1 million as at 31 December 2018, representing
a decrease of approximately 17.4%. Such decrease was primarily due to
the Group's adoption of HK(IFRIC) 12 (Amendments) “Service concession
arrangements”, which led to reclassifying certain receivables under service
concession arrangements as contract assets during the Reporting Period.

Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group’s trade and other receivables and prepayments increased by
RMB1,211.0 million from approximately RMB6,205.0 million as at 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB7,416.0 million as at 31 December 2018, representing
an increase of approximately 19.5%. Such increase was primarily due to a
continuous operation of EPC construction and sales of equipment business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s total cash balance decreased by RMB682.5 million from approximately
RMB2,896.9 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB2,214.4 million
as at 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of approximately 23.6%. Such
decrease was primarily due to an increase of the payment of construction cost
of existing and newly acquired municipal environment comprehensive treatment

projects.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group’s trade and other payables increased by RMB1,746.4 million from
approximately RMB4,528.7 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB6,275.1 million as at 31 December 2018, representing an increase of
approximately 38.6%. Such increase was primarily due to an increase in
construction services payable due to the continuous investments in municipal

environment comprehensive treatment projects under construction.

Borrowings and Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB16,934.5 million of which approximately RMB5,232.2 million secured by the
Group's shares of subsidiaries, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
land use right, rights of charges from concession projects of water supply and
wastewater treatment and BT projects of approximately RMB5,278.6 million.

Capital Commitments

The Group's capital commitments increased by RMB2,225.8 million from
approximately RMB7,949.7 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB10,175.5 million as at 31 December 2018, representing an increase of
approximately 28.0%. Such increase was primarily due to the Group's increased
investments in several municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total capital)
increased from approximately 61.96% as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
67.98% as at 31 December 2018. The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to
the increased scale of debt financing during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 6,207 employees (31 December
2017: 5,302). During the Reporting Period, staff cost was approximately RMB549.4
million (for the year ended 31 December 2017: RMB411.4 million). The Group will
strive to ensure that the remuneration level of employees is in line with industry
practices and prevailing market conditions, and remunerations of employees will
be determined based on their performance. The remuneration package provided to
employees also includes basic and floating salaries, discretionary bonus and staff
benefits. The Group also provides external and internal training programs for its

employees.

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes causing any material
impact on its normal business operations.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most of the transactions being
settled in RMB, which is the functional currency of most of the group entities.
The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises from the recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through financing activities denominated in the

relevant foreign currencies.

The group entities are exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies other
than their functional currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars (“US$"),
Euro (“EUR") and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional
Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit its exposure to foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring and minimizing its net foreign currency position. Management
considers the fluctuations in exchange rates between the functional currencies of
respective group entities and Non-functional Currencies in which the group entities
conducts business will not have significant effect on the Group's financial position
and results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMBO0.15 per share (tax
included) for the year ended 31 December 2018. The proposed distribution of
final dividend by the Company is subject to approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Upon approval, the final dividend will be paid on or before
Tuesday, 30 July 2019.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

30

On 10 December 2018, the Company together with Yunnan Construction and
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. were formally awarded the PPP project
in relation to the rural domestic wastewater treatment facilities in Yanliang
District, which is granted by Yanliang County Water Authority* ( %R &/K#%/3 )
authorized by the People’s Government of Yanliang District, Xi‘an City, Shaanxi
Province, the PRC by way of public tender. The total estimated investment of
the Project amounted to approximately RMB385,973,700.

On 3 December 2018, the Company together with Guangzhou Engineering
Contractor Group Co., Ltd.* (EM L2 & B £ ®E AR A7) and Zhongdu
(&P TA2 5T EBR A A]) were formally awarded
the PPP project in relation to construction of wastewater treatment facilities

Engineering Design Co., Ltd.*

in the entire Luoding City, which was granted by Environmental Protection
ERAFETTIREFRER), the
PRC by way of public tender. The total estimated investment of the Project
amounted to approximately RMB732,882,600.

Bureau of Luoding City, Guangdong Province*(

On 21 November 2018, the Company entered into joint venture agreements
with Maoming Jianjiang River Basin Water Conservancy and Hydropower
Construction and Installation Engineering Co., Ltd.* (%4 ™ 21 R Sk MK E
BELRKETIEABMR AT ) and Guangzhou Environmental Protection Engineering
Co., Ltd.* (F)Ilmiaw%zﬁél%“‘“ ARARA
of joint venture company | and joint venture company Il in Xinyi City, Maoming

) in relation to establishment

City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, respectively. The total investment in joint
venture company |: Xinyi City Yunshui Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.*
(EEMZ/KRIRABRAE]) was RMB168,750,000 and the total investment in
joint venture company II: Xinyi City Yunshui Water Co., Ltd.* ({5 B Z /KK
BMRAF]) was RMB192,890,000.

On 2 November 2018, the Company together with Guangzhou Engineering
(BEMIRERBEBERAA)

awarded the PPP project in relation to the rural domestic wastewater

Contractor Group Co., Ltd.* were formally
treatment facilities in three towns including Yamen town, which is granted
by Agriculture and Forestry Bureau of Xinhui District, Jiangmen City,
Guangdong Province* (BER &AL M & B M/E), the PRC by way of
public tender. The total estimated investment of the Project amounted to
approximately RMB149,000,000.

On 18 October 2018, the Company and Xinjiang Derun Economic
Construction and Development Co., Ltd.* (TIEE B EEZRERBER A
7] ) entered into the shareholders’ agreement in relation to establishment
of Xinjiang Yunrun Recycling Economy Co., Ltd.* (T8 EHBERLEBEEFR A
Al ) as a joint venture company in Ganquanpu Economic Development Zone
in Urumgi City, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, the PRC with a total
investment amount of RMB132,917,600.
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On 12 October 2018, the Company, Funan Huai'an Water Co., Ltd.* ( &
S F/KIEABR2A A ), Yunnan Railway General Corporation* ( EEE & #5542
A &) ) and Fuyang Urban and Rural Planning and Design Institute* ( & 5 ™
5 48 38 B 2% 5H AT FT BT ) entered into a joint venture agreement in relation to
establishment of Funan Yunshui Urban and Rural Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Ltd.* ( B ZE/KMAIREEI L BR A A ) as a joint venture
company in Funan County, Fuyang City, Anhui Province, the PRC with a

total investment amount of RMB180,000,000.

On 27 September 2018, the Company together with Yunnan Railway
General Corporation* (& g 4 # B # 2 7)) and Fuyang Urban and Rural
Planning and Design Institute* ( &[5 1 % 48 8 8] 3% 51 4 FT Bt ) were formally
awarded the PPP project in relation to the domestic wastewater treatment
for the government locations of townships and towns in Funan County,
which is granted by Funan County Housing and Urban-Rural Construction
Bureau* (B m % £ B A 3 # & & B ) by way of public tender and is
authorized by the People’s Government of Fuyang City ( £ [ A R BT ),
Anhui Province, the PRC. The total estimated investment amount of the
Project is approximately RMB929,223,400.

On 19 September 2018, the PPP project in relation to the whole package
of water purification facilities of Xinyi City, which is granted by Xinyi City
Housing and Urban-Rural Construction Bureau* ({Z & 1 {E &= M 3 48 17 2l 12
#& ) of Guangdong Province, the PRC, was been formally awarded to the
Company together with Maoming Jianjiang River Basin Water Conservancy
and Hydropower Construction and Installation Engineering Co., Ltd.* ( % %
METRIB/KAKERELZE TEBMR AR ) and Guangzhou Environmental
Protection Engineering Co., Ltd.* (BN MIRIBERELREZFRBRA

The total estimated investment amount of the Project is appro><|mate|y

RMB1,053,690,000.

On 6 September 2018, the Company and Guangzhou Engineering
Contractor Group Co., Ltd.* (BEMITRLEABEBMER AR )
joint venture agreement in relation to the establishment of Jiexi Yunshuiging
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.* (#8FEZZ/KBERIREBR A F) as a joint
venture company in Jiexi County, Jieyang City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC with a total investment amount of RMB176,000,000.

entered into a

On 16 August 2018, the PPP project in relation to the integrated treatment
of solid wastes for the Venous Industrial Park in Ganquanpu Economic
Development Zone in Urumgqi, which is granted by Management Center
for Construction and Development of Service Industries of Ganquanpu
Industrial Zone in Urumgi by way of public tender and is authorized by the
People’s Government of Urumgi City, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region
(IR asESBAEM ARBA), the PRC, was formally awarded to
the Company. The total estimated construction investment amount of the
Project is approximately RMB398,529,000.
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On 24 July 2018, the PPP project in relation to the whole package of
domestic wastewater treatment facilities in Jiexi County, which is granted
by Jieyang City Jiexi County Housing and Urban-Rural Construction Bureau*
(IBFEMIEMZREE MM ERE ) by way of public tender and is authorized
by the People’s Government of Jieyang City, Guangdong Province ( & 3R &
B ™ ARBUT), the PRC, was formally awarded to the Company together
with Guangzhou Engineering Contractor Group Co., Ltd.* ( & /N T 2 48 &
B & B BB A Al). The total estimated investment amount of the Project is
approximately RMB726,709,300.

On 12 June 2018, the Company, Wuzhi County Investment Group Co.,
Ltd.* (RBBRIREEEAERAF]) and YCIH No.5 Construction Co., Ltd.* (&
FREEFEREKZAR QT ) entered into a joint venture agreement in relation
to establishment of Wuzhi Yunshui Ecological Development Co., Ltd.*
(R EKEEERER A ) as a joint venture company in Wuzhi County,
Jiaozuo City, Henan Province, the PRC with a total investment amount of
RMB260,997,600.

On 25 May 2018, the PPP project in relation to the wastewater treatment
system construction project in Xianmei Area, Rongcheng District, Jieyang
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, which is granted by Jieyang City
Rongcheng District Construction Bureau* (18 B5 T # 3 [& & &% /@) by way
of public tender and is authorized by the People’s Government of Jieyang
City, Guangdong Province ([ E R &A B M AR BT ), was formally awarded
to the Company together with Guangzhou Engineering Contractor Group
Co., Ltd.* (BEM IR EBEBEABR A A ) and Anhui Urban Construction
Design Institute Corp., Ltd.* (Z R A W ERET A RBRBRHDBER 2 ).
The total estimated investment amount of the Project is approximately
RMB287,892,900.

On 4 May 2018, the Company, Guangdong Yixin Great Wall Construction
Group Co., Ltd* (B R — ST R W Z % % B B R 2 7@ ) and Zhongdu
Engineering Design Co., Ltd.* (1 & T 72 &% 5 A R 2 7@) entered into a
joint venture agreement in relation to establishment of Xuwen Yunshui
Environmental Protection Management Co., Ltd.* (& B % & /K R R &
A B A 7l)as ajoint venture company in Xuwen County, Zhanjiang
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC with a total investment amount of

RMB380,000,000.
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On 3 May 2018, the PPP project in relation to the integration of water
supply and drainage in Shuangcheng District, Harbin City, Heilongjiang
Province, the PRC, which is granted by Harbin Shuangcheng Water Supply
and Drainage Group Co., Ltd.* (%5 BB T % i [& % #k K &£ @ 2 7)) by
way of public tender and is authorized by the People’s Government of
Harbin City, Heilongjiang Province ( & )T & M ME T A RENAT), has been
formally awarded to the Company together with Heilongjiang Shuangxing
Municipal Engineering Co., Ltd.* (B ETIE B MK TR BER EE 2 A).
The total estimated investment amount of the Project is approximately
RMB1,260,669,800.

On 4 April 2018, the PPP project in relation to Wuzhi County urban water
transformation and upgrading works in Wuzhi County, Jiaozuo City, Henan
Province, the PRC, which is granted by Wuzhi County Water Resources
Bureau* ( & BF & 7K | /5 ) by way of public tender and is authorized by the
People’s Government of Wuzhi County (B B 8 A R I fF ), was formally
awarded to the Company together with YCIH No.5 Construction Co., Ltd.*
(EEBEEFERERER AT ). The total estimated investment amount of the
Project is approximately RMB1,103,097,800.

On 21 March 2018, the Company together with Guangdong Yixin Great
Wall Construction Group Co., Ltd* (ER —H EWBELEBER A 7))
and Zhongdu Engineering Design Co., Ltd.* (A #f T R &R st B R A &)
were formally awarded the PPP project in relation to the construction of
wastewater treatment facilities in the entire Xu Wen County in Zhanjiang
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC through public tender by the Housing
and Urban-Rural Development Bureau of Xu Wen County* ( & B % (&
B A sk 48 & | /@) authorized by the People’s Government of Xu Wen
County, Zhanjiang City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The total estimated
investment amount of the project is approximately RMB1,249,740,000.

On 13 February 2018, Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement with Mr. Wang Zhi in relation to acquisition of the 35% equity
interests in Future International Group Co., Limited at a consideration of
RMB200,000,000.

On 24 January 2018, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement
with Qinyang Qinbei Construction Investment Co., Ltd.* (30 & ™ b 4t
# R & E A B A 7)("Qinbei Construction Investment”) and YCIH
No.5 Construction Co., Ltd.* (EmEERERLE R BMR X F) ("YCIH No.5
Construction”) in relation to the establishment of Qinyang Yunhuai Water
Co., Ltd. Ltd.* (USTEEKE AR AR ) (“Qinyang Yunhuai Water”) as
a joint venture company in Qinyang, Henan Province, the PRC, with a total
investment amount of RMB442,003,000.
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On 11 January 2018, the Company together with YCIH No.5 Construction
were formally awarded a PPP project in relation to Qinyang urban water
comprehensive treatment works in Qinyang City, Henan Province, the PRC
through public tender by Qinyang Housing and Urban-Rural Development
OLEBE T ERE A ZE R
of Qinyang City. The total estimated investment amount of the Project is
approximately RMB1,767,973,000.

Bureau* ) authorized by the People’s Government

For details of the abovementioned significant investments and acquisitions,

please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 December 2018,
3 December 2018, 21 November 2018, 2 November 2018, 18 October 2018, 12
October 2018, 27 September 2018, 19 September 2018, 6 September 2018, 16
August 2018, 24 July 2018, 12 June 2018, 25 May 2018, 4 May 2018, 3 May
2018, 4 April 2018, 21 March 2018, 13 February 2018, 24 January 2018, and 11
January 2018, respectively.

Subsequent Events:

34

On 29 March 2019, the Board received a resignation letter from Mr. Feng
Zhuangzhi stating that due to his other work commitments, Mr. Feng
Zhuangzhi resigned as a non-executive Director of the second session of the
Board, with effective upon the conclusion of the AGM. In the meantime,
the Board proposed to nominate Mr. Chen Yong to be the non-executive
Director candidate of the second session of the Board.

On 8 March 2019, Qinyang Yunhuai Water has received the Notice on
Alteration of Qinyang Urban Water System Comprehensive Treatment
Works PPP Project* (K BRI MK B KRG R TIEPPPIE R &

) 3 A ) ) issued by Qinyang Housing and Urban-Rural Development
Bureau* (b 5 1 5 A I 40 22 5%

PPP project in relation to Qinyang urban water comprehensive treatment

) that the cooperation content of the

works in Qinyang City was reduced from eight sub-projects to three
sub-projects due to the adjustment to the implementation plan of the
project. The total budget investment amount of the project was then
reduced from RMB1,767,973,000 to RMB737,847,500 and the registered
capital of Qinyang Yunhuai Water was adjusted from RMB442,003,000
to RMB184,467,500 accordingly. The Company, Qinbei Construction and
YCIH No.5 Construction entered into the Supplemental Agreement afresh
according to the Notices, pursuant to which, the parties agreed to amend
their respective amount of capital contribution in accordance with their
respective shareholdings as stipulated in the Joint Venture Agreement based
on the adjusted total investment amount and registered capital.
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On 29 January 2019, the Company, Guangzhou Engineering Contractor
Group Co., Ltd.* (EMIi2BABEE AR AAF]) and Zhongdu Engineering
Design Co., Ltd.* (#f # I 2 =% 5 B BR 2 &) entered into the joint
venture agreement in relation to establishment of Luoding City Yunshui
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.* (& E M ZE /KRR B MR A A ) as a joint
venture company in Luoding (a county-level city), Yunfu City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC with a total investment amount of RMB219,864,800.

On 25 January 2019, the Company entered into an investment agreement
with Waytop Investment Group Limited (JE 5 4% & &£ B & R 2 7 ), Xinde
Investment Limited ( £ 1= & & & BR 2 &), Mr. Wang Xinyan, Mr. Chenjian
and Fujian Dongfei Environment Group Co., Ltd* ({8 2 R RIR EEE H
[R 722 7] ), pursuant to which (i) the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire the 20% equity interests in Fujian Dongfei Environment Group Co.,
Ltd* (2R MIRFEEE AR A R)) at a consideration of RMB120,000,000;
and (ii) the Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 20% equity
interests in Fujian Dongfei Environment Group Co., Ltd* ({82 ERIRKEE
BB A 7A]) at a consideration of RMB200,000,000. On 8 February 2019, the
parties to the investment agreement entered into a supplemental agreement
to the effect that instead of the Chairman, the General Manager will be
the legal representative who, subject to the approval of the Chairman, will
be responsible for attending to the external affairs of the target company
and representing the target company in execution of commercial and other
corporate documents.

On 31 December 2018, Finergy Development, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity Investment Center
(Limited Partnership)*( B &8 ERAKREREF L (BRAE) ) (“Xinzhen
Tianying”) entered into a share transfer agreement, pursuant to which
Finergy Development has agreed to dispose of and Xinzhen Tianying has
agreed to purchase the 124,754,169 domestic shares of the Company,
representing approximately 10.4553% of the issued shares of the Company
(the “Transfer”). As at 23 January 2019, the Transfer had been completed.
After the completion, Finergy Development directly holds 13,125,831 domestic
shares of the Company, representing approximately 1.1000% of the issued
shares of the Company, and ceases to be a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Xinzhen Tianying directly holds 124,754,169 domestic shares of the
Company, representing approximately 10.4553% of the issued shares of the
Company, and becomes a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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On 4 January 2019, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the Yunnan Provincial People’s Government* (& AR
BINBRBEEEEEERZES) (the “Yunnan SASAC”) transferred 10%
of the entire equity interests in YMCI directly held by it (being 5.62%
equity interests in YMCI directly held by the Yunnan SASAC with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB232,832,900) to the Yunnan Provincial
Department of Finance for free. The Equity Interests are held by the Yunnan
Provincial Department of Finance on behalf of the Yunnan Provincial
People’s Government and are used exclusively to fortify the social security
funds. After the transfer, the Yunnan SASAC directly holds 2,095,495,776
shares of YMCI, representing 50.59% of the total share capital of YMCI;
Yunnan Provincial Department of Finance holds 232,832,864 shares of
YMCI, representing 5.62% of the total share capital of YMCI. As at 4
January 2019, the registration of equity changes of the Transfer has been
completed. There were no changes to the controlling shareholder and de
facto controller of the Company.

On 2 January 2019, the Company together with YCIH No.1 Water Resources
and Hydropower Construction Co., Ltd.* (EFEERE —KFI/KEZR
R~ 7)) were formally awarded the PPP project in relation to the phase
Il drainage reconstruction and expansion project in Hetian City, which is
granted by Bureau of Housing and Urban Rural Construction of Hetian City,
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region* (¥758# &/ B /A= 1 H M (5 M4
% 3), the PRC by way of public tender. The total estimated investment of
the Project amounted to approximately RMB326,581,500.

For details of the above-mentioned subsequent events, please refer to the

announcements published by the Company on 29 March 2019, 8 March 2019,
29 January 2019, 25 January 2019, 8 February 2019, 23 January 2019, 4 January
2019 and 2 January 2019, respectively.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Tao, aged 43, joined the Group in August 2017 as non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Yang Tao
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2007. He was qualified as a senior engineer
in August 2006. Mr. Yang Tao has extensive senior management experience in
architectural engineering, urban development and cultural tourism. Mr. Yang
Tao served as vice general manager of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group
Co., Ltd.* (ZEEIEBAR2AR]) from April 2009 to April 2011. Mr. Yang Tao
has been appointed as a member of the Standing Committee, deputy secretary
of the Standing Committee and head of the united front work department of
the Standing Committee of the Communist Party of China of Xishuangbanna
Autonomous Prefecture between April 2011 and August 2014. Mr. Yang Tao
was appointed as party secretary and vice chairman of the board YMCI between
August 2014 and December 2016. Since December 2016, Mr. Yang Tao was
appointed as vice party secretary, vice chairman of the board and Chief Executive
Officer of YMCI.

Mr. Yu Long (“Mr. Yu"), aged 47. Mr. Yu joined the Group in June 2011, and
currently serves as an executive Director, vice chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Yu obtained a MBA degree from Guanghua School
of Management, Peking University in July 2013, and is now studying as a doctor
at the School of Economics and Management at University of Chinese Academy
of Sciences. Mr. Yu has more than 17 years of experience in environmental and
water works industry, market development, project management, investment
capital management, and risk control management, and he is mainly responsible
for the overall operation and management, strategic planning and business
development of the Company. Mr. Yu was appointed as general manager of
water works division and deputy general manager of Beijing Tsinghua Novel
Environmental Protection Company Limited between July 2003 and August 2007.
Mr. Yu was appointed as project management director of Kardan Water Group
Limited* (Sf1/KIEBIBRERER) between August 2007 and July 2008. Between
July 2008 and April 2009, Mr. Yu was appointed as the deputy general manager
of Ruoshi (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (FEAILR)EEBR A A]) Between
May 2009 and October 2012, Mr. Yu was appointed as the sales director and
the deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater. Between June 2011 and
August 2017, Mr. Yu served as Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of
the Company, and as Chief Executive Officer of the Company between August
2017 and December 2018. Mr. Yu has served as an executive Director, vice
chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from December 2018 till
now. In addition, Mr. Yu has been appointed as chairman or director of various
subsidiaries of our Group since January 2011.
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Mr. He Yuanping (“Mr. He"), aged 52, joined our Group in June 2011 as a
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering from Nanjing University of Science and Technology in July 1987. He
also completed a master’'s degree in mechanical engineering in Beijing University
of Science and Technology in February 1992 and obtained a master’s degree in
financial mathematics from the Victoria University of Wellington in New Zealand in
July 2000. Mr. He was appointed as director, deputy general manager and chief
financial officer of Beijing OriginWater Science and Technology Development Co.,
Ltd.* JtRBEKRERHERBR A R]) (predecessor of Beijing OriginWater) from
September 2005 to June 2007. From June 2007 to March 2018, he has been the
director, deputy general manager, chief financial officer and board secretary of
Beijing OriginWater. Mr. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director of the Company on 30 August 2018 and re-designated from
an executive Director to a non-executive Director of the Company on 16 October
2018. Mr. He has also assumed positions such as member of fixed income
professional committee of the Securities Association of China, expert in the PPP
expert database of the National Development and Reform Commission, business
mentor of Beijing Fourth Board* (3t FO#R), committee member of the Beijing
Haidian District Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (it R/&EE
Bi#Z &), vice-chairman of Hydraulics Committee of the Chinese Hydraulic Science
Society* (FBIKFIRIZE), guest teacher of the School of Accountancy of Central
University of Finance and Economics, guest teacher of University of Science and
Technology Beijing, vice president of Western Returned Scholars Association ANZ
branch, deputy secretary-general of The Listed Companies Association of Beijing.
He has been appointed as chairman and director of a number of subsidiaries of
Beijing OriginWater since May 2011, and has managerial experience of over 11
years in large-scale enterprises and the water works industry. In addition, Mr. He
has been appointed as director of Wuhan Sanzhen Industry Holding Co., Ltd.*
(REZEFEERIMHAR AR (the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, stock code: 600168) since November 2013. Mr. He has served as
the general manager of Beijing DQY Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd.* (It R{BEFIR
BERBRHERARF]) from March 2018 till now.

Ms. Li Bo (“Ms. Li”), aged 42, joined the Group in August 2014, and currently
serves as non-executive Director of the Company. Ms. Li obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Dalian University of Technology in Dalian
in June 2008. Ms. Li has more than 12 years of senior management experience
in water works industry. From August 2014 to August 2017, Ms. Li acted as
shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company, and from August 2017
till now, she has been the non-executive Director of the Company. Ms. Li was
appointed as the deputy manager of the investment and financing department of
YMCI between April 2005 and May 2010, and was promoted as manager of the
investment and financing department between May 2010 and May 2012. Ms. Li
acted as the board office director of YMCI from May 2012 to December 2017,
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and she has been the Secretary to the Board and Assistant to President of YMCI
since December 2017. In addition, Ms. Li has also been appointed as the director
of a number of subsidiaries of YMCI since January 2014.

Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi ("Mr. Feng”), aged 43, joined our Group in June 2013 as
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
economics from the Central University of Finance and Economics in July 1997 and
a master’s degree in business administration from a joint university programme
organized by the Chinese University of Hong Kong and Tsinghua University
in December 2005. Mr. Feng has more than 17 years of senior management
experience in large-scale enterprises and the water works industry. Mr. Feng has
been appointed as managing director of Finergy Guangda (Tianjin) Capital Partners
(Limited Partnership)* (BUREZE(KRZ)REREEESBLEBERER)) since May
2011. Mr. Feng has been appointed as general manager and managing director
of Yunnan Finergy Tongda Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd.* (EfglRE
ERBIREESEE AR AR since March 2012. Mr. Feng has been appointed
as a member of the investment management committee of Yunnan Energy-saving
Environmental Protection Venture Capital Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(ZFERREEBRREIEREESEREE(BERAER)) since December 2012. In
addition, Mr. Feng has been appointed as director of Shandong Higer Information
Technology Co., Limited* (LIF &= BTN AR A7) (the shares of which
are listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotation (also known as the
“NEEQ"), stock code: 834482) since August 2017. On 29 March 2019, due to his
other work commitments, Mr. Feng resigned as a non-executive Director of the
second session of the Board, with effect upon the conclusion of the AGM.

Mr. Yang Fang, aged 45, joined the Group in March 2013, and currently serves
as the executive Director, deputy chief executive officer and party secretary of
the Company. Mr. Yang Fang obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting and
statistics from Yunnan University of Finance and Economics in July 1998, and
further obtained an executive master’s degree in business administration from
Dalian University of Technology in June 2008. Mr. Yang Fang was qualified as a
first-class enterprise human resources managing personnel in March 2009 certified
by the Ministry of Labor and Social Security. Mr. Yang Fang served as party
secretary of the Company in March 2013, and he was subsequently appointed
as deputy chief executive officer of the Company in November 2014, and was
appointed as the executive Director of the Company in August 2017. Mr. Yang
Fang has more than 11 years of senior management experience in water works
related companies, and is mainly responsible for party building work, disciplinary
inspection and supervision work of the Company, coordinating water projects in
Inner Mongolia region, and market development and managerial work in Central
China. Mr. Yang Fang served in various positions in YMCI, including manager
of personnel and organization department, manager of the human resources
department.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Song (“Mr. Hu"), aged 57, joined the Group in August 2014 as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Hu obtained a master’s
degree in western economics from Huazhong University of Science and Technology
in December 2002. Mr. Hu is mainly participating in making significant business
decisions and providing independent advice on corporate governance, connected
transactions, various matters of directors and scale management. Mr. Hu has 15
years of experience as senior management in enterprises, and has successively
served as director of companies such as Shenzhen Rihai Communications
Equipment Company Limited* (RIIT BB @AMREBR AR and Shenzhen
Yungong Investment Co., Ltd.* (ORI A REEBRAF) as well as the

consultant of Mission Hills Group.

Mr. Ma Shihao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 80, joined the Group in August 2014
as independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ma obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in water supply and drainage study of civil engineering from
Tsinghua University in January 1963. Mr. Ma was qualified as an engineer
specializing in radioactive wastewater treatment in December 1979 by the National
Cadre Bureau of Science and Technology, and qualified as a senior engineer
specializing in wastewater treatment in August 1987 and as a senior engineer
(professor level) specializing in environmental engineering in November 1995 by
the Beijing Senior Professional and Technical Personnel Certifying Committee.
Mr. Ma is mainly participating in making significant decisions and providing
independent advice on corporate governance, connected transactions and matters
of corporate operations. Mr. Ma has more than 52 years of working experience
in the water industry. He worked in Beijing Municipal Research Institute of
Environmental Protection* (Jb R IRIZIRFERI 2475 FT) between January 1963 and
January 1999, and was subsequently appointed as a member of the Shandong
Xiaoginghe Wastewater Treatment Construction Technology Advisory Committee*
(LWFR/NESHICRBETRREMEBEZEE). Mr. Ma was appointed as independent
director of Beijing OriginWater between September 2007 and April 2014. Mr. Ma
is the author of the Beijing discharge standard of water pollutants for municipal
wastewater treatment plants (DB11/890-2012) promulgated by Beijing People’s
Government in May 2012 and the second amendment of the Beijing integrated
discharge standard of water pollutants (DB11/307-2013) promulgated by Beijing
People’s Government in December 2013. Mr. Ma was awarded by the Ministry
of Environmental Protection and the Beijing Municipal Management Committee
for preparing various feasibility reports on wastewater treatment. Mr. Ma was
awarded for his book, “The Book of Practical Water Treatment Technology”
((ERKEERMEZ) ) in September 2002 published by China Petroleum &

Chemical Industry Federation.
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Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (“Mr. Liu”), aged 47, joined the Group in June 2018 as
independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accounting and a master’'s degree in accounting from RMIT University
of Australia in 1996 and 2002, respectively. He subsequently obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Deakin University of Australia in 2004 and
is now studying as a doctor majoring in management at Newcastle University of
Australia. Mr. Liu has more than 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and management and is a qualified accountant of CPA Australia and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liu has worked at KPMG since 1996
as a manager, senior manager and supervisor. From 1996 to 1999, he worked
in the audit department of the Hong Kong office of KPMG. From 1999 to
2010, he worked in the financial advisory service department of the Guangzhou
office and Shenzhen office of KPMG. From October 2010 to December 2013,
Mr. Liu was chief financial officer and company secretary of Leoch International
Technology Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 842).
From December 2013 to May 2017, Mr. Liu was executive director, chief financial
officer and company secretary of Yestock Car Rental Company Limited. Since May
2017, Mr. Liu has been the managing director of Heungkong Financial Group
Limited.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Long Limin (“Mr. Long”), aged 50, joined the Group in August 2017 as
a shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company and Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee. Mr. Long obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
from Chongqging University in 1991 and a master’s degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University in 2004. Between 1991 and 2000, Mr.
Long successively acted as workshop director, assistant to factory director and
deputy factory director of BBMG Group Co. Ltd* (It R&BEBARET AT

Between 2000 and 2010, Mr. Long served as vice general manager of TsingHua
TongFang Artificial Environment Co., Ltd* (BZERHT A TRBEER A A
2010 and 2011, Mr. Long was the director of operation and the manager of

). Between

procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. Between 2011 and 2013, Mr.
Long served as the general manager of Shandong Yashi Co., Ltd.* (IR
MER LT
procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. From 2016 to March 2018, Mr.

. Between 2013 and 2016, Mr. Long was the director of enquiry and

Long was the director of operation planning centre of Beijing OriginWater, and he
has been the director and deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater since
March 2018.
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Mr. Zhu Zhen (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 34, joined the Group in August 2017 as a
shareholder representative Supervisor. Mr. Zhu obtained his master’'s degree in
law from Tsinghua University in September 2009. Mr. Zhu has almost 9 years
of experience in law and investment related industries. Mr. Zhu was the deputy
general manager of the auditing and legal department of YMCI from October
2013 to September 2016, and he was promoted as the general manager of the
legal department of YMCI in September 2016. In addition, Mr. Zhu has served as
director and supervisor in various subsidiaries of YMCI since September 2014.

Mr. Huang Yi, aged 42, joined the Group in June 2011, and he is currently
an employee representative supervisor and the deputy general manager of the
Company’s market and investment center. Mr. Huang Yi obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Computer and Application from Yunnan University in July 1998 and a
master’s degree in Business Administration from Nanjing Normal University in July
2001.
staff member of the economic and trade division in the Kunming Resident Office
of the National Audit Office. From November 2003 to May 2009, Mr. Huang Yi

served successively as senior analyst in the planning and development department,

From July 2001 to November 2003, Mr. Huang Yi served as a principal

assistant to the director of the audit department and deputy director of the
discipline inspection office of Yunnan Malong Industry Group Company Limited*
(EmEEEXSERMHERAT). Since June 2011, Mr.
successively as deputy manager of the investment development department,

Huang Yi has served

manager of the investment development department, and deputy general manager
of the market and investment center of the Company. In addition, since August
2007, Mr. Huang Yi has served as chairman or general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Tang Shuang (“Ms. Tang”), aged 34, joined the Group in January 2015
as an employee representative Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Tang obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in management from Yunnan University in Yunnan in July 2007,
and she obtained the qualification as an accountant in May 2006 awarded by the
Ministry of Finance. Ms. Tang is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’
meetings. Ms. Tang has more than 10 years of working experience in large-scale
enterprises. Ms. Tang was an employee of the Yunnan branch office of Ping
An Life Insurance Limited between July 2007 and June 2008, later she served
as the accountant for the Beijing branch office of Ping An Property & Casualty
Insurance Company of China Limited from July 2008 to March 2010. From
March 2010 to February 2015, Ms. Tang served in the business department of
Yunnan OriginWater Technology Company Limited. Ms. Tang served as the deputy
manager in the bidding and procurement department of our Company from
March 2015 to November 2015. Since December 2015, she has been the deputy
manager in the business department of our Company.
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Mr. Tan Hairui ("Mr. Tan"”), aged 48, joined the Group in January 2015 as an
independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Tan obtained a bachelor’s degree
in economics from Yunnan Finance and Trade College (now known as Yunnan
University of Finance and Economics) in July 1993. Mr. Tan obtained the certificate
as a registered accountant issued by Accountant Examination Committee of
Ministry of Finance of the PRC in April 1999 and a Lawyer’s License in August
2004. Mr. Tan has more than 18 years of working experience in large-scale
enterprises, and he is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors, managers
and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws and regulations,
the Articles of Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Mr.
Tan was the deputy manager of the financial department of Yunda Science &
Technology Industry Company from 2000 to December 2001. Mr. Tan joined
Yunnan Hengxin Law Firm as trainee solicitor and lawyer from January 2002 to
August 2007. Mr. Tan joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law Firm as lawyer between
September 2007 and March 2009. Mr. Tan worked in Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm
as a lawyer from March 2009 to January 2018. Since January 2018, Mr. Tan has
been working in Beijing Yingke (Kunming) Law Firm (At RZ&Fl () EZEMEH AN
as a lawyer.

Ms. Zhang Ling (“Ms. Zhang"), aged 43, joined the Group in January 2018
as an Independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhang Ling is the deputy
professor and Master’s tutor of law school of Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics and director of the collaborated regional resources law research
center of law school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Zhang
obtained her law degree in July 1997 at Wuhan University and master degree in
international business law and European Union law at University of Sheffield in
November 2004. Since September 2005, Ms. Zhang has been working at the law
school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics, responsible for teaching,
research and application of law. Ms. Zhang had published dozens of professional
academic papers on law, held discussions on national social topics and research
on provincial laws. She was invited by the Legal Affairs Office of the State
Council* (BFFTEFIH), the Ministry of Civil Affairs* (RIEEB) and the Ministry
of Foreign Affairs* (4N32EB) to participate in the amendments of two laws and
regulations and legislative consultation. She has received the research award of
(EEE T2 GRI2MRER) twice.

In addition, Ms. Zhang had approximately twenty years of solid experience in the

Yunnan Philosophical Social Science Society*

legal field. Since she was qualified as a practicing lawyer in November 1999, Ms.
Zhang had worked in five different law firms in Yunnan Province and is currently

(ERN\HRERMEBA).

working on or part-time basis at Yunnan Bagian Law Firm*
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Xujun (“Mr. Liu"), aged 46, joined our Group in June 2011 and
currently serves Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Liu
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in water supply and drainage engineering from
Tongji University in Shanghai in July 1995. Later, he further obtained a master’s
degree in environmental engineering from Kunming University of Science &
Technology in Kunming in June 2009, and he obtained a doctorate degree in
environment engineering at Tongji University in Shanghai in September 2017. Mr.
Liu was qualified as a senior engineer specialized in water supply and drainage
in September 2006 by the Kunming Architecture Senior Engineer Certifying
Committee (EFMEEIRS R IREMIER).
professional manager in June 2007 by the Human Resources and Social Security

He was also qualified as a

Bureau of Yunnan Province of the PRC. Mr. Liu has become a member of the
International Water Association (IWA) ¥IKH) since January 2013. He was
subsequently qualified as a professorate senior engineer specialized in water supply
and drainage in November 2014 by the Yunnan Professorate Senior Engineer
Certifying Committee (ZMA E= A TRAMFFEZ S E). Mr. Liu has more than
22 years of technical experience in the water works industry, including 9 years
of senior management experience in water works enterprises, mainly responsible
for the technical management, research and development, and services of the
Company. Mr. Liu served as engineering staff in Kunming Municipal Sewerage

0., Ltd., a deputy director and later a director of World Bank project office
between July 1995 and October 2005. Mr. Liu worked as a procurement specialist
for the World Bank Resident Mission from December 2007 to October 2009. He
served as chief engineer and deputy general manager of Yunnan Province Water
from January 2010 to June 2011. Mr. Liu served as executive director and deputy
chief executive officer off the Company from June 2011 to August 2017. He has
been the deputy chief executive officer since August 2017.

Mr. Huang Yunjian (“Mr. Huang”), aged 53, joined our Group in December
2011 as Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and currently serves as
the deputy chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Huang obtained a degree
in environment engineering from Kunming University of Science and Technology
in Kunming in July 1988. He obtained a certificate for senior research studies
on modern economics management in 2005 and a certificate for the “Western
China Environmental Infrastructure Technologies and Projects”
2005. Mr. Huang subsequently obtained the qualification of a Chinese professional
manager in June 2006 awarded by Chinese Professional Manager Coalition. Mr.

course in December

Huang has more than 19 years of experience in operation management and senior
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management in companies related to water works, and he is mainly responsible
for management, strategic planning and business development of our Group. Mr.
Huang was appointed as engineer and plant manager of the 4th sewage plant
of Kunming Municipal Sewerage Co., Ltd. from April 1998 to June 2005. Mr.
Huang was appointed as the legal representative, executive director and general
manager of Kunming Wastewater Treatment Co. Ltd. between June 2005 and July
2008. Mr. Huang served as assistant to the general manager and deputy general
manager of Yunnan Province Water, our controlling shareholder, between January
2010 and June 2011. Mr. Huang served as executive director and deputy chief
executive officer of the Company from December 2011 to August 2017. He has
been the deputy chief executive officer since August 2017. Mr. Huang also served
as legal representative and director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
In addition, Mr. Huang has also been a part-time professor of Kunming University
of Science and Technology since January 2013.

Mr. Wang Yong (“Mr. Wang"”), aged 47, joined the Group in January 2013
and is currently the financial controller of the Company. Mr. Wang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics in July 1993 from Yunnan Finance and Trade
College (now known as Yunnan University of Finance and Economics) and a
master’s degree in business administration in January 2009 from the Yunnan
University. He was qualified as an accountant in the PRC in May 1996, and also
qualified as a registered tax agent in the PRC in October 2000, later he was
promoted to a senior accountant in October 2004. From April 2002 to January
2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as the manager of finance department of
Kunming Sino-Platinum Metals Catalyst Co., Ltd* (EFAEHHE/LEIBR QA E]). Mr.
Wang joined the Group in January 2013 as manager of finance department of the
Company, subsequently he was appointed as financial controller of the Company
in November 2013. Mr. Wang has more than 15 years of senior management
experience in large-scale enterprises and extensive experience in accounting, and
he is mainly responsible for the finance, financing, internal control, securities and
project investment risk control of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Song (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 45, joined the Group as the investment
director in October 2015 and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Zhang obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Tongji University in 2005. Mr. Zhang
has over 24 years of rich experience in environmental protection and relevant
industries. Mr. Zhang served as a member and representative of the preparatory
group of Hedong Sewage Treatment Plant at the construction committee of
Urumgi from 1995 to 2002 and as the president of China region of Salcon
Berhad, Malaysia from 2004 to 2015.

F EFLERERAER

BRABMSKEEELERETRAANEE
KRR RTEZFTRELE -R-_T—FTF—
AE-Z——XAHH FBEEHEEEALQ
AEERREREKBOEALEE R 2
KR -R_B——F+-_RAE_F—EFN
AUH BEEEEEARARTESERAR
B B E-tFN\ARESERLELER
RABES HEENMEEAEEZHHE
RAKEERRARESE - R  BRAES
TE-ZF-AR CBEEERAEIREMNER
BHE o

IEEE(TERE]D TR -R_T—=%F
—AMAXREBEREERRAGTHEE -
FER—NAN=ZFLARGSEETESR (R
WMEMPEARB)REEELEN  R-FFT
NE-ARBGERARIREBELEM -
—ANARFELARBEERTEEE R
ZETETARRAERTEEMHLE -
HAR_ZZEWNF+AENRESM G0 -
CEE_FNAE-Z-=F-AHHEIEE
EREFEAEMELBEBRARNTHHL
B —E-=—F-AEIREMAREEEE
RABHBHELE  HER_T—=F+—
ABRZERARAMBRE - TEEHERR
SENRBCESRELEEERIE NG
HEFEELR TEAEARANYE &
B AR BHERBEEBRERRIESTE-

RMEE(TREE]D 45 R -_FT—A1F
TAMAREBEEERERE  IHE_EE
EERAERRAFEBER -REEAR-E
ZRFEGSREREIRERELTEEMSE
o RAENRRRRBBITEREG B - +H
FHEERLR REENR-—NAWNEFE-T
T FHRESEAEMREZENRGKE
EREZAXERRER  ERAN_ZTTWF
E-T-REHB O NRERAETEREEE
FrEREH -

Annual Report 2018 4F & 4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k B8 & M5 B R A 7 45



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 EFNEAEBEAER

Mr. Zhao Peng (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 39, joined the Group as the general manager
assistant and general manager of the marketing and investment centre of the
Group in June 2011 and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Hebei University of Economics and Business in July 2003.
Mr. Zhao has approximately 16 years of rich experience in the environmental
protection industry. Mr. Zhao served as the business manager of Beijing Novel
AEFKFTIRIRBBRAR]) from September 2003
to April 2004 and subsequently as the marketing director for North China area of
Co., Ltd.* (B HEKETLRRALtR)E

Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.*

Veolia Water Solutions & Technologies (Beijing)
fR 2 7)) from May 2005 to June 2011.

Mr. Ma Xiangyi, aged 44, joined the Group in February 2016, successively served
as the deputy general manager and general manager of the project management
center and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the Company by the
second session of the Board. Mr. Ma Xiangyi obtained a bachelor’s degree in
industrial and civil construction from Yunnan Polytechnic University in July 1997
and the qualification of intermediate engineer (in water supply and drainage) in
August 2002. Mr. Ma Xiangyi has over 22 years of rich experience in water and
relevant industries. Mr. Ma Xiangyi served as an engineer at the infrastructure
(EEA™
B PEK A E]) from August 1997 to August 2005, a deputy general manager of
AR R EIE N E]) from
September 2005 to October 2012 and a standing deputy general manager of

construction division of Kunming Municipal Water Discharge Company*
Kunming Dianchi Project Management Company* (£

Kunming Dianchi Construction Management Company from November 2012 to
February 2016. In addition, Mr. Ma Xiangyi served as the chairman or a senior
management member of a number of subsidiaries of the Group since September
2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo (“Mr. Li”), aged 40, joined the Group in May 2013 as company
secretary of the Company and was appointed as Secretary to the Board since
August 2013. Mr. Li graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business
in Beijing with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 2001 and obtained a
master’s degree in accounting from Macquarie University in Australia in April
2006. Mr. Li is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He
is mainly responsible for assisting with the operation of our Company and the
operation of the Board. Mr. Li has more than 9 years of experience in finance-
related senior positions. Mr. Li was engaged by Audit Office of New South Wales
as an auditor since August 2007 and was later promoted to senior auditor.
From March 2011 to June 2013, Mr. Li served as the financial controller and the
company secretary of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 814).
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2018, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00 each. Details
of changes in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note
26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company
is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its

existing Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is an operator primarily engaged in municipal environmental integrated
services and the only urban environmental integrated service provider in Yunnan
Province. The Group is also one of the few integrated operators in municipal
environmental services in China that has expanded overseas successfully, and our
overseas business is mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the
Group operates upstream and downstream development industries to improve the
Group's profitability structure and broaden the sources of income. The Group has
good track records in projects such as urban wastewater treatment, tap water and
raw water supply, watercourse management, solid waste treatment and others.

The major business segments of the Group include investment, construction and
management services for urban water supply, waste water treatment, solid waste
treatment, and comprehensive environmental treatment projects, construction
and sales of equipment and other environmental protection related services. The
corporate strategy of the Group is to set our foundation of business in Yunnan,
identify overseas investment opportunities continuously, and gradually expand our
business to other favourable regions in China and overseas emerging markets, in

order to secure stable income sources.
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RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
94 to 95. The financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 is set out
in the consolidated balance sheet on page 96 to 98. The consolidated cash flow
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on page 101 to 102.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements
affecting the results of operations and financial condition of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report from page 18 to 36.

DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to declare the final dividend of RMBO0.15 per Share (tax
included) for the year ended 31 December 2018. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the consideration and approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.
The final dividend is payable to the Shareholders whose names are listed in the
register of members of the Company on 25 June 2019, in an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB179.0 million.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the final dividend will
be denominated and declared in RMB. The final dividend on Domestic Share will
be paid in RMB and on H Share will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The relevant
exchange rate for conversion shall be calculated by the average median exchange
rate for converting RMB into Hong Kong dollar as quoted by the China Foreign
Exchange Trading Centre for the week immediately before the date on which
the dividend was declared (i.e. Wednesday, 13 June 2019). The final dividend is
expected to be distributed on or before Tuesday, 30 July 2019.

The Company has established a sound decision-making process and profit
distribution mechanism. Emphasis is placed on Shareholder returns and cash
dividends are distributed to Shareholders regularly. In formulating the profit
distribution plan, the Board has fully considered the opinions and demands of
Shareholders to, after taking into account the statutory interests of minority
Shareholders, and has submitted the profit distribution plan at the general
meeting for approval. Also, the independent non-executive Directors have properly
carried out their duties in regards to the decision making process of the profit
distribution plan.

Under the relevant tax rules and regulations of the PRC (collectively the “PRC Tax
Law”), the Company is required to withhold corporate income tax at the rate of
10% when distributing the final dividend to non-resident enterprises (such term
shall have the meaning as defined under the PRC Tax Law) whose names appear
on the H Shares register of members of the Company.
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In accordance with the PRC Tax Law, the Company is also required to withhold
individual income tax when distributing the final dividend to individual
shareholders whose names appeared on the H Shares register of members of the
Company. The Company will determine the country of domicile of the individual
holders of H Shares based on the registered addresses as recorded in the H Shares
register of members of the Company on the record date with details as follows:

—  For individual holders of H Shares who are Hong Kong and Macau residents
and those whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into
a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of them.

—  For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of them. The Company would
make applications on their behalf to seek entitlement of the relevant agreed
preferential treatments pursuant to the Notice of the State Administration of
Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment
Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative) (Guo Shui Fa [2009]
No.124) (BRI BENNE<IFRREZHRNIHZFEEEINEET) >
EVIEBAN) (B 32[2009]12457)).

—  For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of higher than 10% but lower than 20%, the Company would
withhold and pay the individual income tax at the agreed-upon effective tax
rate on behalf of them.

—  For individual holders of H Shares who are residents of those countries
without any tax treaties with the PRC or having tax treaties with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20% or more, and other situations, the
Company would withhold and pay the individual income tax at a tax rate of
20% on behalf of them.

If individual shareholders of H Shares have any queries on the above arrangement,
they may consult their tax advisers for advice on the taxation effects involving
the ownership and disposal of H Shares in PRC, Hong Kong and other countries
(regions).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the list of Shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of holders of H Shares of the Company will be closed
from 14 May 2019 to 13 June 2019 (both dates inclusive), during which period
no transfer of Shares will be registered. Holders of H Shares whose names appear
on the register of holders of H Shares of the Company at the close of business on
10 May 2019 are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.

In order to attend and vote at the AGM, any holder of H Shares whose transfer
has not been registered shall lodge the transfer documents together with the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s H Share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, by no later than 4:30 p.m. on 10 May 2019.

For the purpose of determining entitlement for the final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 20 June 2019 to Tuesday, 25 June 2019 (both dates inclusive)
during which registration of transfer of Shares will be suspended.

To be eligible to receive the final dividend, all transfer documents must be lodged
with the Company’s H Share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 22nd Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (for
holders of H Shares), or the secretariat of the Board, located at 5th Floor, Yunnan
Water, 2089 Haiyuan Bei Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan Province, the
PRC (for holders of Domestic Shares), by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
19 June 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting Period
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity, of which details of
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made external donations of approximately

RMB2.9 million (contractual value) (excluding personal donations by employees).
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as of 31 December 2018 are
set out in note 29 to the Financial Statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Certain information concerning the Directors and the Supervisors and senior
management of the Company during the Reporting Period and as at the date of
this annual report is set out below.
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AEBR-2—\F+=A=+—BHOR7T
18 IR B A 18 0 1 LA A E SR A R
ft 29 -

EEx EEREAEERE
TEBIARARBENNRAEAERE
MEF B FRDRE I E BB -

Directors =}
Date of Appointment
Name Title in the Company for the Current Term
s R D B B RITEPNEERS
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Dai Richeng (Resigned from Executive Director, vice-chairman 28 August 2017

executive Director and vice chairman
on 12 December 2018)

gekEE (RZE-NF WITEE  BIERE
TR+ HEERTES - BIER)
Mr. Yu Long Executive Director, vice-chairman,

chief executive officer

TREE WITEE - BIEF - THER
Mr. Yang Fang Executive Director,

deputy chief executive officer

B L MITES - Bl

“E2—tFNAZTNE

Appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
on 28 August 2017 and appointed as
an executive Director and Vice-chairman
on 12 December 2018

—T—+FNA=ZF+N\HRH
BEERTRER  —T—)\F
TR+ RAEZERRTEZRAIERE

28 August 2017

—ZE—+FENA=T/R
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Date of Appointment
Name Title in the Company for the Current Term
®A RZA 2 B BT RTENNEEES
Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Mr. Yang Tao Non-executive Director, Chairman 28 August 2017
BRtE FEMITEE - IR —Z—+HEN\AZ+N\R
Ms. Li Bo Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
EY) g FEMITEE —E—+FENAZ+N\R
Mr. He Yuanping Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
IR & FEMITESE —E—+FN\AZ+N\R
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
LR A FERITESF —E—+FENAZ+N\R
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Kwok For Chi (resigned from Independent Non-executive Director 28 August 2017

independent non-executive Director
on 13 June 2018)

BRERE (RZZ2-N\F B IFMITES
NAT=ZBBEBVIENTES)

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong Independent Non-executive Director
BRI k% BYIFPITESF

Mr. Hu Song Independent Non-executive Director
HATRSE A B IEITES

Mr. Ma Shihao Independent Non-executive Director
B EE BIYIEMITES

In the period from the Listing Date to the Reporting Period, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent from the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of AR EE EEZhafEEEMRENFR
BN AFEREITEACE o BiF LT B 8%
THARAESE EERafhEBERULE
Company, including financial, business, family or other material relationships as BMERE ¥ RESHEXEMBEKND
defined in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. & o

EX EEKEREEEGE

the Company are set out on page 37 to 46 of this annual report. There are no

relationships among the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the

Date of Appointment

Name Title in the Company for the Current Term

] R D T B RITESNEEIES

Supervisors

Ex

Mr. Long Limin Chairman of the Supervisory Committee, 28 August 2017
shareholder representative Supervisor

BENREE EEeXR BREARE=R —Z—+FN\AZ+N\R

Mr. Zhu Zhen Shareholder representative Supervisor 28 August 2017

RIRSEE R KRESE —Z—+FNAZ+N\RH

Mr. Tan Hairui Independent Supervisor 28 August 2017

B E B EE —E—tFNAZTNH

Ms. Zhang Ling Independent Supervisor 5 January 2018

R BB E —Z-)\$—HAEH

Ms. Yang Chuanyun
(resigned on 21 May 2018)

Employee representative Supervisor

28 August 2017

BIERL (RZT—-N\F BIRKES —E—+FNAZ+N\H
EAZ+—HEE)

Ms. Tang Shuang Employee representative Supervisor 28 August 2017

BERL L BIRKRES —Z—+FNAZ+N\R

Mr. Huang Yi Employee representative Supervisor 21 May 2018

BEELE BIRKKES - N\FRA=+—H

Senior management

SREEE

Mr. Liu Xujun Deputy chief executive officer 28 August 2017

BIBE RS Bl —Z—+FNAZTNE

Mr. Huang Yunjian Deputy chief executive officer 28 August 2017

mEERE Bl —ZE—+FENAAZ+N\H

Mr. Wang Yong Chief financial controller 28 August 2017

FEEL W5 4aEs —E—+tFENAZ+N\E

Mr. Zhang Song Deputy Chief Executive Officer 31 October 2017

SRIRSE A& BlAEE “T—tFt+HA=t—H

Mr. Zhao Peng Deputy Chief Executive Officer 31 October 2017

IS 55 A B4 —2—+t+F+HA=+—H

Mr. Ma Xiangyi Deputy Chief Executive Officer 31 October 2017

SRERE EIFEESY —Z—+F+HA=+—H

Mr. Li Bo Company Secretary, Secretary to the Board 31 October 2017

FHELEE NRIME  EFEWE —T—tFrH=+—H
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors and
Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and
provision on arbitration. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with

the Articles of Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with
the Company during the Reporting Period which is not terminable within one year
nor may be terminated by the Company without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR
DETERMINATION OF THE REMUNERATION OF
THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management is subject
to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and determined by the
Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending remuneration for
Directors, Supervisors and senior management to the Board with reference to,
among other factors, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company are
set out in note 39 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’" AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance subsisting in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was directly or indirectly a party and any
Director or Supervisor had a material interest.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the Prospectus, at no time during the
Reporting Period had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any
contract of significance with any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries,
nor had any contract of significance been entered into for the services provided by
any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

In the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report, to the best
knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors and Supervisors and their
respective associates has any business or interest that competes or may compete
with the business of the Group or have or may have any conflict of interest with
the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Apart from the IPO, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement during the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interest in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise, to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or
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EEREERBRFEXBNES

BLETEHHAREEAREEH EFSHD
HBESEREEMRESEBHEANEME
B E A EEEBEREFHAEBK
#F I R 5 B A& R 3K A A R AE AT E At R
MmER o

R SR 8t
BRERAREEN  RRAAREEHRL K

RIS EMBRRA B

ES -EERESITHAER
KRG - HEBROKRES 2%
&/%F‘

RZZB—-—NF+ZA=+—0H  KRAFAESE
EERERITBRABRARF S EH E A5
E(E&ERFEFLBAEBGIEXVE) OKRMD
HEAROREST HEREBEIFRBAEKR
Bl 25352 16 5k LA Ho Ath 75 S ZH A AR D RIR B 7%

B Pt

which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company BXHREE EI‘J%EEE%H%E’]%A AR IR IE
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows: FRHEMEARALRBMIANER  HEH
BHARR ﬂTféﬁﬁZwT :
Percentage
Percentage of of the total
the respective number of
Name of Director, type of Shares Shares in
Supervisor and chief in issue (%) issue (%)
executive Number of BT HE BT
B EERES Capacity Type of Shares  Shares held 5 R 7 AR 1D
THRAEH®E 6 ROEH HEROGEE B9 Lt 51(%) B9 tE B1(%)
Mr. Yang Fang Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1,755,000(L) 0.21 0.15
B3 5EE ERBEAA N E Bz 1,755,000(L) 0.21 0.15
Mr. Huang Yi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1,560,000(L) 0.19 0.13
LSk ERBEAA NE R 1,560,000(L) 0.19 0.13
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 10,820,000(L) 1.30 0.91
TRERAE ERfEAA WNER  10,820,000(L) 1.30 0.91
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner H Shares 770,000(L) 0.21 0.06
FRERE BREEA HA% 770,000(L) 0.21 0.06
Notes: B 5
(L) refers to long position (L R&IFE
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Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31
December 2018, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executives of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company’s best knowledge, as at 31 December 2018, the following
persons (other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests are disclosed in the
section headed “Interests and Short Positions of Directors, Supervisors and Chief
Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
which were required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the
respective type of share capital in issue of the Company which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BEXRBEEIN  BARAMARM R-F
—NF+ZA=+—RH HMEEF EFX
ARABHZEBITHRAEBRARAAREAEEZE
WEMBD BHEAKROREST  EERE
BEHREIGRPIEI2EAHRALRBERLS
MuEE AR RBBEREFAAS TG
RAFRHERFrEV LS

TERRNRPFOER R K
)=

BARRMARA  RZT—N\F+ZA=+—
B TIAL(ARAMNEERESHRI - &K
E2RENEXNESE EERERTHRAR
Rty . HERD REF BEIRR ]
BEIRARAKND., HERORESTHES
RIECGE S R B IRBI)EXVEEE2 R FE30 &
BRAARNRBRBREAIOKR HRIEEZ KB
B IRAIF 336K AT EEARNR R E M
BERIAR  BEARGARBEMNEBTR
R5%HIA EWEEIORA ¢

Percentage Percentage
of the of the
respective total number

type of Shares of Shares

in issue (%) in issue (%)

Number of HE BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Type of Shares Shares HRIR BN R 17
RRE® EREH R 13 28 5l R4 &8 £t 51(%) H9 tE B1(%)
Yunnan Province Water' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
ErE K BEREAA  HE—EA W&k 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
THEREER
Mr. Huang Yunjian' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
HEERAL ERBEAA  BE—BA A& 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
THAFEER
Mr. Liu Xujun' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
2B £ EREREA BE—EA RNE Rk 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
THEFE RS
Wang Yong' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30

interests held jointly with
another person
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type of Shares
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= =R A=

B % = S
Percentage Percentage
of the of the
respective total number

of Shares

in issue (%) in issue (%)

Number of HE BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Type of Shares Shares R4 1 w5
BRRERB BREH IR 17 & Bl R & A £ B(%) H9 tE B1(%)
IHE EREAA  HE—RBA NERK 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
THEFEER
YMCI'! Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
corporation, interests
held jointly with another
person
SRR EE MR EENER - E5R W&k 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
—BATHRAFHER
Beijing OriginWater Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
JERE KR ERBEBEA NE IR
CNPC Assets Management Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Co., Ltd.*? corporation
PhEETIEAR AR REEEE R A& % 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
China National Petroleum Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Corporation? corporation
HEAHAAREEERLR? REEEENEZE W& 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Kunlun Trust Co. Ltd.? Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
corporation
EmiErtaREERAR? AR A R A& R 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Finergy Development (Tianjin) Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*?
BRRE (RF) BERE BEREAA A& % 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
aRbE (ARER)?
The National Council for Social ~ Beneficial owner H Shares 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
Security Fund of the PRC*
2R EREEZSERE EREAA Hi% 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
Investment Limited'
TEBBRKRERRAG BREBA HI% 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
YMCI' Interests in controlled H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
corporation
ERHREE NEEEE R HR% 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
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Save

EEHE

refers to long position

Yunnan Province Water is wholly owned by YMCI and is the beneficial owner of 361,487,162
Domestic Shares. Caiyun International Investment Limited is wholly owned by YMCI and is the
beneficial owner of 8,449,000 H Shares. YMCI is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic
Shares held by Yunnan Province Water and H Shares held by Caiyun International Investment
Limited pursuant to the SFO which representing approximately 31.01% of total issued Shares.
By virtue of the Acting in Concert Agreement, each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI is
deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Huang Yunjian, Liu Xujin, Wang
Yong and each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the acting
in concert agreement (the “Acting in Concert Agreement”) dated 24 July 2014 entered into
between Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (“Yunnan Province Water"),
Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong, pursuant to which each of Liu Xujun, Huang
Yunjian and Wang Yong agreed to act in concert with Yunnan Province Water in exercising
their voting rights in the Shareholders’ meeting of the Company. Mr. Huang is deemed to be
interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Yunnan Province Water, Liu Xujun, Wang Yong
and Mr. Huang himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Yunnan
Province Water, Huang Yunjian, Wang Yong and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by himself,
Yunnan Province Water, Huang Yunjian and Liu Xujun in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Finergy Development is controlled as to 84.86% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd., its general partner,
and the beneficial owner of 137,880,000 Domestic Shares; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is owned as
to 82.18% by CNPC Assets Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly-owned by China
National Petroleum Corporation. Under the SFO, each of Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd., CNPC Assets
Management Co., Ltd. and China National Petroleum Corporation is deemed to be interested
in all the Domestic Shares held by Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership).

On 31 December 2018, Finergy Development entered into a share transfer agreement with
Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity Investment Center (Limited Partnership)* (/& & {5 E/RR MR IE
wERL (BRA%) (“Yantai Xinzhen”), pursuant to which Finergy Development agreed
to dispose of and Yantai Xinzhen agreed to purchase the 124,754,169 domestic shares of
the Company, representing approximately 10.46% of the issued shares of the Company (the
“Transfer”). As at 23 January 2019, the Transfer had been completed. After the completion,
Finergy Development directly holds 13,125,831 domestic shares of the Company, representing
approximately 1.10% of the issued shares of the Company, and ceases to be a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Xinzhen Tianying directly holds 124,754,169 domestic shares of
the Company, representing approximately 10.46% of the issued shares of the Company, and

becomes a substantial shareholder of the Company.

as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31

December 2018, no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executives) had informed the Company that he had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the Company which were

requi
SFO,

red to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5% or
more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business
were entered into or existed during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, the Group conducted
a number of non-exempt continuing connected transactions. The annual caps for
the non-exempt continuing connected transactions conducted by the Company
after IPO have been approved by the Stock Exchange and are exempted from
the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement. The table below shows
the annual caps and actual transaction value of such continuing connected

transactions for the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018:

Directors’ Report
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BRREERESAN SEFALRAREZE
SEMERBOHARAERE R RITKE]
IRTFEEMEHL -

KEBRERS
HETRHRE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—H
L AKRERETZRATERRBERER
5 o ARBCEBMIFAIETRAREERT
ERAFEMEISNFELR T EHRL
BFBIRRLENRE - TRAIZEH
BRERXZINETRHEE_Z-N\F+=
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Actual
transaction
Nature and Annual cap amount
Name, date and term of description of Basis for determining for 2018 in 2018
the agreement Connected Persons the transaction the consideration —E-N\FE —E-N\F
HEEE - BHRER BEAL XS HERER EEEH# IR ERXZEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T R
Membrane Ancillary Material Beijing OriginWater Yunnan Water On an arm'’s length 30,000 20,540
Procurement Master Agreement and its subsidiaries purchases membrane basis and on normal
ancillary materials commercial terms
from Beijing
OriginWater
RERREE R E L REKR TEABAEREKER AFRERREZEGER 30,000 20,540
REWBRA REBRE R
It was entered into on
22 December 2017 to set
the annual cap of transaction
for 3 years from 2018 to 2020.
RIB—tF+-A-+RFL
NRE_E-N\FE_T_TF
=FEERH LR o
Master Sale and Purchase Agreement YMCI and its subsidiaries ~ Yunnan Water provides On an arm'’s length 54,000 3,971
for Engineering Services Engineering Services basis and on normal
to YMCI commercial terms
T2 AHH ERREE ERABRERRR  ATRAR-REEER 54,000 3,971
REMBERA SERHETRER

[t was entered into on
29 December 2017 to set
the annual cap of transaction
for 3 years from 2018 to 2020.
RZE—+E+-A=+NBEx-
NRE—Z—\FE_T_FF
“EFERFLER -
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Several related-party transactions as disclosed in Note 37 to the Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under the definition of
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  carried out in normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) carried out according to the relevant transaction agreements, the terms of
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a

whole.
Auditor’s Confirmation

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the requirements

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the above continuing

connected transactions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition undertaking on
6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”).
Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert
Parties has irrevocably undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its
associates (except the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as
principal or agent, either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other
things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any
services to or otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with
the business of the Company from time to time (the “Restricted Business”).
Each of the Acting in Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if
there is any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a
reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to our Company
on a pre-emptive basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking and had determined that the Acting in Concert Parties have fully
complied with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Undertaking during
the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements (the “Non-
Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the Company. Pursuant
to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the Undertaking Shareholder has
irrevocably undertaken that it will not and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either
on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on,
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the business
of the Company from time to time. Each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any new business opportunity in
the Restricted Business, it shall within a reasonable period of time refer such new

business opportunities to our Company on a pre-emptive basis.
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The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking Shareholders have fully complied
with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Agreements during the
Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period the total amount of procurement from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for 58.6% of the total amount of procurement
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The procurement from the largest supplier
accounted for 49.9% of the total amount of procurement for the year ended 31
December 2018.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales for the year ended 31
December 2018 to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for 19.0%
of the total amount of revenue, and the total amount of sales to the largest
customer accounted for 12.8% of the total amount of revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective close
associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do not hold any interest in
the top five customers and top five suppliers of the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the Note 2.27 to the Financial Statements for detailed information
on the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year and material factors relating to its results and financial
conditions are respectively set out in the chapter headed “Chief Executive Officer's
Report” from page 13 to 17 and the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” from page 18 to 36 in this annual report. Such discussions
constitute an integral part of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment services providers
in the PRC, the Company is committed to operating its various business segments
in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Board believes that compliance
with the relevant environmental protection rules and regulations is crucial to
the long term development and success of the Group’s businesses. In order to
maintain a high standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations,
the Company offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at the
various water treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants. As a result
of the Company’s commitment to environmental protection and through the
implementation of advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe and
environmentally-friendly production during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the cornerstone
of a business and attaches considerable importance to it. To the best knowledge
of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
Furthermore, as the H Shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange,
the Company shall be bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, future results of operations and prospects could be affected
by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to the chapter headed “Chief
Executive Officer’s Report” from page 13 to 17 in this annual report for detail

analysis of the relevant risks and uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has undertaken and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as defined under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws

of Hong Kong)).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director and Supervisor or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DEBT AND PERPETUAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Group issued the following debt financing
instruments for purposes of meeting the daily business operation needs, adjusting
the debt structure, replenishing working capital and project investment.

—  On 23 July 2018, the Company issued the first tranche of super short term
financing bonds with an principal amount of RMB600,000,000 in a public
way for a term of one hundred days at an interest rate per annum of
4.86%;

—  On 22 October 2018, the Company issued medium term notes with an
principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 in a public way for a term of three
years at an interest rate per annum of 7.00%;

— On 26 November 2018, the Company issued the second tranche of super
short term financing bonds with an principal amount of RMB400,000,000 in
a public way for a term of one hundred and eighty days at an interest rate
per annum of 4.95%.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code. Details of the corporate governance
practice of the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
page 67 to 85 in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not been involved in any
material litigation nor arbitration and the Directors are not aware of any litigation
or claims of material importance pending or threatened against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page 18 to 36 in
this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which, before declaration or proposed distribution of dividends, the Board shall
consider the following factors:

—  the actual and expected financial performance of the Company;

—  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and the

subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group;

—  the liquidity of the Group;

—  the overall economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group's business
and the inherent or external factors that may affect the business, financial
performance and positioning of the Company; and

— Other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The distribution of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and the Articles
of Association.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results and the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company for the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 prepared in accordance with HKFRS have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company has retained the services of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since 2013.

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company
for the year of 2019 will be proposed at the AGM.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and liabilities of the
Group for the recent five financial years is set out on page 222 in this annual

report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited*

Yang Tao
Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
27 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report of the Company
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018.

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhance
Shareholder value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The Company’s corporate
governance principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective
internal control and accountability to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view of safeguarding the interest of Shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. The Group has made
specific enquiries with all of its Directors and Supervisors, and all Directors and
Supervisors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg
Board composition EEEMER
The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period are: RBEHAEBRNESES -
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dai Richeng (Vice-chairman) BAKSTE(FEE)
(resigned on 12 December 2018) (R=ZF—-NFE+=F+=HFE)
Mr. Yu Long (Vice-chairman, Chief Executive Officer) FRAE(BEE  THAEAZ)
Mr. Yang Fang (Deputy chief executive officer) 1575 f (B4 )
Mr. He Yuanping fa] B %% &
(re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive Director with (R=ZF—NFNA=1THHIFHTEF

effect from 30 August 2018 and re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director with effect from 16 October 2018 )

BERBPTEEF IR -_F—-NF+A
TANAHRTEEHERHFHTEE)

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Yang Tao (Chairman) HBREE(EE)
Ms. Li Bo FRE L

Mr. He Yuanping o] B8 5% A4

(re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive Director with
effect from 30 August 2018 and re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director with effect from 16 October 2018 )

Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi
(resigned on 29 March 2019, with effect from conclusion of the AGM)

Independent Non-executive Directors

(RZFE-—NFNA=THHHHTEE
BERHTEE TR=—F—/NF+H
TANABPTTEFRERHNTEE)

B A AL
(RZF—-ANFZA-FNHAFET XK
PR TIEF R & 4 RIF LX)
VFHTES

Mr. Kwok For Chi
(resigned on 13 June 2018)

Mr. Hu Song
Mr. Ma Shihao
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. In
particular, there is no such relationship between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
assumed by Mr. Yang Tao and Mr. Yu Long, respectively. For details, please refer
to the section headed "Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed "Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors
containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and provision on
arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors (including the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a
term of three years from the date of he/she takes up the appointment.

68 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A " Annual Report 2018 4 [& i &

BRIFR £
(R=ZF—NEXA+=HEFT)
BAAA 2 A&

Bt R A&

EMIE4E

BARBEAAAM  EFFUIEHEETAET
B REXHMEKR HBHE L
HERIFETRAZ CRABEZSTHE - =
FRTBEHEBLEDPRBELEER TS
ERE-FHABFE2ETXEERITHA
BB -

E=BHFEARNAFRIES
ABIEHRA

EEhkmhER

ARABEHERERITILRBAHN EPHE
BEH(ERe@F)ETHBERZIER  &T
ERRMBEBBGXNGER REER &
=Z(BEFATEERBYINTER)NGE
HhEEZEZHRFRHA=F -



Corporate Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (at least one-third of the Board) with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence during the Reporting Period pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent during the Reporting Period in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgement and to
act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board oversees
management’s efforts to promote the Company’s success while operating in an
effective and responsible manner. The Board also formulates the Company’s overall
business strategies and monitors management’s execution of such strategies.

By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business and
governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these matters reserved
for the Board have been separately defined, and are reviewed periodically, to
ensure that the Company maintains the proper level of corporate governance and
to ensure they are up to date. In this regard, the Board discharges, among others,
the following duties:

(1) to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a general
meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its work to the
general meeting and to implement the resolutions of the general meetings;

(2)  to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment plans;

(3) to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and final financial
budgets and profit distribution plans and plans for recovery of losses;

(4)  to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal, repurchase
of shares of the Company or merger, division, dissolution and alteration of
corporate form of the Company;
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(5)  to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and punishments of the
Company’s staff;

(6)  to decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and
to appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

(7)  to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of
accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the Company; and

(8) to review and supervise the policies and practices of the Company in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and operations
to the Company’s senior management, which includes its chief administration
officers, the chief executive officer and deputy chief executive officers. The senior
management meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies
and make recommendations to the Board. The senior management administers,
enforces, interprets and supervises compliance with the internal rules and
operational procedures of the Company as well as its subsidiaries and conducts
regular reviews, recommends and advises on appropriate amendments to such
rules and procedures. The senior management reports to the Board on a regular
basis and communicates with the Board whenever required.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance policies and
performing the corporate governance duties, which include, among others:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on

corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and Senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code; and

(5)  to review the compliance of the Company with relevant code provisions as

set out in the Corporate Governance Code and make its disclosure in the
corporate governance report prepared under the Listing Rules.
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Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a year. Meetings
shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of and documents for such
meetings shall be sent to all Directors and Supervisors 14 days before the meeting
is held. The Chairman, any Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth voting
rights, more than one-third of the Directors, or the Supervisory committee or more
than one-half of the independent non-executive Directors or the chief executive
officer may propose the holding of an extraordinary meeting of the Board. The
chairman shall convene and preside over the extraordinary meeting of the Board
within ten days upon receipt of the proposal, and shall give written notice to
all Directors and Supervisors five days before the meeting is held. During the
Reporting Period, the Board held 32 Board meetings, one annual general meeting
and two extraordinary general meetings.

In case of urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon approval
by the chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting notice as set out
in the Articles of Association, provided that reasonable notice shall be given to
Directors, Supervisors and the chief executive officer.

Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of new directors are
considered first by the nomination committee and the remuneration committee,
then they will make recommendations to the Board for consideration. All
nominees of new directors must be approved by the Shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company. Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain

approval of the shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
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Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 32 Board meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or by electronic
communication means. They made informed decisions to safeguard the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The attendance of Directors is as

EEHFESERRRAEER

M&iﬁﬂﬁﬂ EXEERTT=tKREES

CBEEFHRERTHEERAIEBR
%%Laﬂﬁ‘tﬁ}%;\% BEEHMBERE
RERABDRBEROBEENEG - EFOHE

follows: RO
Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings
BEEgHERES
Name of Director EEHE BITR™
Mr. Yang Tao HEEE 32/32
Mr. Dai Richeng (resigned on 12 December 2018) BEREE(R-_Z—N\F+-A+-_HEIT) 30/30
Mr. Yu Long (appointed on 12 December 2018) FTREAEAER=ZZE—N\EFE+_AT+-BEZMF) 2/2
Ms. Li Bo FRZLT 32/32
Mr. He Yuanping o] B8 %5 A& 32/32
Mr. Yang Fang 57 EAE 32/32
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi AL & T & 32/32
Mr. Kwok For Chi (resigned on 13 June 2018) LRIFLEERZZE-—NFSA+ZBET) 14/14
Mr. Hu Song AR % A& 32/32
Mr. Ma Shihao BtxELE 32/32
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (appointed on 13 June 2018) EMIhA4E (R _Z—\E~NA+=HEZT) 18/18

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

During this Reporting Period, the Board considered and approved important

proposals, mainly including:

—  Proposal in respect of the amendment to the Articles of Association of the
Company;

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2017 annual report of the

Company;

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2017 profit distribution plan of
the Company;

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2017 financial statements and the

2018 financial budget report of the Company;
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Proposal in respect of the approval of the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian LLP as the PRC auditors and PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
international auditors of the Company;

Proposal in respect of the approval of the changes in the composition of

the second session of the Board;

Proposal in respect of the approval of the change of members and chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Company;

Proposal in respect of the approval of the amendments to the rules of
procedure of the Strategy and Investment Committee;

Proposal in respect of the approval of the election of candidates for
independent non-executive Directors of the second session of the Board by

the Company;

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2018 interim results report of the
Company;

Proposal in respect of official launch of IPO of A shares; and

Proposal in respect of the approval of the election of the vice chairman of
the second session of the Board by the Company.
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise annual general BREBE(RAAER) BREREDABRERBEKX
meetings and extraordinary general meetings. Annual general meetings are held SHNEFRREAZ BRRERAFREEFEH
once every year and within six months after the conclusion of the previous —R - WERE— Iﬁﬂ%fﬁf‘;ﬁiﬁﬁ?éﬂ’ﬂﬁf

financial year. During the Reporting Period, a total of three general meetings were ARBT RBEHR  BMPXBRET =
held, including two extraordinary general meetings. The attendance of Directors is BERRKE HFEFZRABKRERE -

as follows: EMHFEERNAT :
Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of
Number of annual extraordinary
general meeting general meeting
RRBFERE HASEE WA=
HERE HERE
Name of Director EERZ =E Ve BRRH
Mr. Yang Tao BEEE 11 2/2
Mr. Yu Long FiExEE N/A 73 A N/A 8 A
(appointed on 12 December 2018) (RZB-—NE+R+TZBEZEE)
Mr. Dai Richeng B H KA 11 2/2
(resigned on 12 December 2018) (R=—ZE—N\FE+-_A+-HEE)
Ms. Li Bo £ g 171 2/2
Mr. He Yuanping o] B8 5€ A4 11 2/2
Mr. Yang Fang B EE 11 2/2
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi AL RS 5 A& 11 2/2
Mr. Kwok For Chi BRIF XL A 1/1
(resigned on 13 June 2018) (RZZE—NFNAT=ZHEE)
Mr. Hu Song HAMA S A 11 2/2
Mr. Ma Shihao FmLt 171 212
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BRI E N/A 7~ i F 11
(appointed on 13 June 2018) (R=ZZE—N\FAT=BEZHE)
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities as Directors of
the Company, and the mode of operation, business activities and development of
the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that newly
appointed Directors have appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and are fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. During the Reporting
Period, Directors of the Company have participated in the training about
“Obligations of Directors of Listing Companies” conducted by the legal advisers.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company constantly arranges
internal seminars and provides reading materials on relevant topics to Directors,
and all Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, apart from provision of general
introduction for newly appointed Directors, the Company also arranged the
Directors, Supervisors and relevant senior management members to participate in
a training seminar on “Duties of Directors of Companies Listed in Hong Kong”
on 13 June 2018 hosted by the Company’s legal adviser, with a view to raise
the level of standard operations among the Board and senior management of the

Company.

Mr. Yang Tao, Ms. Li Bo, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong, Mr. Hu Song, Mr. Ma Shihao, Mr.
Zhu Zhen, Mr. Tan Hairui, Ms. Zhang Ling, Mr. Liu Xujun and Mr. Wang Yong
have participated in relevant training programs and have provided the relevant
records to the Company. The Directors develop and update their knowledge and
skills through participation in the training programs, which in turn ensure that
they could make suitable contribution to the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer are separate
and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in the Articles of
Association. Mr. Yang Tao serves as chairman in the second session of the Board,
and Mr. Yu Long serves as chief executive officer. The chairman is elected by a
majority vote of all Directors, and the chief executive officer is nominated and
appointed by the Board.
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The Chairman places great emphasis on the communication with the independent
non-executive Directors. The chairman holds meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors at least once every year, in respect of development strategy,
corporate governance, operational management, at which no executive Director is
present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors may speak freely
at the Board meetings and actively participate in the discussions of significant
decision making in the Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The
Company had established four Board committees, being the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Compliance Committee and the Audit
Committee.

(1). Nomination Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:
reviewing and monitoring the structure, size, composition and diversity
of members of the Board in light of the Company’s strategy; identifying
suitably qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board to
be new Board members; reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on individuals nominated to be Directors by Shareholders; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and reviewing
and monitoring the implementation of diversity policy of Board members of
the Company. Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the second session of the Nomination
Committee consists of one non-executive Director, Mr. Yang Tao (as
chairman) and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu Song and
Mr. Ma Shihao.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the Company
had held three meetings, to discuss the nomination and appointment
matters of Directors of the second session of the Board of the Company,
and review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. At such meetings,
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong was nominated as a candidate for an independent non-
executive Director of the second session of the Board, Mr. Huang Yi, an
employee representative of the Company, was nominated as a candidate
for a member of the Compliance Committee of the second session of the
Board, and Mr. Yu Long was nominated as a candidate for an executive
Director of the second session of the Board.
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The attendance record of the committee members are as follows: ZEgZREBHFERHENAT
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HERE,
Name of Director BEEMSR BEAE
Mr. Yang Tao HEEE 3/3
Mr. Hu Song AR % A& 3/3
Mr. Ma Shihao SHxREE 3/3

The Company had adopted a board diversity policy with a view to
achieving the diversity of the Board. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board
members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the possible contribution that the

selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for all Directors and senior management members
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; review and approval of the remuneration
proposals from the management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management members; and to advise Shareholders of the Company with
respect to the service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the second session of the Remuneration
Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr. Yang Fang and two
independent non-executive Directors Mr. Hu Song (as chairman) and Mr. Ma
Shihao.
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In 2018, the Remuneration Committee provided recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration and performance management policy
and framework for the Directors and senior management. Meanwhile, it
inspected and assessed the performance of duties by the Directors and
senior management and the annual performance. During the Reporting
Period, the Remuneration Committee of the Company had held the meeting

RZZF-N\F FHRESHNESM
BREEABNHMMAREERER
RENEZSRMHER R HE=R
MEREBRABNBETREBIREE
BRETRERFE  -RBREHAR - K
REAFHEEGHBT—RER  £8

once. The attendance record of the committee members are as follows: ZRRBZHRREENT
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HERE
Name of Director EEHE BEXE
Mr. Hu Song [ RS 11
Mr. Yang Fang e Dl 1/1
Mr. Ma Shihao SHxREE 11

Compliance Committee 3). EREES®

The principal responsibilities of the Compliance Committee are to conduct
independent investigation and make decisions on compliance matters
with respect to our business operations by authorization from the Board.
The Company has established the Compliance Committee to ensure the
operation of any projects acquired and operated by us are in compliance
with the Group’s internal control standards and the relevant PRC laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Compliance Committee of the
Company had held the meeting once, all the members were attended.

During the Reporting Period, the former Compliance Committee was
consisted of two executive Directors, Mr. Dai Richeng (as chairman) and
Mr. Yang Fang, three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Kwok For
Chi, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ma Shihao, and one employee representative
Supervisor, Ms. Yang Chuanyun. Pursuant to the announcement dated 13
June 2018 in relation to, among others, the appointment of Director and
changes in composition of the Board committees and the announcement
dated 12 December 2018 in relation to, among others, the appointment of
Director and changes in composition of the Board committees, upon the
changes, the Compliance Committee of the Board comprises two executive
Directors, Mr. Yu Long (as chairman) and Mr. Yang Fang, three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ma
Shihao, and one employee representative Supervisor, Mr. Huang Yi, with
effect from 12 December 2018.
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Audit Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, including making recommendations on
appointing or changing the external auditor and its terms of engagement;
reviewing and monitoring external auditor’'s independence and audit
process objectively; monitor the truthfulness, accuracy and integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts and half-
year report; oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system; and other matters that the Board
has authorized it to deal with. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee
have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the former Audit Committee was consisted
Kwok For Chi (as
chairman), Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ma Shihao. The former Audit Committee

of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.

has reviewed the audited financial information of 2017 of the Group for
the Reporting Period. The former Audit Committee has also discussed
matters with respect to the accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Company and internal control with senior management of the Company.
Pursuant to the announcement dated 13 June 2018 in relation to, among
others, the appointment of Director and changes in composition of the
Board committees, upon the changes, the Audit Committee of the second
session of the Board comprised three independent non-executive Directors,
Ma Shihao,
with effect from 13 June 2018. Upon the changes, the Audit Committee

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (as chairman), Mr. Hu Song and Mr.

reviewed the unaudited interim condensed financial information of 2018 of

the Group.
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In 2018, the Audit Committee of the Company had held the meeting

twice, to review the annual report 2017,

Company, to propose the payment of dividends, and to discuss and make

recommendations on matters such as internal control and internal audit

procedures. During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the committee

members are as follows:

interim report 2018 of the

RZZE-N\F  ARABEREEGHE
TTMREZH BHBEHATRAA-F

—tFERE ZE-NFIFER
FEBARERSREAMERE  AE

S
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HA - ZE@ZKBHELENT

il

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERE

Name of Director BEEHSR BEXE

Mr. Kwok For Chi BRIEZE LA 11

(resigned on 13 June 2018) (R=ZFE—NEFXA+=ZB&1FE)

Mr. Hu Song RN 2/2

Mr. Ma Shihao B xEE 2/2

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BTk AE 11
(appointed on 13 June 2018) (RZZE-NEFERA+=BEZE)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEREREBEABNTMH

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating

policies on remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the

remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2018 are

set out in Note 39 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the remuneration

paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors) by bands for the year

ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

ARABREHRBITAEEASRERAENS @N
BERZIEARAZEHAENREF - B=E
—NE+ A=+ -BULFERESY @HE’]
EACE AN E E R

RIBEEERTREBISE  TRHEIBE

—E-N\E+=A *‘T‘—Elﬂ:iféiﬁﬁf"ﬂgﬂ
DEXFTEREBAB(TBEES)NFH

Number of individuals

Remuneration bands (RMB) FHER(ARY) A¥™
Nil to 1,000,000 % 1,000,0007T 2
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001t 2 1,500,0007T 2
1,500,001 and above 1,500,001 7T & A & 3
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Directors
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue its operation as a going

concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company'’s Financial Statements, which were put to the Board for approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that effective environmental, social and corporate governance
("ESG") management policies are crucial to the sustainability of the Group's
business. As such, the Group proactively enhances its understanding of the
latest laws and regulations and the best practices both within and outside the
PRC, which are relevant to the Group’s business, as well as its management
approach and management system. As a responsible corporation, the Group is
also committed and dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental and social
standards.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to its
business, including but not limited to health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands that a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. To that end, it has
encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.
The Group also maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services

to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

An ESG report (the “ESG Report”) has been prepared with reference to Appendix
27 ESG report Guide to the Listing Rules. The report presents our contributions
to sustainable development during the Reporting Period, and covers the major
environmental and social policies, environmental indicators of our Group, measures
adopted for reducing emissions by the Group and the relevant achievements of
the Group. The ESG Report is set out on page 223 to 240 in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management and
internal control system to safeguard the Shareholder’s investments and the
Company’s assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis with the support of the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal audit system and the risk management and internal control system of the
Company and its subsidiaries, including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training

programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries was
effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities
for the Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” from
page 86 to 93 of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
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is set out below: AN kBRI F B -

Amount

o

RMB’000

AR®B TR

Fee for audit services Bt RE W E 7,250

Fee for non-audit services B IRS  B 700

Total fees BRMEE 7,950
The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit services and REBRBREHAIED 7 E X Ea0 R M

non-audit services during the Reporting Period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential to enhance investor relations and investors understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions. The general
meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face communication
between the Board and the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding more than 10%
(individually or together with others) of Shares of the Company shall be entitled
to request for an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting according to the
following procedures:

(1) Upon signing one or several written requests with the same content and
format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the aforesaid Shareholders
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting. Concerning the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with
the law, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply with
a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon receipt of the proposal.
Shares held by the above Shareholders who made the requests shall be
calculated as at the date of submitting the written request.

(2)  If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within five days upon
making the Board decision. Any changes made to the original request in the

notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.

(3) If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal,
Shareholders individually or together holding more than 10% of the Shares
are entitled to request the Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an

extraordinary general meeting or class meeting.

(4) I the supervisory committee agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon receiving the requests. Any changes made to the original

request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.
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If the supervisory committee does not issue the notice of general meeting
within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the Supervisory
Committee not convening and not holding the general meeting. Then
the Shareholders who individually or together hold more than 10% of
the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days may convene and hold the
meeting themselves. Before publicly announcing the resolution(s) of the
general meeting, the convening Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of
the Shares. When the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general
meeting and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities regulatory
authority where the Company is located and relevant stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually or together
holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad-hoc proposals in writing to
the convener of the general meeting ten days before the holding of the general
meeting. The convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the
ad-hoc proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to
communicate with the Company:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716

Company website: www.yunnanwater.cn

E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by the law.
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AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

On 13 June 2018, the Company passed a resolution at the 2018 annual
general meeting to approve the amendments to Articles of Association, which
was effective on 13 June 2018. On 12 December 2018, the Company passed
a resolution at the 2018 second extraordinary general meeting to approve the
amendments to Articles of Association, which was effective on 12 December
2018. The amended Articles of Association was published on the website of the
Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo has been the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in each financial year. Mr. Li provided his training
records to the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by attending courses on company secretary functions, accounting
system and Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.
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To the Shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 221,
which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
o The notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

3 Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model

3 Recoverability of trade receivables

Key Audit Matter

BN BAM R S

FRESNTSE
MREAFEERBERMANEXZHANE - RBR
HAFEAHYBHRROBEARSEENS
HomUERRERMBFERAHUBR
REHABREETREREN - RATEYHE
LEFRHEBNER -

HMEF R BIORRESFEBLOT

s REBEFBHALELRFTHNEREEREN
FEYFRIR R A EER M &

o EUERFR T @t

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

REETEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model
BREFFRERF TN EREERENBERRENRANERNGE

Refer to note 2.12(a)(i) for the accounting policy of service concession
arrangements under financial asset model, note 4(a) for the critical accounting
estimates and judgements involved, and note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements for the receivables under service concession arrangements.
[RBFACLERHTHECREEELNEBESTREFLHE 0B IRKM
T2.120)) EE G EFNAEZL2HMT4@) ARBRBRALELHET
BY & WK TE 58 2 B B 520 -

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with
certain governmental authorities or their designators (the “Grantors”) under
Build-Operate-Transfer arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer arrangements
in respect of its wastewater treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment
services. Certain of these service concession arrangements are accounted for
using “financial asset” model while others are accounted for using “intangible
asset” model. For the Group’s service concession arrangements under financial
asset model, the fair value of receivables and revenue recognised are derived
from valuation in which a number of critical assumptions were used. As at 31
December 2018, the carrying amount of receivables under service concession
arrangements amounted to RMB4,223.1 million, which accounted for 13% of
the Group's total assets.
ESEEEFELBUTHBSRERETER (TR T AR )5 K8 B\ K & & BE R
BRENER — B — BXIZHRBRX — B —BXI%H L7
ZHERBEHEELH - EXREN LD RBEALLELHRREREER
BRE  HBRORBEACLERHEREVEERUZE - EXRENIRBEF
BERFTHEREERULNEBRFTIERRA - EATEARKESL - Z%5H
BEATZHBRER R-Z-—/\F+-A=+—H EEERBEITLE
ZHTHEKRERASEAARKL2231BET  WEELENI3% °

EMNESNNEERARETEE

With respect to valuation and revaluation for
the service concession arrangements under
financial asset model undertaken during the
year, we assessed the methodologies used
by the external valuer and evaluated the
independence, competence and capabilities
of the external valuer.
ARAFEHRBEFLCLERYE TSR
BEEIETOMERSER - HMFTE T I
BB AT 4 B2 A B 75 0% DA R o B3R 5T 1 B 9 98
TMREEBERS -

We selected samples of service concession
arrangements under financial asset model for
testing. The key procedures included:
BPERBEACLELRETNEREER
RETTHENR TERFEE -

1. Examining the agreements between
the Group and the Grantors.
BMEREEEEARTAESHNAL -
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEANBEANEERREBESEH

BREETEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model (Cont’d)
BRERARERF TN EREERDNBERRENRANERNG 2 (F)
Management has engaged an external valuer to perform the valuation for
those service concession arrangements under financial asset model at initial
recognition, and to perform revaluation when there were indicators that the
critical assumptions in the initial valuation have been significantly affected and
deviated subsequent to initial recognition. Such valuation and revaluation were
determined based on the forecasted cash flows to be derived from the related
projects which involved critical judgements and assumptions including but
not limited to the effective interest rate, forecasted unit price of service fee,
operating costs and profit margins of the operating services. With reference to
the valuation and revaluation performed by the external valuer, management
determined the amount of receivables and revenue to be recognised for service
concession arrangements under financial asset model during the year, and the
subsequent measurement of receivables and revenue.
AEEP*T%%%%%%%W%H@ TR T eMEEREE EHRER
HEITHE BEEADKRKRAVNABARNGEMRKANBRERBRRXEEERE
fl: AETER ZEHEREMIZEERNREFALLLHNRS R -
Fﬁﬁ&ﬁ’]ég#wﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ“mﬂ%ﬁ PRUBEFBEEX REENTEREE -
ERARELRBOEMNE - REIFFEMNEELRER  ERERTE
%éiﬁ%%%%%ﬁm%KﬁTm%ﬂﬁéﬁﬁmﬁw RIE R A AR
HENERETELHE -

We paid significant attention to this area due to the significance of receivables
and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements under financial
asset model and critical judgement involved in determining the critical
assumptions used in the valuation and revaluation.
ﬁﬁ%i%&%%ﬁ’IEE%%ﬁ%H@%ﬁﬁTmﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬂ%%W

REFMRACHEBRRER  ULBEEEENRTEREENELTERNE
%F“ﬁ&iﬁﬂ“°

Testing the reasonableness and
appropriateness of critical assumptions
adopted in the cash flow forecasts,
mainly in relation to:

HBRERBAUMEANBERBRNE
BUHEREEMETIR T284

— sending confirmations to the
Grantors to confirm the current
unit price and the future price
incremental rate;
METAZEZRRNE  ZERS
BENRIFEBERRKRELNIG
RIBE

— assessing and analysing the
reasonableness of the operating
costs by comparing to the actual
costs of other existing service
concession arrangements of the
Group;
%mﬁxgﬁmﬁﬁm%%%

SRR BRAA -
ml ﬁ@M&$mA@ﬁ

— assessing and analysing the
profit margins of the operating
services by comparing with
the average profit margin of
the operating services of the
industry; and
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@wﬁ$m$ﬁ%

| 3= SRS AT E S RIS Y
%ﬂTmAﬁ& §53

—  assessing the effective interest
rate by reference to our
knowledge of the industry
and independent research on
external evidence.
HERTENRBITFELER
ZHTHEMEEEEFER
Mﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ@%%%
B iAE s EMITIREL
B o
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HREFEE EMNESONNEERRETSZE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model (Cont‘d)
BRERSTFLCEZSATHNEREERENERKENRANEING 2 (F)

We also challenged management’s
assessment of whether the subsequent
measurement of receivables and revenue
recognised for the service concession
arrangements under financial asset model
should be subject to revaluation by
comparing the actual outcome, if available,
with the critical assumptions applied in the
valuation in previous years and assessing
the potential impact of reasonably possible
changes in the critical assumptions.
BT TEREERNRBETELELH
THERMEERLURSHZEETEINA
B FRPIEMEIE 7B E S AT R R # R
BNEBERERENUNIFEGEMEANE
FUEITELE - WAT A AT Re @ W B RRE £
BEZENERE -

Based on our audit work, we found the
critical assumptions used by management on
the service concession arrangements under
financial asset model to be consistent with
the evidence that we obtained.
BEBEBRMNETTE BMNRAETEERR
BRAKERHETHSREERAEMFEAR
WERBREERMMENEFEFER 2 -
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Key Audit Matter

BREETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEANBEANEERREBESEH

Recoverability of trade receivables

JE WK R 0 B9 T [ U

Refer to note 4(b) for the critical accounting estimates and judgements involved,
and note 23 to the consolidated financial statements for trade receivables.

B EE G AR M A EF 286 0 M5 MR M b B RE23

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade receivables amounted to
RMB4,494.9 million, which accounted for 14% of the Group’s total assets.
RZZB-N\E+ZA=+—RH ESERKEFINEEDE R AKKE4L494.9
BET LWEEHATENI4% °

The identification of impairment events and the determination of the impairment
provision of trade receivables require the application of critical judgement by
management.

EEEHERETRESHNBINALRELEENHRFEZERERAL -

Management recognised the impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses rather than only incurred credit losses. These evaluations focused on the
customers’ settlement history and current ability to pay, and took into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operated.
EREEEANEHEEFEMAEERELENCEBERRARERE - ZFF
HEERBAITFNELAELHEREANXNEN YEREFAFRAKLE
FEORBRENSEER -

We paid significant attention to this area because management made critical
judgements over both timing of recognition of impairment and the estimation of
the amount of any such impairment.
BHMEFEBIZEAREEHNE IR E YRR FONEEFH R R R E
DREEOMEED T EXRAME -

We obtained an understanding of
management’s processes and controls over
credit risk management. This included the
identification of which receivables were
impaired and estimation of the impairment
provisions. We determined that we could rely
on these controls for the purposes of our
audit.
EMtHEREHRNERERERRRER
BRIZFI A EBIEFIET TR - ZZEREFNA
BB IR BB 5 R W RSO E S IE A
PR EEBEH G c MR RMET THE
i = Al RE 5% 5 N EBAE ) o

In addition, we selected samples to inquire
management for the details of their
evaluations and tested the underlying
information referenced by management,
which included comparing with external
evidence obtained from our independent
research on public available information of
the customers, performing ageing analysis,
examining the historical transactions and
settlement records of the customers, sending
confirmations to the customers and testing
of the subsequent settlements.

b - F AP EUE KRR A - mE IR B
R N JE BR % 5% 55 WRR SRR [ 451 AT Al Y
ERER  HZMERNARIIEERE : #£E6
BFRIBERNEYEEREFORHE
SREEERARR  RTREERERERRS
i BEEREKEREPHNELR G REERD
B mEMRIE P R R A R B R W
TR -

Based on the above, we found that the
judgement applied by management on their
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables was consistent with the evidence
we obtained.

B ERE TIE - MR REEEHEWER
SREY AT [B] WM 1 H BT A B AR AR A T - BRE
PIERGH B BIE — 5 -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

BN BAM R S
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We

report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do

not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

92

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Pang Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

£ PR 25 B bR & W 3

=

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR¥BT R ARKETT
Revenue g &= 6,255,628 5,142,242
Cost of sales 5 65 KR (4,757,619) (3,837,518)
Gross profit EX 1,498,009 1,304,724
Other income H A 6 144,668 309,566
Other gains — net Hfh Uy 25 0F 5 7 10,541 57,354
Selling expenses HER X 8 (43,884) (39,524)
Administrative expenses THRAX 8 (395,120) (431,477)
Impairment losses on financial assets TRMEEREBEER (25,510) —
Operating profit & A 1,188,704 1,200,643
Finance income A& WA 10 99,616 —
Finance expenses MBHEX 10 (678,128) (521,481)
Finance costs — net AL & BN F R 10 (578,512) (521,481)
Share of profit of investments accounted for using Az A AR EEIRE
the equity method i Al 16 34,034 23,082
Profit before income tax P 48 Bt A % A 644,226 702,244
Income tax expenses Fris i 11 (147,511) (158,244)
Profit for the year F A=A 496,715 544,000
Other comprehensive income Hihsir & W=
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss B D EE B A H A
— Exchange differences on translation of - REBIINEBNER
foreign operations HhE = (172,741) 148,011
— Share of other comprehensive income of - UEmEgEAR
a joint venture accounted for using BiE—XRE&
the equity method Hihtré W= — 3,731
(172,741) 151,742
Total comprehensive income for the year, RBREFAGRESREEE
net of tax 323,974 695,742
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

A BHE R R A IS

Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-BA=+t—-BLtEE

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—+tfF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR¥BT R ARKETT
Profit attributable to: MTATEMAER :
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company -ARRAEBRRR 397,753 422,812
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments -KABRIAREA 83,194 85,444
— Non-controlling interests - JEERER 15,768 35,744
496,715 544,000
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTATEGEGRERSEE
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company - RNRE B R 225,012 574,554
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - KABARITAHEEBA 83,194 85,444
— Non-controlling interests - JEfR R 15,768 35,744
323,974 695,742
Earnings per share for profit attributable to ARAREBRBRRR
ordinary shareholders of the Company EEEMNNESREF
(expressed in RMB per share) (LEBRAR¥ETERTR)
— Basic and diluted - EARR#E 12 0.333 0.354

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Lt & pHiE s I E AR S U st 3K FE B2 4 RE Y
ot —OFBIAE ©
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —TE—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR¥ET T ARB T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BEKERE 17 2,622,288 2,379,444
Investment properties "EME 18 25,779 26,692
Land use rights - 5F A A 19 182,831 189,751
Receivables under service concession arrangements fRFGEFHFLLLHTH
& W58 1R 20 4,165,248 5,058,220
Amounts due from customers for contract works BRTRERE P RIE = 260,694
Contract assets BREE 5 4,277,955 —
Intangible assets BEEE 21 10,153,155 8,508,853
Investments accounted for using the equity NERZEARNIEE
method 16 661,042 623,028
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEe/RmEE = 4,675
Financial asset at fair value through other LAFEEBHEESTA
comprehensive income HMGaWanemEE 4,675 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H e WK IE 23 13,771 30,214
Prepayments TR IE 23 942,875 1,695,626
Deferred income tax assets BEFSMEE 32 314,132 314,869
23,363,751 19,092,066
Current assets RENEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements AR 7§45 25 & & Z HE T &Y
& W5k 18 20 57,852 52,928
Inventories FE 22 102,089 45,630
Amounts due from customers for contract works ERITRERE P RIE = 405,060
Contract assets BHEE 5 338,197 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e W R IE 23 5,763,860 4,350,247
Prepayments TEA BB 23 695,498 128,899
Restricted cash TR EIAHE S 24 123,043 124,292
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 25 2,214,352 2,896,927
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A AF(EE 8 EHE & A
ERMemEE 4,320 —
Derivative financial instruments MEERIE 10,884 —
9,310,095 8,003,983
Total assets HmEE 32,673,846 27,096,049
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —TE—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR T ARB T T
EQUITY Rz
Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders AAFEBRBRRELES
of the Company
Share capital & A 26 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves EH A F 27 2,197,015 2,331,308
Retained earnings REAEF 1,166,594 1,012,044
4,556,822 4,536,565
Perpetual capital instruments KABATE 28 1,200,000 1,200,000
Non-controlling interests e 1,177,450 949,384
Total equity R 6,934,272 6,685,949
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Borrowings R 29 11,178,992 9,349,422
Trade and other payables Z 5 I H th fE 1t ;I8 30 3,257,835 1,272,984
Deferred income iR & W g 31 692,361 633,892
Deferred income tax liabilities REMSHBE 32 1,048,241 970,786
Provision BE 33 349,734 263,487
16,527,163 12,490,571
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—8

2018 2017
—E-N\EF B4 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T AREEF T

Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings BN 29 5,755,534 4,438,574
Trade and other payables B REMERMNKE 30 3,017,220 3,255,709
Amounts due to customers for contract works AHNTIRENEPHRE — 5,023
Contract liabilities EHEE 5 119,409 —
Current income tax liabilities REBFEHAE 32 317,748 220,223
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 2,500 =
9,212,411 7,919,529
Total liabilities wesd 25,739,574 20,410,100
Total equity and liabilities EnNEELEE 32,673,846 27,096,049

o

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the LiieHEEABRREEBANGE— &
accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 94 to 221 were approved by the Board of FOUBZRE2NENHBERRER_Z—NF
Directors of the Company on 27 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf. A ttEtREARRAIEESHE  WHT
FIANLRFTEEE -

Yu Long Yang Fang
T Bh
Director Director
EF =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
APt 2B

Attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the Company
ARRERRBRREMN
Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-

Share Other  Retained instruments controlling Total
capital reserves  earnings Total KAEZX interests equity
BRA&  HttE REEA @i IARBEA FERESR R

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARWTR ARBTRT ARBTR AR¥TR AR®TRT AR®TR

(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)

(HisE26)  (By&E27) (y=E28)
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-ZE-N\F

—A—BM&eH 1,193,213 2,331,308 1,012,044 4,536,565 1,200,000 949,384 6,685,949
Total comprehensive income FRGAKBLE
for the year

Profit for the year FREA — — 397,753 397,753 83,194 15,768 496,715
Currency translation differences ERAEES —  (172,141) —  (172,741) — —  (172,7141)

— (172,741) 397,753 225,012 83,194 15,768 323,974

Transactions with owners in DEEABREEEA

their capacity as owners ETHRS
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR - - - — — 189,018 189,018
Capital contribution by FiERERHE

non-controlling interests = = = = = 199,984 199,984
Acquisition of additional interests U BB B 22 ] Y

in subsidiaries (note 15) FoMER (ME15) — (49,637) — (49,637) —  (152,204)  (201,841)
Transfer to statutory reserve BELEHRE — 88,085 (88,085) = — — -
Dividends for the year ended HE-Z—+fF

31 December 2017 +TZA=+-RILFE

& & = = (155,118) (155,118) — — (155,118)

Distribution to holders of perpetual ~ 2R FRABARTE

capital instruments HEA — — — = (83,194) = (83,194)
Distribution to non-controlling AIETIEERE R

interests — — - - = (24,500) (24,500)

= 38,448 (243,203)  (204,755) (83,194) 212,298 (75,651)

Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\&§
+t-R=+-BM&EH 1,193,213 2,197,015 1,166,594 4,556,822 1,200,000 1,177,450 6,934,272
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

N /oy
/\:%E:%

mm =

o

) K

Attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company
AR L ERBREER

Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-
Share Other Retained instruments  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total XAER interests equity
BRA HufEE REAN @it IARAA FERER R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTT ARBTT AR®Tr AR®TR ARETR
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
GEZIE2Y)) (Fit5£28)
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-ZE-tF
—A-AMEeH 1,193,213 2,247,305 800,051 4,240,569 2,000,000 1,005,890 7,246,459
Total comprehensive income FRiGANERE
for the year
Profit for the year ERE T = = 422,812 422,812 85,444 35,744 544,000
Share of other comprehensive income bARE&E N BRAEEIREE
of investments iz & W
accounted for using the equity
method — 3,731 — 3,731 — — 3,731
Currency translation differences EEBREEE = 148,011 = 148,011 = = 148,011
— 151,742 422,812 574,554 85,444 35,744 695,742
Transactions with owners in their UHEABAFHEFEE A
capacity as owners ETHRES
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB AR = = = = = 91,451 91,451
Capital contribution by FiERERNLE
non-controlling interests — — — — — 143,000 143,000
Acquisition of additional interests UK EE I B 22 5] M BB HME 25
in subsidiaries (note 15) (F=E15) —  (159,237) —  (159,237) —  (305367)  (464,604)
Issuance of perpetual capital BITKABARIER
instruments — — — — 1,200,000 — 1,200,000
Redemption of perpetual capital BEXAEARIA
instruments = = = — (2,000,000) — (2,000,000)
Transfer to statutory reserve HEELTHE = 91,498 (91,498) — — — —
Dividends for the year ended HE-Z—1F
31 December 2016 TZRA=+t—-BIFER
B8 = —  (119,321)  (119,321) = —  (119,321)
Distribution to holders of perpetual 2k F K AZ AT R
capital instruments BEA — — — — (85,444) = (85,444)
Distribution to non-controlling AIETIEERE R
interests — — — — — (21,334) (21,334)
— (67,739) (210,819) (278,558) (885,444) (92,250) (1,256,252)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-ZE-t&
+-A=+-AMH&H 1193213 2,331,308 1,012,044 4,536,565 1,200,000 949,384 6,685,949

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

afftRETRER

Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-BA=+t—-BLtEE

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR¥BT R ARKETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNESRE
Cash used in operations LEFTAR S 34 (2,438,495) (1,256,945)
Income tax paid EFEH (103,338) (170,954)
Interest paid ERFE (742,802) (563,828)
Net cash outflow from operating activities KERPHRENEFHE (3,284,635) (1,991,727)
Cash flows from investing activities REZTBNEERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment, M BB REE - L
land use rights and other intangible assets 1§EHTE&EWJHH7§FH% (312,241) (167,501)
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries, WEE I A &) MR EUS 8
net of cash acquired R& (277,705) (1,416,335)
Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiaries Uiz B BT B8 A &) E‘ﬁﬁiﬁ b (49,000) (530,600)
Refund of prepayments for acquisition of g1 N =INCISER N BN
subsidiaries 149,800 91,700
Capital injection to an associate mEtEREEE — (49,000)
Capital injection to a joint venture AeEERNEEE — (539,000)
Payments for funds granted to a joint venture mMaEERAREESMNR — (687,100)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARAMBRE — 130,000
Others — net Hifh— F8& 17,853 20,827
Net cash outflow from investing activities BEERHBE SR FE (471,293) (3,147,009)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

afRETRER

Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-BA=+t—-BLtEE

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARKEFTT
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHHNRLRE
Capital injections by non-controlling interests R ERTA 199,984 143,000
Proceeds from borrowings & P15 5K I18 9,576,917 11,570,189
Repayments of borrowings BEMER (6,454,737) (6,330,805)
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual MXABATERAEAIZMNE
capital instruments 203 (84,001) (42,638)
Dividends paid B E (155,118) (119,321)
Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests MIFERER N HDIR (24,500) (21,334)
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital BT KABNT EREBRE
instruments — 1,200,000
Repayments of a perpetual capital instrument BEXAERIH — (2,000,000)
Payments for acquisition of additional interests Uz B Fff /8 /2 &) #9 SHSME 25 B9
in subsidiaries (NN — (464,604)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEFHREERAFHE 3,058,545 3,934,487
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReERASEEYRLFE (697,383) (1,204,249)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning MEREFEFVNHEE R
of the financial year ReFZEEBY 2,896,927 4,129,921
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and HE MBS EEBYWIEH
cash equivalents Iz (E598) 14,808 (28,745)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERAEENREZEEY 2,214,352 2,896,927

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"”) on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the Company was
converted from a limited liability company into a joint stock limited
liability company with registered capital of RMB787,880,000. The
Company’s H shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May 2015 with the total share
capital subsequently increased to RMB1,193,213,000.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the development, design, construction, operation and maintenance
of municipal water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste
treatment facilities in the PRC. The address of its registered office is
Yunnan Water 2089 Haiyuan North Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming,
Yunnan Province, the PRC.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless
otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) measured at fair value.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

—REBMKREINEE

1.1 —REH
ERABEERGARAAR =
E——FXAZ+—BEFREA
REMBE(HE]) ZrEAFM
Ky - RZTE—WFELA=Z+=
B AArHBEREF A ER
BRNERAR  FMERBA
R # 787,880,000 7T ° 2N A AIHAR
ER-_ZT—HFRA-_++tHHE
EREBERIAER QA ER
Lt EBBRABEEARE
1,193,213,0007¢ ©

KRB AB—REEEZRDA -
ARRIREMBAR(HBIALE
BDEZEFRELEHMHEK -
V5K B B K [E BE e IR AR e &Y B
BRECER -EEREE-
EaMEmitbytrerEHERE
B PR = ¥ B R 2 =08 R I B
20895k ErRF KT o

ZEUBHREAARETAR
B2 BIEZEFHBURE

R
FTEETBEME

WHERERRZE A B REM
RAMMWETESHBRREIER -BEARA
Sh o BERRTDNMZINABEFER
HRERER FBHERERDASAEHE
(BEARDAREKNB QA BR
% o

21 2 E%E
REEWE G Y B RKRTREN
FERNEEYBHRSER(F
AR BREEN]) REE R A K
PIEe2EMWERERE - 40
MBMRIDIEE LR AERE
HRATVEFENETEREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

2.

104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
depicted in note 4.

(a) New Standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

2.

TEETREREE(A)

2.1

fm BB ()
MHBEHRDERBBREREE
ARE BT ARAETEER
REMEE  TEXREEERER
REBSFBEABREDELH
B o R B2 E T R AE R
MEE - RRERGFEEHY
BREMEBEANEE - HRN
Bt 3E4 -

(a) ZEBFRHHFET »
A5 ET BRI R E R 2

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations for the first time

for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 9
BAENBEREENFWR
HKFRS 15

BBMBREERE155%

HK (IFRIC) 12 (Amendments)
ER(BRETBRERELZE®) R 125 (BATA)
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB G HERE 285 (18R] &)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

BB G ERIE 405 (BETA)

HK (IFRIC) 22
EE(BRVBRERBEE®)E22%
Improvements to HKFRSs

7 8 B % i 2E R RO iU

#Z
AEEE T N\F—HA—
FRBMNFEERSHERE
RTHIFETLER - ERNEET
R

Financial instruments

eHMIA

Revenue from contracts with customers
REEEPIIMAHHKA

Service concession arrangements

PR 75 45 A & & Bt

Investments in associates and joint ventures
REERRRELERANRE

Transfers to investment property

BEREME

Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
HSNERZ Z RIANKE

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle
ERVBRELEN T -—NFE T - FEHNFESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHTHERBEE)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 21 REEE(E)

(b) New Standards, amendments to standards and (b) 7<% & 5 7k FRA B9 57

interpretations not yet adopted by the Group il AEASETERIR E
R % &

Certain new standards, amendments to standards and R-ZE—N\E+_A=1+—
interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for HREHEAAEBERERS
31 December 2018 reporting periods and have not been early THIE /AR A A ETRT 2281 -
adopted by the Group. ERIMIERT R -
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation’
BB EREERIER (BFTAX) ERBHEZRMERE T
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement’
BB G EAFE195 (BFTA) SHEHEIE - SR B E
HKFRS 16 Leases'
ERETBREENFE 165 HE
HK (IFRIC) Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments’
ER(ARVBHRERBEES)— RBE2BK AEHEENTREN
HKAS 28 (Amendment) Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures'
BB G HEAE 285 (BRI A) REBERAHEE X RAER'
Improvements to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle’
B IS 2 B B U ERMBBREEN - -—AFE T -+ FAHNFEICE
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Material?
EREGHENFE IR RBEBGHERNESR(BFIAR) EZ TR
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business?
BB BREELEIFRUEFTA) E R HE &2
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and

its associate or joint venture?

BREPBRELNFEIOCRRBESTLERNFE28E REFRABECERALLEZHANEELERTE

(EFTA)
1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 1. m;giniiﬁ - EI s
ZIRR  FEERAER o
2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. 2. H@;?:%E—H - EI %
2R 2 FEERAER o
3. Effective date to be determined. 3. ERABEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B % R 2R MY 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(c) The Group’s assessment of the impact about
below new standards and interpretations that
are expected to be applicable to the Group is
as follows:

(i)  HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the
Group's operating leases. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of RMB32,733,000 representing 0.36% of the Group’s
current liabilities.

The Group's activities as a lessor are not material and
hence the Group does not expect any significant impact
on the financial statements. However, some additional

disclosures will be required from next year.

, ErKBIREARDBIR2AR Annual Report FEMRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(c) The Group’s assessment of the impact about
below new standards and interpretations that
are expected to be applicable to the Group is
as follows: (Cont'd)

(i)

(if)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will
not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption. Right-of-use assets for property leases
will be measured on transition as if the new rules had
always been applied. All other right-of-use assets will be
measured at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards and interpretations that
are not yet effective and would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and
HK (IFRIC) 12 (Amendments) Service concession arrangements on the
Group's financial statements.

(a)

Impact on the financial statements

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and HK(IFRIC) 12 (Amendments) were
generally adopted by the Group by the modified retrospective
approach without restating comparative information. As a result
of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies, certain
reclassifications and adjustments are therefore not reflected
in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017,
but are recognised in the opening balance of the consolidated
balance sheet on 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHTHEMEH)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd) 22 SFTBREE (A
(a) Impact on the financial statements (Cont'd) (a) %9‘%53‘ BFREPWE &
The following table shows the adjustments recognised for each TR ZEBHEBEER
individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the M - WEFHIITIZEH
changes have not been included. As a result, the sub-totals FHEMELE - Al - B2
and totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers BTN R TSR
provided. The adjustments are explained in more detail by SIBFEHTE - BEFAR
standard below. RIEAERN T AR -
31 December
2017 1 January
As originally HK (IFRIC) 12 2018
presented HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Restated
0
ZZ—tF NI FERE  (AREBRS —E-\E
+-A=t+-H R ERA  REBZEE) =f=[
(M 25) Fo% F155%  BNRRBITX) (EE350)
Consolidated balance sheet EHEEERR RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(extract) (F#) ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE
- Financial assets at fair value -UATEFER
through other comprehensive HEYTAER
income ("FVOCI") FRlaNER
BE — 4,675 — — 4,675
- Available-for-sale financial assets - ATt ESBEE 4,675 (4,675) - - -
- Contract assets -ANEE = = 260,694 1,729,534 1,990,228
- Amounts due from customers for - AXTRERZF
contract works SR 260,694 = (260,694) = -
— Receivables under service - RBRTEERH
concession arrangements TH N E 5,058,220 — — (1,729,534) 3,328,686
Current assets RBEE
- Contract assets -ANEE = = 405,060 15,703 420,763
~ Amounts due from customers for - AXTRERZF
contract works HE 405,060 = (405,060) = -
— Receivables under service - RBRHEERH
concession arrangements THERGE 52,928 — — (15,703) 37,225
Total assets BEE 27,096,049 = = = 27,096,049
Current liabilities RBEE
- Amounts due to customers for -ANIRER
contract works EPHE 5,023 = (5,023) = -
- Trade and other payables - -BHREMER
advances from customers HE—ZP#R 52,531 = (52,531) = -
- Contract liabilities -ANAE — — 57,554 - 57,554
Total liabilities HE R 20,410,100 — — — 20,410,100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)
(b) Adoption of HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets

and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,

impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 by the Group resulted in changes
in accounting policies and classification of financial assets.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9,

comparative figures of the Group have not been restated. The

new accounting policies are set out in note 2.15 below.

(i)

Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial assets held by the
Group and has classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.

Reclassification from available-for-sale financial
assets to FVOCI

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") changes in the fair value of its equity
investments previously classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, because the equity investments are held
as long-term strategic investments that are not expected
to be sold in the short to medium term.

Other than that, there were no changes to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

TEETHRERBE(A
22 EBEEH (H)

(b) Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(c)

110

(i) Impairment of financial assets and contract
assets
The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
("ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is
the case under HKAS 39. The Group has two types of
financial assets measured at amortised cost and contract
assets that are subject to HKFRS 9's new ECL model:

(b) FRAEEMBEHEE
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While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are
also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Adoption of HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts
with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains
control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct
the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction contracts” and related interpretations. The new
accounting policies are set out in Note 2.30 below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)
(c) Adoption of HKFRS 15 (Cont’d)

(i)

Impact of adoption

The Group elected to use a modified retrospective
approach for transition which allows the Group to
recognise the cumulative effects of initially applying
HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings in the 2018 financial year. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient for completed
contracts and did not restate the contracts completed
before 1 January 2018, referred to as open contracts,
thus the comparative figures have not been restated.

Reclassifications were made as at 1 January 2018 to be
consistent with the terminology used under HKFRS 15:

o Contract assets recognised in relation to
construction services were previously presented as
amounts due from customers for contract work;

o Contract liabilities for progress billing recognised
in relation to construction services were previously
presented as amounts due to customers to contract
work; and

3 Contract liabilities for advances from customers in
relation to water supply services and solid waste
treatment services were previously presented
as trade and other payables — advance from
customers.

Following the adoption of HKFRS 15, costs incurred
directly attributable to obtaining a contract, if
recoverable, are capitalised and recorded in contract
assets.

For contracts where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised facilities or
service exceeds one year, the transaction price is adjusted
for the effects of a financing component, if significant.
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2.

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(d) Adoption of HK (IFRIC) 12 (Amendments)

The adoption of HK (IFRIC) 12 (Amendments) by the Group
resulted in changes in accounting policies and classification of
receivables under a service concession arrangement.

For service concession arrangement under financial
asset mode/

During the construction periods, the Group recognises a
contract asset (note 2.13) and accounts for the significant
financing component in the arrangement. When the
construction services are completed, the contract asset would
be classified and measured as receivables under a service
concession arrangement accordingly.

For service concession arrangement under hybrid
model

The operator’s contract asset during the construction period
was divided into two components, a financial asset component
based on the guaranteed amount and an intangible asset for
the remainder. When the construction services are completed,
the two components of the contract asset would be classified
and measured as a financial asset and an intangible asset
accordingly.

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

2.3.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group is depicted in note 2.4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 23 BREANRREZSTER
(Cont’d) IR B (4&)
2.3.1 Subsidiaries (Cont’d) 231 /& 2 &) (4&)

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and consolidated balance sheet respectively.

2.3.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.3.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure

of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

23 KAEAREERRTER

(Cont’d) IR A (&)
2.3.4 Equity method 234 EmEIE

114

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary

to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy depicted in note
2.14.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHTHEMEH)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 23 BREANRREZSTER
(Cont’d) IR B (4&)
2.3.5 Changes in ownership interests 235 HEREZEE

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Business combinations

(a) Business combinations not under common

control

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for

the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

ii. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired

business

ii.  equity interests issued by the Group

iv.  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement, and

V. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the

subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable

assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Business combinations (Cont’d) 24 EXKE6H(E)
(a) Business combinations not under common (a) FEREFEZEH T EHE

control (Cont’d)
consideration transferred;

ii. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

iii. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at
the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

& of ()

FregsE (&
i. mwﬁﬁng@#
ThiEmeE &

ii. AR BEKEEEN
ER AR R Y B 2
B AF(E o

B P IRR A BRI B B FE
A FER  HERUEE
BR o fill 5z B R E R AT
BRI R BB EEFER
AV E - AEESEERNE
mPERSRERES -

ﬁ SR R ENEM B
EEC %Kﬁﬁ%%-@
ﬁﬁx“ﬁﬁﬁ PR IR
R H B E B8 A0 HT I8 2 3K F
o BRI M (R 1
A8 & BB BUS BB ELE
OB X - HARKED
@%%ﬁiiﬂELOEﬁ
REBAENSEAREE
M EERTE  AFE
EHNIERPRER

3756 of o BEBETT - A
W77 e Rl A M A E 7T
e R W BB BR T E R
WERRELRRAEBERT
B EMEZEENTEE
A B W as S BT IR N 1R 2 D R

o

Annual Report 2018 4 #4 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & #/k 1% & Bk 15 B R A 7 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

2.

118

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
group entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or
are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net basis within
other gains/(losses).

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions), and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E K #51& & ik (5 B R 2

(c) Group companies (Cont’'d)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,

as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Plants and buildings 20-50 years
Machinery 10-30 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Electronic equipment and others 5-10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction, which
is stated at actual construction cost less any impairment loss.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when completed

and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.14).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained
earnings.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of investment properties to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The estimated useful life is as follows:

Plants and buildings 30-50 years
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as depicted in note 2.14. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses

on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal

management purposes.

(b) Development expenditure

When the future economic benefits become apparent as
a project progresses into the development stage the costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are capitalised as
intangible assets when recognition criteria are fulfilled and tests
for impairment are performed annually. Other development
expenditures that do not meet those criteria are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as expenses are not recognised as assets in subsequent periods.

Capitalised development costs are transferred to technical

know-how when the assets are ready for use.

(c) Operating concessions

The detailed accounting policy of operating concessions is

depicted in note 2.12.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Intangible assets (Cont’d)
(d) Unfulfilled contract rights

(e)

(f)

Unfulfilled contract rights represent the fair value of unfulfilled
contracts in excess of the carrying value for unfulfilled
construction contracts acquired through business combination.

Licenses

Licenses represent the fair value of the operating permits of
solid waste treatment plants and water supply facilities acquired
through business combination.

Technical know-how and software
Acquired technical know-how and software are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire or through business

combination.

(g) Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Operating concessions 16-30 years
Unfulfilled contract rights 30 years
Licenses 5-54 years
Technical know-how and software 5-47 years

2.11 Land use rights

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for

land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate

the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining

lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter.

Land use rights

40-50 years
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”). The service concession arrangements
consist of Build-Operate-Transfer (the "BOT”) arrangements and
Transfer-Operate-Transfer (the “TOT"”) arrangements. Under the BOT
arrangements, the Group carries out construction work of the facilities
of the sewage and reclaimed water treatment, water supply or solid
waste treatment for the Grantors and receives in return a right to
operate the facilities of service project concerned for a specified
period of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in accordance with
the pre-established conditions set by the Grantors, the service project
should be transferred to the Grantors with nil consideration at the
end of the operation period. A TOT arrangement is similar to a BOT
arrangement, except that the Group pays consideration for the right
to operate the facilities of the wastewater treatment, water supply
and solid waste treatment that has been built.

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities as Grantors will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the facilities, and retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the facilities at the
end of the Service Concession Period. Each of these service concession
arrangements is governed by a contract and, where applicable,
supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the
relevant governmental authority that set out, inter alia, performance
standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered
by the Group, and specific obligations levied on the Group to restore
the facilities to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the
Service Concession Period and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor

(i)

Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model

A financial asset (receivables under a service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the Grantor for the construction
services rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor during the Service
Concession Period. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the Grantor contractually guarantees
to pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users of the public service and the specified or
determinable amounts. The financial asset (receivable
under a service concession arrangement) is accounted for
in accordance with the policy set out for financial assets
measured at amortised cost under note 2.15.

During the construction periods, the Group recognises a
contract asset (note 2.13) and accounts for the significant
financing component in the arrangement. When the
construction services are completed, the contract asset
would be classified and measured as receivables under a
service concession arrangement accordingly.

When the Group receives a payment during the
concession period, it will apportion such payment
between (i) a repayment of the financial asset (if any),
which will be used to reduce the carrying amount of
financial receivables on the consolidated Balance sheet, (ii)
interest income, will be recognised as revenue in profit or
loss and (iii) revenue from operating service in the profit
or loss. Revenue from operating service is calculated
based on cost plus a profit margin.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

(if)

(iii)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E K #51& & ik (5 B R 2

Service concession arrangements under
intangible asset model

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses and service. The
intangible asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible assets”
in note 2.10 above, which is amortised on a straight-line

basis over the Service Concession Period.

Revenue relating to operating service are accounted for
in accordance with the policy for note 2.30 “revenue
recognition” below. Costs for operating services are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Service concession arrangements under hybrid
mode/

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by
a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of

the consideration.

Therefore in this arrangement it is necessary to divide
the operator’s contract asset during the construction
period into two components, a financial asset component
based on the guaranteed amount and an intangible asset
for the remainder. When the construction services are
completed, the two components of the contract asset
would be classified and measured as a financial asset and
an intangible asset accordingly.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

QNBHETEE R (H)

(b) Construction and upgrade services

The fair value of the construction and upgrade service under
the concession arrangement is calculated as the estimated total
construction cost plus a profit margin. The profit margins are
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based on prevailing
market rate applicable to similar construction services rendered
in similar location at date of agreement.
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Revenue relating to construction and upgrade services are RERABREEENE
accounted for in accordance with the policy in note 2.30. AR KT 2,309 R 5

(c) Contractual obligations to restore the (c) LEEZEREZ—F
infrastructure to a specified level of A2 RREAFHE
serviceability HEAF

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as
a condition of its licences, that is (i) to maintain the sewage
and reclaimed water treatment and water distribution plants
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or (ii)
to restore the plants to a specified condition before they
are handed over to the Grantor at the end of the service
concession arrangements. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the sewage and reclaimed water treatment
and water distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out
for note 2.28 “provisions” below.

2.13 Contract assets and contract liabilities
Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has

an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises

the related revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the

consideration for the promised goods and services in the contract,

then the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract asset.

Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised
when a customer pays consideration, or is contractually required
to pay consideration and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. For a single contract with
the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract

liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.13 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Cont’d)

2IBENEERENERE(A)

128

An impairment of a contract asset is measured, presented and

disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset under note 2.15.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer within contract assets if the Group expects to recover
those costs.

Generally, the Group receives advances from its customers which are
short-term in nature. The advances previously included in trade and
other payables are reclassified to contract liabilities.

2.14 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets QIS REREMMERMEE
2.15.1 Classification 2151948

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in

the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the

time of initial recognition to account for FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investment when and only when its

business model for managing those assets changes.

2.15.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
2.15.3 Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its

fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value

through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction

costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit

or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

@)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEETHHREME(EF
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d) 2QI5RENHMBERMEE (£F)
2.15.3 Measurement (Cont’d) 2153 512 (48)
(@) Debt instruments (Cont’d) (a) /ﬁffsz (&)

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of MNAFEFEZ
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial BEZFHF A

assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are

H b &5 & W
@ B ERE
EHRERE

taken through OCI, except for the recognition REEE2®E
of impairment gains or losses, interest income EZEE
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are ZEEEBRS
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial mEEEXM
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss e RS-
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from Al LA A & 5t
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other EHEHEZH
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial A H 45 & W
assets is included in finance income using the wmErEC BRE
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange BEZET AR
gains and losses are presented in other gains/ fitb 47 & W 5=
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented M1 = P
as separate line item in the statement of profit or VERER &
loss. g EE NE
Wz R Hh BE UL
wmRIEB®
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R Bt

BB ER
ENOBEER
= 7 R H U
@ /(& 18) +
BR-ZE®
BEEZHNE

N f?ﬁgf‘J
%iaﬂ')\v&ﬂﬁ
WA o S EE U
wmREEZ
REME
(B8B)H - m
B R AR
BakxPER
BNIEBSR ©

Annual Report 2018 4F E % YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k %18 & M5 B R A & 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B % R 2R MY 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHERBEAE
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d) QIS RERHEMERMEE (&)
2.15.3 Measurement (Cont’d) 2153 5 E (4&)

(a) Debt instruments (Cont’d) (a) BEELA(E
. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for e LAFEFE=E
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. BE#FHF A
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is BE: 54
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in B R IEE
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/ AR FEE
(losses) in the period in which it arises. 2 B EZFET

ANE 4R &
w2 EE T
AFEFEER
H#FHi AB
wmErE o BER
KAFEFE

BEEZHITA
BEFAEZE
BEREZ W=
FBEREBESD
EAEHERE
HMENRE
W (& 8)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d) 2QISRERHEMERMEE (&)
2.15.3 Measurement (Cont’d) 2153 518 (48)

(b) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group'’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement
of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

2.15.4 Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for receivables under service concession arrangements, trade
receivables and contract assets. Impairment on other receivables
is measured as either 12-month ECL or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
2.15.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December

QIS RERHMWSREE (&)
LSSBEZE—FE—tF+=

134

2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the Group's previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories:

A=1+—-—HERHNE
it B

AEEEEHEREEN S
JEEAHOH - BE IR
B EAR o Btk - LB
BRHKE RREARELE
BB HBRAR -

HE-_ZTZ—+t+=A
=+—8  AEEZHESR

BEDAUTER
loans and receivables, and ERKREWRFIE
i. available-for-sale financial assets. i, AtHESmEE.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(@) Measurement
The measurement at initial recognition did not change an
adoption of HKFRS 9, see description above.

DEITARTBARENE
WME ° &% BRRVIFER
RETHERENHR -

(a) it E
RGN &
PR BB AR B B B TS R
EEBFEOH - B

SRt e
Subsequent to the initial, recognition loans and REVHERE - B
receivables were subsequently carried at amortised cost LERRBETIFERE
using the effective interest method. B ) 2K R 8H K AR
P B -
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried AHEEEMmEEE
at fair value. Changes in the fair value of monetary and BIENFEINEE -5
non-monetary securities classified as available for sale are BAUTHEIENEK
recognised in other comprehensive income. MIEEBELFNATE
BEBHNEMES
mHP R -
When securities classified as available for sale are sold EERRTHLEN
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments BEWEHTORE
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated Al ERPRERRANR
statement of profit or loss as “other gains — net”. AATFERAENS O

Available-for-sale equity instruments that do not have

BaE RPN AIEM
Yo s R ]

P E BB T 35 3 T %

a quoted market price in an active market and whose WEBHEAFEEE

fair value cannot be reliably measured are subsequently AREm]HHE

measured at cost. Em TAEHEBRKA
e o
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)

2.15.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Cont'd)

@)

(b)

Measurement (Cont’d)

Interest on available-for-sale securities, held-to-maturity
investments and loans and receivables calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as part of revenue from
continuing operations.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as part of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is
determined are depicted in note 3.4.

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets was impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets was impaired
and impairment losses were incurred only if there was
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events)
had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that could
be reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost was
considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
2.15.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Cont'd)

TEETHRERBE(A

QIS RERHMWESRMEE (&)
5B EZE—FE—tHF+ =
A=+—HEFHE

B ()

136

(b) Impairment (Cont’d)

(b) 1 ()

(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost (i) ILEHA A
SRR B E

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss MERREK
was measured as the difference between the RIEMmME &
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of BLEREE
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit E R mE H (G
losses that had not been incurred) discounted at FARKE LR
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. (T B F X
The carrying amount of the asset was reduced and B4 2 REKE
the amount of the loss was recognised in profit EERB K&
or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment MEEZRE
had a variable interest rate, the discount rate for BXF R BLIR 2
measuring any impairment loss was the current BEMEZE
effective interest rate determined under the Wit E - %E
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group BEZEREE

could measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHTHERBEHE
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont‘d) QIS RERHMWESREE (&)
2155 Accounting policies applied until 31 December 5B EZE—FE—tHF+ =
2017 (Cont’d) A=1t—HERHE
B (E)
(b) Impairment (Cont’d) (b) J1E (&)
(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont'd) (i) REHEKA
SRR B E
(&

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the fir B 1E 18 B [E
impairment loss decreased and the decrease ZBREEBES®
could be related objectively to an event occurring R A B
after the impairment was recognised (such as an LEEMmME Al
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the 82 B fE SRR B
reversal of the previously recognised impairment ®EBEAE L —TB
loss was recognised in profit or loss. EHA@EMBITM
BB AEET
FrE) AR

B AER

Bl @EERLZ
MEER -

Impairment testing of receivables is described in FE U R I8 8 R
note 3.1(b). (EREE0 N =4

3.1(b)fR it -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
2.15.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Cont’d)

(b) Impairment (Cont’d)
(i)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there was objective evidence of impairment for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — was removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were
recognised in profit or were not reversed through
profit or loss in a subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increased in a subsequent period
and the increase could be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
was reversed through profit or loss.

2.16 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently have
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group have also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,
such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.17 Financial guarantee contracts

Q17 BEREE

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at

fair value and subsequently at the higher of

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

2.18 Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note 2.15 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables

and note 2.14 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call

with financial institutions.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as “restricted
cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in

the cash flow statements.

2.21 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.22 Perpetual capital instruments

Perpetual capital instruments with no contractual obligation for the
Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holders are
classified as equity instruments. They are initially recorded at the
proceeds received within equity. Discretionary interest declared by the
Group to the holders of perpetual capital instrument is treated as
dividend.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHTHERBEE)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.23 Trade and other payables 2B3ESZRHEMENKIE
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided ai%%ﬁﬁhﬁf\ﬁﬁﬂzfﬁr & R AT I
to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. HFEBEzAREREZRER

The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.24 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

2.25 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Cont'd)

TEETREREE(A)

142

2.26 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on

the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income

tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

226 N HIRIRAE Fr 5 54
HA 7 T 19 T B S 12 65 B K HB
FE SR B\ 3 4% T A R 0 P P

BHRERZEMNTEA

CRERRER

Ko 52 73 498 6 181 O SE LR
AERBERYHBE -

(a) Current income tax (a) AIRFT 3%
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of BVEAFR ST B AR B AR A A
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of REKBRR - A& AF R
the reporting period in the countries where the Company BN AL REEERT
and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates operate and WARBIRNIRE B RE B
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates R EERMOTEE -
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in EEERBRAREEIRRE
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. FrE PR AV 1B 0 E Hi s (h A 18
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of BRIEN  WHEBERBRT
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. RIEAAM BB EE LS
TR e -
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEZFEH

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not

BRIEFFFRRABAEE B
AEMBENREEEEM
BEAEAMYBRERNERE
BEZHREEANEREEZR
R - AT - BEEFR
BHAEREAENTR

accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or R BN FRERLFRE
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that MEEE: FEREMER

at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.26 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special
tax deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts for such
allowances as tax credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax expense. A deferred
income tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are
carried forward as deferred income tax assets.

2.27 Employee benefits

(a)

Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees’ payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administrated funds managed by the PRC
government.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.27 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(b) Defined benefit plan

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service

and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and

settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past

service costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which

they arise.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.28 Provisions 228 1E

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period necessary

to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected

lives of the related assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.30 Revenue recognition

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. This
may be at a single point in time or over time.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

3 when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

. when the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

o when the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternate use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises
revenue at a single point in time at which the performance obligation
is satisfied for the sale of that good or service when control has been
passed.

If control of the product or service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by measuring the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.30 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised at the point in time when the control
of the product is transferred to the customer which generally
coincides with delivery and acceptance of the product sold.

Rendering of construction and upgrade
services

Revenue from construction and upgrade services is recognised
over time by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based
on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract.

Rendering of other services

Revenue from wastewater treatment, solid waste treatment and
other services is recognised over the period by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service.

Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.31 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are classified
as operating leases (note 35). Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in other income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet
based on their nature.

2.32 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.33 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged.

The Group's derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised

immediately in profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.34 Earnings per share 234 BREXREF
(i) Basic earnings per share (i) @ﬁ‘ HEEXEZF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: HARBFILAT X5

TEEHRRGE (A

st
(=N
A

excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

o the profit attributable to owners of the company, .

ARBER ANEIGEH
(D 85T E R
SN2 AR R HE 25 AR )

e BUMBFERDH#
17 & B R FH

2o WHFAEET
ZRAR(TEEER
B dn ) B B B 5 & o

elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

FRBEET

HESREERTE - 23

(iij) Diluted earnings per share (ii)
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the

determination of basic earnings per share to take into account: BEARETSRERBN G
HE UARBUATEE :

. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing o HEBETHESERRE
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, R B REMEE
and BARBRFEREY

2 &k

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary . REERAE BT
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the EEEAR BB E
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. ?"“ﬁ%@ﬂxﬁ’]ﬂﬂ%?

HE o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

risk (including currency risk and fair value interest rate risk and cash

flow interest rate), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall

risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions being settled in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group entities. The
Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign operations.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group's foreign operations is managed primarily through
financing activities denominated in the relevant foreign

currencies.

The group entities are exposed to foreign exchange
risk of foreign currencies other than their functional
currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars
("US$"), Euro ("EUR") and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD")
(together “Non-functional Currencies”). The Group seeks
to limit its exposure to foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring and minimizing its net foreign currency
position. Management considers the fluctuations in
exchange rates between the functional currencies of
respective group entities and Non-functional Currencies in
which the group entities conduct business will not have
significant effect on the Group’s financial position and

results of operations.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. The Group’s interest-bearing
bank borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents are stated at amortised cost and not revalued
on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and
expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as earned/

incurred.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has floating rate
borrowings amounting to RMB5,249,177,000 (2017:
RMB3,868,592,000). If there would be a general
increase/decrease in the market interest rates by 100
basis points, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit would have decreased/increased
by approximately RMB41,817,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB30,074,000). The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in market interest rates had occurred as
at the 31 December 2018 and 2017 and had applied
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk to those
financial instruments in existence at those dates. The
estimated 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s estimate of a reasonably possible change
in market interest rates over the period until the next
annual year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is the carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, receivables
under service concession arrangements and contract
assets.

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of loss
on such assets.

For trade receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements and contract assets, the customers are
primarily local governments and PRC state-owned entities
and management considers the credit risk is not high.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on ECL under HKFRS
9 rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. The Group has three types of financial
assets and contract assets that are subject to HKFRS 9's
new expected credit loss model:

o receivables under service concession arrangements;
o trade and other receivables; and
o contract assets.

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are
also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

To measure the ECL, receivables under service concession
arrangements, trade and other receivables, contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types
of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(c)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
The Group established ECL model based on historical
settlement records, past experience and available forward-
looking information. The Group has reviewed its financial
assets and has not identified any significant impact as at
1 January 2018 from the adoption of ECL model.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities
of the Group and aggregated by Group financial department.
Group financial department monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient
cash and cash equivalents to meet operational needs while
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any

of its borrowing facilities.

The Group financial department monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally generated
cash flows from operations, borrowings and perpetual capital
instruments from financial institutions.
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(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d) 3. MERKBEREE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 31 BiEREE (&)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (c) mEBEZEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial TROMAEBERIEITES
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the mAEE  YIRBABND
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual HAR REBEEEBZESH
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the FIEAR MR EARE T D
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest e XRNFIBENSEAS
payments computed using contractual rates, or, if floating, HARBIRBERE - BFER
based on current rates. B E &) A 2 (X w72 )% B A

= Bl ABVEIE X)) E
FERH -
Carrying
Within Between Between Over amount
1year 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years Total liabilities
EPL 122% 2555 SERE & AEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Closing balance at 31 December 2018 R=Z-\E+-F=+-H
fERER
Financial liabilities SHEE
Borrowings EE 6,522,143 3,968,195 6,951,773 2,561,801 20,003,912 16,934,526
Trade and other payables (*) BAREMEREAN 2,767,275 3,247,892 138,000 5470 6,158,637 6,025,110
9,289,418 7,216,087 7,089,773 2,567,271 26,162,549 22,959,636
Closing balance at 31 December 2017  H=-%-t%£+-f=1-H
HERGE
Financial liabilities tRAR
Borrowings 5 5,016,807 3,055,548 5,941,969 2,105,365 16,119,689 13,787,996
Trade and other payables (*) B 5 REMERTIAM 2,934,701 1,309,042 30,000 13,000 4,286,743 4,207,685
7,951,508 4,364,590 5,971,969 2,118,365 20,406,432 17,995,681
* Excluding staff welfare benefit payable, other taxes payable and & TREERMEIREH - H

advances from customers.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. MKREKRERE(E)

3.2 Capital management

3.2 EXER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, sell assets to reduce debt or raise funding through
capital markets as necessary.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “total equity” as
shown in the consolidated financial statements plus net borrowings.

AEENEAERENHOH/RE
REBMERAFERLE  ARKRR
RECH L SEMAEEEE R
HHE  UREFRENEAR
BB D EARKA -

BRBAARERLEHE K& E
MR g ARRMN TRENRES
BOAREREEN  HEEE
RO EBRBRERTISEE
B (MBE) -

AEERBEEABLXRERE
A o R RIF AT IR AR E A
AE - FEBREFLE(BES
HEEBBRARAENE R IEED
HEFRDBRRERALEEYS
H o ERRA M RERAR
ISR MERFREFTE -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2018 2017
—®-NE  —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETF T
Total borrowings (note 29) e sz (M sE29) 16,934,526 13,787,996
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 25) B Be MBS EEY (K FE25) (2,214,352) (2,896,927)
Net borrowings &R F 5 14,720,174 10,891,069
Total equity 48R 7 6,934,272 6,685,949
Total capital BB 21,654,446 17,577,018
Gearing ratio BEBELEX 67.98% 61.96%

The increase in the gearing ratio was resulted primarily from the
increase of borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3.

3.3 Financial instruments by category

KRR EE (&)
33 RENE HNEmMIA

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Financial assets tRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BREHENATENEREE
— Trade and other receivables - B 5 Kk HE M EWFRIAE 5,777,631 4,380,461
— Receivables under service concession - R E LB T
arrangements JE U 7 18 4,223,100 5,111,148
— Amounts due from customers for -AHNIRERERFRE
contract works — 665,754
— Cash and cash equivalents -BeRBReEEY 2,214,352 2,896,927
— Restricted cash - ZRHAREE 123,043 124,292
12,338,126 13,178,582
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEAENEMEE
— Available-for-sale financial assets -AIftHEemMEE = 4,675
— Financial asset at fair value through -ARAFEHAEBHEEHFTA
other comprehensive income HtZesWamemEE 4,675 —
— Financial assets at fair value through -AAFEGEBHEEEHT A
profit or loss B emEE 4,320 —
— Derivative financial instruments -EsmIA 10,884 —
19,879 4,675
12,358,005 13,183,257
Financial liabilities EtWMAasE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKNATENESRAE
— Borrowings - &R 16,934,526 13,787,996
— Trade and other payables (*) - B 5 K H Ath fE {5 ZUIAE(Y) 6,025,110 4,207,685
22,959,636 17,995,681
Financial liabilities at fair value EATEAENES/HAE
— Derivative financial instruments - TEERMIT A 2,500 -
22,962,136 17,995,681
S Excluding staff welfare benefit payable, other taxes payable and advances from & TERFEEMEIRA - EAhEN

customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.4 Fair value estimation
The Group’s financial instruments recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet are mainly receivables and financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost. The fair values of these financial instruments
approximate their carrying amounts.

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by levels of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

3 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

3 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing these financial statements are
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Service concession arrangements under financial

asset model

When the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade services
by a financial asset, significant judgement is exercised in determining
the fair values of the financial asset at initial recognition. Cash flow
forecast, effective interest rate and other factors are used in the
valuation model. Any changes in the expected cash flows, such as
effective interest rate, forecasted unit price of service fee, operating
costs and profit margins of the operating services, will result in
change in the carrying value of the financial asset and the revenue
recognised in concession period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

160

(a)

(b)

(c)

Service concession arrangements under financial
asset model (Cont’d)

According to the service concession arrangements signed with the
Grantors, the unit price of service fee would be periodically adjusted
to compensate operating cost increase, including labour costs,
material costs, taxation, through a pricing mechanism which is still
subject to regulation by local government authorities. Judgement is
required in assessing whether increase in costs can be compensated
through unit price adjustment and the timing. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service
concession arrangements, the extent of development of the project
and status of negotiation with the government authorities.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group records impairment of trade receivables based on an
assessment made by management on the ECL of trade receivables.
The evaluations focused on the customers’ settlement history and
current ability to pay, and took into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customers operated. Provisions are made where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Impairment assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates. The Group would revisit and evaluate those assumptions
related with ECL model periodically.

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Thailand and Indonesia. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the year in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(d) Impairment assessment of goodwiill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date
or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
of goodwill has been determined based on fair value less costs to
disposal calculations, taking into account latest market information
and past experience. These calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating decision-
maker of the Group. Management has determined the operating segments
based on reports reviewed by the executive directors of the Company for
the purpose of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business from product
and service perspective. The Group is organised into five business segments
as below:

(@)  Wastewater treatment;

(b)  Water supply;

(c)  Construction and sales of equipment;

(d)  Solid waste treatment;

(e)  Others, including operation and maintenance services and other
businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of revenue and gross profit
of each operating segment.
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f 75 SRR BT o

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company with
respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Unallocated assets mainly represented cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, certain prepayments and certain receivables of the group entities
engaging in multiple business segments. Management considered that it is
impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different segments.

Unallocated liabilities mainly represented certain borrowings, certain payables
and deferred income of the group entities engaging in multiple business
segments. Management considered that it is impracticable or not meaningful
in allocating to different segments.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d) 5. 7HMER (&)
Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i) BE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—8
December 2018 are as follows: EFENDHEEREARATN
T
Year ended 31 December 2018: BEZE-_ZZ-—-N\E+=-B=+—H
WHEE:
Construction
Wastewater Water and sales of  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment  treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
BREE ik HERE BREE 2t FAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTZ ARMTT ARETn AR%T:x
Gross segment revenue PHkEEE 3,295,023 1,171,789 2,059,977 748,985 71,884 - 7,347,658
Inter-segment revenue HE ks — —  (1,092,030) — - —  (1,092,030)
Revenue from external customers KENRERKA 3205023 1,171,789 967,947 748,985 71,884 — 6255628
Timing of revenue recognition WA BRER
- At a point in time -E-RKEH - 519,062 495,414 - - — 1,014,476
~ Over time -E-BR 3,295,023 652,727 472,533 748,985 71,884 — 51,15
Gross profit e 735,879 227,446 343,094 167,091 24,499 - 1,498,009
Other income £l 144,668
Other gains — net EthEsE 10,541
Selling expenses BERX (43,884)
Administrative expenses IBRAX (395,120)
Impairment losses on financial assets £ BEAEHEFE (25,510)
Finance costs — net BERATE (578,512)
Share of profitf(loss) of investments  JEZEARAER
accounted for using the equity RERN/(BR)
method — net g 19,127 (8,903) 7,694 16,116 - — 34,034
Profit before income tax FER AR A 644,226
Income tax expenses FEREY (147,511)
Profit for the year FR G 496,715
Depreciation and amortisation HEAEH (117,348)  (162,033) (14378)  (151,792) (12,768) (12,553)  (470,872)
Segment assets PHEE 11,877,411 6,761,381 459,414 5485113 960,690 2,996,837 32,673,846
Segment assets include: PHEERSE:
Investments accounted for using the — JEZEARAKE
equity method 203,671 328,628 34,117 89,492 4,534 - 661,042
Segment liabilities AHEE 4,082,170 1,183,919 1,887,852 1,261,995 1171977 16,151,661 25,739,574
Additions to non-current assets ERHEENTE
(other than financial instruments (SRIANELT
and deferred income tax assets) FERAERN) 3,342,032 478,764 843,878 443,618 18,259 68,768 5195319
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. DEER (&)
Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i) BE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—8
December 2018 are as follows: (Cont’d) EFENDEEREARATN
T (E
Year ended 31 December 2017: BZ-_Z—tH+=-A=+—H
WHFEE:
Construction
Wastewater Water  and salesof  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
BKRE ik HER BERE o AR @3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR ARET:R
Gross segment revenue AHRRER 1,683,515 1,194,246 1,578 866 573,461 515,254 — 5,545,342
Inter-segment revenue AR ERE — - (403,100) = = = (403,100)
Revenue from external customers RENMBEPHMA 1683515 1194246 1,175,766 573,461 515,254 - 51424
Gross profit ES 518,415 144,185 422,381 152,637 67,106 — 1,304,724
Other income 41 ON 309,566
Other gains — net EthEsE 57,354
Selling expenses BERY (39,524)
Administrative expenses RRx (431,477)
Finance costs — net BENAFH (521,481)
Share of profit/(loss) of investments Bz EARAELL
accounted for using the equity RERT/(BR)
method — net ik 24,652 (23,876) 21,002 1,304 = = 23,082
Profit before income tax AR 702,244
Income tax expenses fikeziliabd (158,244)
Profit for the year EREH 544,000
Depreciation and amortisation REMEY (115,420) (159,927) (13,351) (129,073) (12,561) (10,916) (441,248)
Segment assets PREE 7,528,533 6,127,885 3,204,309 4,907,107 1,224,204 4,104,011 27,096,049
Seqment assets include: AREERE
Investments accounted for using the  bLiE%E ABEIRE
equity method 180,563 337,532 27,023 73,376 4,534 — 623,028
Segment liabilities AEHEE 2,231,133 927,438 1,751,499 1,200,863 800,206 13,498 961 20,410,100
Additions to non-current assets ENHEENTE
(other than financial instruments (SBIARET
and deferred income tax assets) e aERI) 1,194,318 2,037,232 200,485 1,259,929 21,01 427,916 5,140,901
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. 7HMER (&)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the (i HHBEERBENUAR LA EH
financial statements. The table of segment assets/liabilities by region is BMEPFE - TR IR
as follows: ErmoHEEAE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Segment assets PHEE
— Mainland China — B K R 28,275,590 21,985,340
— Thailand - R H 588,543 542,897
— Indonesia - Efe 644,309 374,721
- Hong Kong - B 142,745 85,677
— Singapore - 25,822 3,403
Total segment assets DEEEHRTE 29,677,009 22,992,038
— Unallocated - ROB 2,996,837 4,104,011
Total assets A E 32,673,846 27,096,049
Segment liabilities oD EAEE
- Mainland China — RO B 8,925,931 6,575,915
— Thailand - R H 139,806 137,618
— Indonesia -0 441,501 167,230
— Hong Kong -&BE 45,130 18,205
— Singapore — 37 00 3% 35,545 12,171
Total segment liabilities HEBEERE 9,587,913 6,911,139
— Unallocated - kD E 16,151,661 13,498,961
Total liabilities BEE 25,739,574 20,410,100

Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into at terms and

conditions agreed upon by respective parties. Eliminations comprise

inter-segment trade and non-trade balances. Pricing policy for inter-

segment transactions is determined by reference to market price.

DEEBEARHHRE T HE

5

VIR R AR 1T

cHEBED

HMEEZMIFEBEZEH - 2 EHE
RHNEERREZETERE

H
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5.

166

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(iii)  The revenue of group entities from external customers broken down

by location of the goods or services are delivered to is shown in the

table below.

5.

2 EER (F)
5 0 2 B8 5% 15 5 2B P A M2 1R
32 1 95 & 5 BB 765 4 96 8 9 9 B

(iii)

AEI T & °

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1t-HLFE

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®EF T

Mainland China A K B 5,912,609 4,908,672
Indonesia ENJE 233,840 115,961
Thailand ZH 107,419 111,816
Hong Kong BA 1,760 5,793
6,255,628 5,142,242

(iv)  Breakdown of the revenue from all services and sales of goods is as

follows:

(iv)

BE2MRBEREEERELNK

s AT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—-BLEFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARETFT

Operating services BER® 1,550,655 1,282,534

Construction services BiE RS 3,354,901 2,580,507

Finance income A& A 324,801 289,532
Engineering-Procurement-Construction REr— KB — T

("EPC") and sales of equipment (TEPC) R BB HE 953,387 928,951

Others H b 71,884 60,718

6,255,628 5,142,242
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. oXER(F)

(v)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related

(v)

HEPIYANBBZEERAR

AEBEBBEHEBATEEPFL

to contracts with customers: ENHBECEERBE
As at
31 December
®n+=A
Eqr=1
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AR T T
Contract assets — Non-current ERNEE —ERH
— Related to wastewater treatment - B5KEIE RSB
services 3,406,622
— Related to construction services -HEEREE H 457,267
— Related to water supply services - BMHOKIRISH 414,066
4,277,955
Contract assets — Current BHEE—RY
— Related to construction services - EEEREE B 318,976
— Related to water supply services - B MHOKAR %5 H B 10,808
— Related to wastewater treatment - B5KERIE R B
services 8,413
338,197
4,616,152
Contract liabilities — Current ABHNBE—RE
— Related to construction services - BEEEREE B 88,982
— Related to water supply services - BMHOKAR %S 23,851
— Related to solid waste treatment -HEEERERSE @
services 6,576
119,409
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d) 5. 2RER (&)
(vi)  Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue (vi)y HAEEBKATBEBEBI0%M
of the Group is as follow: BREWADMT :
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+—HBLEE
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETF T
YCIH (note a) Tk EE (P a) 800,659 762,529
(@  YCIH represents Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding (@) ZEFEREEEBEAEENEH
Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of BHEEEERRETERSE
the Group. The detailed information of transactions with YCIH EERARMEMBAR -
is depicted in note 37(f). HEMEREER HMFE
&R 5 B R BT FE37(F) ©
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HALWA

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BHLEFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ELF
RMB000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Government grants BT 48 BY 90,956 111,334
Value-added tax refunds EEBRM 50,225 58,265
Recovery of other receivables e 18] K th, 8 W 5118 = 95,054
Miscellaneous income HE s 3,487 44,913

144,668 309,566
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7. OTHER GAINS - NET

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

H b Yy 25 7 88

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R AREFT
Net fair value gains on financial assets LAFEFEEEESH T AR
at fair value through profit or loss MEMEE 2 A FEFHE 8,384 —
Other gains/(losses) Hip ez, (B1E) 2,157 (599)
Fair value gains on the remeasurement FFEAERRINATERKS
of a joint venture — 51,830
Fair value gains on the remeasurement TEBEANRMNAFERSE
of an associate — 6,123
10,541 57,354

8. EXPENSES BY NATURE

BUHEEIHNAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T R AREFT

Employee benefit expenses (note 9) & B4 5 2 (F5E9) 549,395 411,416
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB REETE (ME17)

(note 17) 163,397 153,094
Amortisation of land use rights (note 19) o b {5 R ARE A 8 (P EE19) 6,920 6,593
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 21) mpEEEE(ME21) 300,555 281,561
Legal and professional fee FERBEXEER 14,850 52,887
Auditor's remuneration 1% SR % B 7,950 7,560
— Audit services - BiH R 7,250 6,700
— Non-audit services - B RF 700 860
Electricity, raw materials consumptions and other KERBHEN BEMEREER

costs for operating services H B AR 569,977 587,190
Costs of construction services B RS AR AR 2,948,167 2,064,748
Costs of EPC and sales of equipment EPC 2§85 & s B B A 469,958 567,874
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9.

170

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

9.

&
[

iﬁﬂﬁi—@ﬁ%%

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEE

2018 2017
—2-N\%F L B
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Wages and salaries ITERF® 410,088 299,637
Pension costs of defined contribution plans TERMAREENRRKE 51,884 34,529
Housing funds, medical insurances and other FEAES  BERRK
social insurances H it & RE8 47,236 31,868
Other welfare and allowance H i 2 AL R AR F 40,187 45,382
549,395 411,416
(a) Five highest paid individuals (@) EEESHFAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group

for the year include two (2017: four) directors, whose emoluments

are reflected in the analysis shown in note 39. The emoluments

payable to the remaining three (2017: one) individuals during the year

are as follows:

FEERAFENRIERESHA
TEEME(ZE—t4% : IHR)
B HB SRRV E39M I
D RAFERBT=4(=F
—tF —B)ATEMNOBE M
D

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=t-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Basic salaries, housing allowances,

EAX%e  EFERM -

other benefits in kind HiEWEF 4,213 1,084
Bonuses 4T 1,100 500
5,313 1,584
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 9.
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont‘d)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d)

The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group fell

EERAMAX —EFEES

[ AP

(a) EEBEEHAL(AE)
REEBZEHRTATHEHESN T

within the following bands: UT&E :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-BLEE

2018
—E—N\fF

2017
T —+F

Emolument bands
RMB1,314,000 to RMB1,752,000 (equivalent
to HKD1,500,000 to HKD2,000,000)

RMB1,752,000 to RMB2,191,000 (equivalent
to HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000)

B & &5
AR #1,314,000T &

A R #1,752,0007C

(#8%71,500,000/8 L &

2,000,000 7T ) 2
AR #1,752,0007T &

AR #2,191,0007T

(#8%#2,000,000/8 T &=

2,500,0007% 7T ) 1

10. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES 10

CAERARBEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEFE

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—+tfF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR AREFTT
Finance income mE WA
- Net exchange gains on financing activities -MEFRPE R WS FE
(note a) (Bt z¥a) 67,253 —
— Miscellaneous income - MIE W 32,363 =
99,616 —
Finance expenses 55 X
— Borrowing costs - B R A (777,686) (599,353)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets W EEAREAENERNLERE
(note b) (P 5Eb) 109,474 105,246
(668,212) (494,107)
— Unwinding of provision (note 33) — PR PR AR (MY 5E33) (9,916) (10,086)
— Net exchange losses on financing activities -BEFINELSIEFHE
(note a) (Pff %a) = (17,288)
(678,128) (521,481)
Finance cost — net B & KA F 5 (578,512) (521,481)
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10. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES (Cont‘d)

(@ Amounts mainly represented the exchange gains/losses of translating
cash and cash equivalents and borrowings denominated in Non-

functional currencies.

(b)  For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has capitalised
borrowing costs amounting to RMB13,491,000 and RMB95,983,000
(2017: RMB12,862,000 and RMB92,384,000) on qualifying property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, respectively.

Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of
5.41% for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 4.80%).

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

10. MEW AR X (&)
(@) HHEEBHAZUNEERN
Ao REESENRMEROER
Wit/ 8 -

by H=EZFE-—NF+=-A=+—H
LHEE  AEEORAERDE
BMERSEUREEEES E
AAE & TR A A R % 13,491,0007T
% A R #95983,0007C (=% —+
F: AR#12,862,0007T & AR
92,384,0007T) °

BE-_Z-NF+=-A=+—H
IEFE - BREARTIR5.41% (=
T—+tF 480%)NETFIHE
FTUREARAE -

1. TBHEX

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—BLEE

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T AR T T
Current income tax BN ERFRT 15 7%
— Corporate income tax - EMREH 178,073 172,192
Deferred income tax EIEFTIS M
— Increase in deferred income tax assets (note —EIEFTIS R E B G a0 (B 5E32)
32) (82,609) (44,169)
— Increase in deferred income tax liabilities - REMBGHAGEE N (FE32)
(note 32) 52,047 30,221
147,511 158,244

, ErKBIREARDBR AR Annual Report FERE
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PRC corporate income tax

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operating in the western
region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15%, provided their revenues generated from main
operating activities accounted for more than 70% of their total
revenues of the period.

Certain subsidiaries operating wastewater and solid waste treatment
projects in Mainland China are eligible for a tax holiday of three-year
full exemption followed by three-year half exemption of corporate
income tax commencing from their first year generating operating

revenue.

Except for preferential treatments available to certain subsidiaries as
mentioned above, other subsidiaries within the Group in Mainland
China are subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of
25% (2017: same).

Thailand corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Thailand is
eligible for an eight-year tax holiday of full exemption from 2013 to
2020.

Hong Kong profits tax
The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group did
not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: same).

Indonesia corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Indonesia is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same).
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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1. REBBEX(F

oh B 4 3 FF 18 Bt
FE FP R A 3 7 AR M [ A T AT
EWMETHE QA ZFX15%H
BECEMERRE  JIRREH
TEREEBELEN RS RES
NAANET70% A £ -

£ R B 3 58 05 K K (B B i TR
EENETHBRARNAERE
XEHEZEEEELERNEF
BRI =ZFREREER=ZFH
WOR B XS TV ER -

BEETHBRARZXNES
BN - AN 5 B H A o B fft
BRAREAERSL%(ZT—LF -
HEDMEEREHRDERS
Bi e

ZECERESH
EHEBRGEERERERENNEB
NAEB_E—Z=ZFE2_FT_ZTF

RAUZAENFLHHY -

EBFNEH
HE_ZT-NF+=-A=+—H
ItFE  BREBANBHBEA
16.5% (ZZT— 14 : #HRA) °

ERAEERBE-F—N\F
t-A=t-BrFELmEs
(A RBRF - AL KR
EREBBEE (T —+F 1
R) -

ENfe &R
BE-T-\F+-A=t+—8
I FEEE RS ERREEA
B B B 2 R 2B 1R 25% 8 K E B
BB EFREHR(ZF— L% - i
) -

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

174

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profit of the group entities as follows:

11.

FriewiB < (&

74 95 [ 14 45 Bt T 8 V9 BE T 5 B4 £
P80 4 9 E 9 4 5 ) 40 00 T 49 B
EFHENBHLE  ARMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—BLEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBTF T
Profit before income tax FFr 15 %6 A& A 644,226 702,244
Less: Share of profits of investments W AEREARMD
accounted for using the equity method FEAEIRE & (34,034) (23,082)
610,192 679,162
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits in 1% 45 B8 A 7)) F @ A &Y
the respective companies MEFTENIE 122,562 136,540
Income not subject to tax BERBRA = (10,083)
Effect of tax losses not recognised as deferred RERRBELEFEBHEAED
income tax assets MBEBRTE 23,086 29,628
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose Al H1Fi i X M 2 28 1,863 2,159
Income tax expenses Frig i 147,511 158,244

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB62,402,000 (2017:
RMB39,316,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to RMB341,442,000
(2017: RMB215,894,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Tax losses amounting to RMB65,243,000 (2017: RMB32,181,000)
will expire in 2023, and tax losses amounting to RMB276,199,000 (2017:
RMB183,713,000) can be carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry
date.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREF
(a) Basic (a) EX
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit H§%$EJ$IJ?§$ATH§E$FE{E
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted BHBRABE-_ZE—N\FK=
average number of ordinary shares issued during the years ended 31 —+tF+=ZA=+—H tirga@
December 2018 and 2017, BRTEBRINEFHEGE -
Year ended 31December
BE+-HA=1+—-BLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Profit attributable to the ordinary XA A 5 A% BRFE fh i A
shareholders of the Company (AR®FT)
(RMB'000) 397,753 422,812
Weighted average number of ordinary B AT R AR 0
shares in issue (thousands) FHH(FR) 1,193,213 1,193,213
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) SlREABF (FRARET) 0.333 0.354
(b) Diluted (b) #F
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as HR-ZZ-NFRZIZT—L4F
there were no potential diluted ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 + A=+ —BWEEITEN
December 2018 and 2017. BEBRELTRR HSRBER
MEZGREREFER -
DIVIDENDS
=]
At the board of directors meeting held on 27 March 2019, the directors of 13. Hﬁ’“"
the Company proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December E=—F— ﬂi AZ+tHRITHNES
2018 of RMBO0.15 per ordinary share amounting to approximately @‘%’E%t RAEFEARBE_Z

RMB178,982,000 (2017: RMB0.13 per ordinary share amounting to
approximately RMB155,118,000) out of retained earnings of the Company.
These proposed dividends have not been reflected as dividends payable in
these consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 but will be reflected as dividends distribution for the year ending 31
December 2019.

The 2017 dividends were paid on 27 July 2018.

NE+= H +—HIEFERMNKH
ek BRARK0IST :./\,i']
ANE#178,982,0007 (=T — L& -
fRE B ARKEIZT - A /\AW\E’%
155,118,0007T) B AR AR B & 7| 1 #
- ZERFERETERBEE TN
F+-_A=t+—BLFENEEAHY
BRETRBAEMRS  BEREE

—hE+ A=+ BLFERMR

—tFREER
“t+t BRI

Z-N\E+tH
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14. SUBSIDIARIES 14. 18 F
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018, all UWTE-—"Z—N\NF+_-_A=+—H=x
of which are private limited liability companies: EHEBATLE  HEHE2IEFTARA
& @
Ownership
interests held
Principal by the non-
activities and controlling
place of Issued and Ownership interests (%)
incorporation and fully paid-up interests held FERERENL
operation capital by the Group (%) EEE k(%)
Name (note a) TEEE Tt BEETR FEBER (Hf&Ec)
& (i &Ea) REXME BEHERE BEADL (%) (note ¢)
Dali Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd. Wastewater RMB120,000,000 45 (2017: 45) 55 (2017: 55)
(“Dali Water”) treatment and AR (noteb) (ZZF—+4F :55)
REKBEFREAR AR (T REKHE]) water supply, 120,000,0007c (=T —+4F : 45)
the PRC (Bt 5Eb)
EKEIE R K RE
Yunnan Yun Shui Construction & Environmental RMB560,000,000 100 (2017: 100) —(2017: —)
Engineering Co., Ltd protection ARE (ZF—+F:100) (ZZ—+tF:—)

176

EHEARRIBERAA

Yunnan OriginWater Membrane
Technology Co., Ltd.
EEAREKRRMEAREERA

Jinghong Water Supply and
Drainage Co., Ltd.
SHMAHKEREER

Shandong Environmental Industry Investment
and Development Co., Ltd.
IWREARGREFREZRBRLA

equipment sales and
construction,

the PRC
RRREHERER
H

Environmental
protection
equipment sales,

the PRC
RREBHE  HE

Wastewater

treatment and

water supply,

the PRC
EKEER R K - R

Investment in
waterwaster treatment
and water supply,

the PRC
REFKEEE R
H

560,000,0007T

RMB55,614,800
AR
55,614,8007T

RMB80,000,000
AR®
80,000,0007C

RMB120,000,000
ARHE
120,000,0007C
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MREEREFERENESCLETRE
ARRA

ERERE -+
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 14. BB E (&)
Ownership
interests held
Principal by the non-
activities and controlling
place of Issued and Ownership interests (%)
incorporation and fully paid-up interests held FERERENL
operation capital by the Group (%) EEE (%)
Name (note a) TEED Tt BEETK rEEEN (H=Ec)
L GED) REXMH BEAERE BEADL (%) (note ¢)
Wuxi Zhongfa Water Investment Co., Ltd. Wastewater RMB134,000,000 75 (2017: 75) 25(2017: 25)
BHPBEKBEREBERAA treatment, AR¥E (ZZ—tF:75) (ZT—+t%F :25)
the PRC 134,000,0007T
BKEE - H
Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited Investment in HKD498,905,000 100 (2017: 100) —(2017: —)
EfkK (BE) RHBRAT wastewater 498,905,000t (ZZT—+F :100) (ZZT—+tF:—)
treatment and
water supply,
Hong Kong
KREFKERREK
i
PJT Technology Co., Ltd Solid waste THB740,000,000 100 (2017: 100) —(2017: —)
treatment, 740,000,000% % (ZT—+%:100) (ZT—+F:—)
Thailand
ERERE  &H
Huize Water (Qingzhou) Company Limited Water supply, RMB53,152,000 100 (2017: 65) —(2017: 35)
B2KE(FEMABRAA the PRC ARE “E—t+F:65) (ZF—LF:35)
oK 53,152,0007T
e
Shandong Tengyue Dangerous Chemical Solid waste RMB108,571,429 97 (2017: 97) 3(2017: 3)
Wastes research and treatment Co., Ltd. treatment, AR¥E (ZZT—tF:97) (ZZT—+F:3)
IWRERBCBEREZNMRREFR AR the PRC 108,571,4297C
B REEZ 32 - A
Yunnan Zhengxiao Environmental Investment Solid waste RMB30,500,000 100 (2017: 100) —(2017: —)
Co., Ltd. treatment, AR® (ZZT—tF:100) (ZT—+F:—)
EMEBRRERREAR AR the PRC 30,500,0007T
[ RERZ 32 - A
Harbin Guohuan Medical Solid Waste Solid waste RMB29,420,000 100 (2017: 100) —(2017: —)
Harmless Centralized Disposal Center treatment, ARE (ZF2—+F:100) (ZZ—+tF:—)
Co., Ltd. the PRC 29,420,0007T
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Principal

activities and

place of
incorporation and
operation

TERD  EMiE
REXEBE

Name (note a)

G ETD)

14

Issued and
fully paid-up
capital
BETR
BHARERK

.MEA T (&)

Investment in solid
waste treatment,

the PRC
REBERE FH

Yun Shui Gong Da Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd
MABEEKIKRERAMBERNHERAF

Langfang Hyflux NewSpring Co., Ltd. Wastewater
ERr S B ¥ ROKIE AR A A treatment,
the PRC

BRI -

Hyflux NewSpring (Guanyun) Co., Ltd. Water supply,

GEMRERKCEE)BERAA the PRC
oK -

Hyflux NewSpring (Dezhou) Co., Ltd. Water supply,

SBEHRERK(EBMNBRAA the PRC
oK -

RMB83,700,000
ARHE
83,700,0007¢

US$12,400,000
12,400,000% 7T

US$8,124,000
8,124,000% 7T

US$11,200,000
11,200,000% 7T

(@) The English names of these subsidiaries referred to in this report
represent management’s best effort at translating the Chinese names

of those companies, as no English names have been registered.

(b)  According to the capital injection agreement date in 9 April 2014, the
Group and the minority shareholders will hold 45% and 55% equity
interests of Dali Water, respectively. As at 31 December 2018, The
Group has substantially controlled Dali Water through an agreement
entered into with one of minority shareholders of Dali Water pursuant
to which the minority shareholder confirmed to act consistently with
the Group in business operation and finance decision making of Dali

Water (2017: same).

(c) The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries as at
31 December 2018 are RMB1,177,450,000 (2017: RMB949,384,000),

and are considered individually immaterial to the Group.
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Ownership

interests held

by the non-

controlling

Ownership interests (%)
interests held FERERENL
by the Group (%) EEE (%)
FEEEWN (H=Ec)
BEEA (%) (note ¢)
76 (2017: 76) 24 (2017: 24)
(Z2—tF:76) (ZFB—LF: 24)
100 (2017: 100) —(2017: —)

(ZF—tF:100) (ZF—tF:—)

100 (2017: 100)

(Z2—tF :100) (ZF—tF :—)

100 (2017: 100)

(ZE—tF:100) (ZB—tF:—)

RIEREANZZH B R A
RXERMDEEEZENBEESD
XEBOER  REZKEEM
EMRXEHE -

BEBHAEA-ZT—NEMNA A
AMZEERG®R  A5EHRD
HREE D FIFERKEKBEL5%
ME55%K iR - BE_T—\F
+-A=+—H8 AEEEH—
PEERD —ZRBKBLHRE
FT 5T 32 9 167 5% 1 42 Il K B OK IS B9
RNEBD R AE - L - D B R R
RoEEEBEBREAKEHES
R B SRR AN E — B
TE(ZF—CF : HHRA) -

RZZE—-—N\NF+=ZA=+—H
EREWNBARMIELRERS
A AR #1,177,450,000 T (=
T — £ F . AR # 949,384,000
J0) 0 WRAR A ¥ AN B {E B~
'K



15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired additional
shares of certain subsidiaries, the Group recognised a decrease in non-
controlling interests and a decrease in equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. The effect of changes in the ownership
interest of the Group on the equity attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year is summarised as follows:

15.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

WE BT~ RSN E =

RRE-F-NF+-A=+—BLE
AR E N E T B A RSN E
i o AR EBRIERES AL U RA
AREBRBEEEEDAD o AEE
B 2 R D 80 0K 8 R AR
RO YERAMT -

G

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEE

2018 2017
—s-N% e
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests BUE IR ER O REE

acquired 152,204 305,367
Consideration for acquiring additional non- W RS NN E

controlling interests (201,841) (464,604)
Excess of consideration recognised within equity R ERNRER LIS (49,637) (159,237)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

16.

DESEARNKRE
RApEaERBRBRRNSENT

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+-—H
2018 2017
=—2-_A\f —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTTT

A joint venture (note a) & & QA (K 3Ea) 607,401 572,287
Associates (note b) B & N A (f 5Eb) 53,641 50,741
661,042 623,028
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UEZEARNKRE (&F)
EQUITY METHOD (Cont’d)
The amounts of investments accounted for using the equity method REHERKERFERARIEARDK
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are as follows: BEoBEOAT :

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-8
2018 2017
—2-N\fF —EF—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARKETTT

A joint venture VNS
— Share of profit for the year — FEARF % F 35,422 21,185
Associates /NS
— Share of (loss)/profit for the year - EHRER(ESR) & F (1,388) 1,897
34,034 23,082
(a) Investment in a joint venture (a) REEQAANKRE
Year ended 31 December
BE+—-—HA=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AR®EF T
Balance at 1 January R—A—HBW&E 572,287 709,339
Share of profit for the year FE AR F A& F 35,422 21,185
Investment in a joint venture REERAINEE — 539,000
Share of other comprehensive income EHERNEMES =
for the year — 3,731
Currency translation differences BEEmE =S = (2,636)
Fair value gains on the remeasurement FTEAERAIMAFAERS
of a joint venture — 51,830
Step-up acquisition from a joint venture BHELNrZESWEAEKE R
to a subsidiary — (748,750)
Elimination of unrealised profits or losses  #ifl &5 7k & I8 3% FI| 5k &5 48 (308) (1,412)
Balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—HW#&E 607,401 572,287
The Group has interests in a joint venture that is accounted for using REBERNREZLE NG NIEETS
the equity method. ARz R ABR ©
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UERZEZARNWKRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Cont’d)
(a) Investment in a joint venture (Cont’d) (a) REEQRTNRE(E)

Place of Percentage of ownership interest

business/ FEEEZESH
country of As at 31 December
incorporation R+=—B=+-—H
=F 30194 2018 2017
Name of entity BEEERE & 8 B 3L Y B R —E-N\F —T—+F
Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental 378 ZIR{R A R A &
Protection Company Limited (MFERMR]) ) PRC
("Haiyun Environmental”) (i) s 49% 49%
(i) Haiyun Environmental is principally engaged in investing, () BERREIZBEFEHKSIK
financing, construction, operation and management of water IRIFIEE REMREERE
environment projects and infrastructure construction projects in BEHRE  mE - BR K
the PRC. ENRERE -
(i) The table below provide summarised financial information of (i) THREAFEREAKELT
the joint venture that is individually immaterial to the Group. EANEERRNMBKE
e
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT R ARKETTT

Aggregate carrying amount of ERITEXRE S RNEHRKREE
individually immaterial joint
venture 607,401 572,287

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEESEA T FIEMNLBE

share of:
— Profit from continuing - REFELEEBORET

operations 35,422 21,185
— Other comprehensive income - Htirs s — 1,095
— Total comprehensive income - e RERTE 35,422 22,280
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16.

182

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16.

EQUITY METHOD (Cont‘d)

(b) Investment in associates

LESRZEARNKRE (F)
(b) REFEQNTMIRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETF T
Balance at 1 January R—A—BW&E 50,741 37,341
Acquisition of a subsidiary g1 =N — 4,533
Addition NE — 49,000
Share of (loss)/profit for the year FEEFA(EE),HH (1,388) 1,897
Fair value gains on the remeasurement FEBEARNRFERE
of an associate — 6,123
Step-up acquisition from an associate to Bt QN AIZE L WE AW B R A
a subsidiary — (43,464)
Release/(elimination) of unrealised profits 2 H ~(Hfi 5) 7K %5 37 3% K =k 548
or losses 4,288 (4,689)
Balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—HW&E 53,641 50,741

(i) All of the associates are unlisted companies and there were no

quoted market price available for the shares.

(i)  The table below provide summarised financial information for

associates that are individually immaterial to the Group.

() FEBERFRIFLTARF
B EM SO RE -

(i) TFREGRAERE A K E LA
ERNBERANEHKE

#} e
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARB TR AREF T
Aggregate carrying amount of BRFEAKEARANAREE
individually immaterial associates 53,641 50,741
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s ZANEE 515 A T & IEA) B
share of:
— (Loss)/profit from continuing - KREABBEREELN(ERE)/
operations and total Al AR S W e 42 58
comprehensive income (1,388) 1,897
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BERRE
Electronic
equipment
Plants and Motor  and others  Construction
buildings ~ Machinery vehicles EFHER  in progress Total
BERET 1 RE Hth ERIE &t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
At 1 January 2017 RZB-t§-A-H
Cost AR 1,033,674 1,547,925 59,401 89,173 114,005 2,844,238
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (129,611) (332,468 (28,810) (27,068) = (517,951)
Net book amount REFE 904,063 1,215,457 30,591 62,111 114,065 2,326,287
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-3-tE+-A=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREHE 904,063 1,215,457 30,591 62,111 114,065 2,326,287
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEHBA 2 7141 1,409 670 — 9,241
Additions HE 3,049 21,211 10,742 7,856 163,732 206,590
Transfer from construction in progress BRAERIR 17,733 104 = = (17,837) =
Disposals k3 (10) (1,773) (3,605) (4,192) (9,580)
Depreciation charge (note 8) nE(His) (39,121) (94,912) (11,291) (7,770 = (153,094)
Closing net book amount BAREFE 885,735 1,147,228 27,346 58,675 259,960 2,379,444
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZA=+-8
Cost KA 1,057,979 1,569,325 65,963 102,813 259,960 3,056,040
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (172,040)  (422,097) (38,117) (44,138) = (676,596)
Net book amount REFE 885,735 1,147,228 27,846 58,675 259,960 2,379,444
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-\Fr-AZ+-BLEE
Opening net book amount BOREEE 885,735 1,147,228 27,846 58,675 259,960 2,379,444
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WERE AR = 16,978 1,109 47 = 18,514
Additions HE 3,729 38,955 8,792 31,593 308,794 391,863
Transfer from construction in progress BREARTR 81477 23,073 = 887 (105,437) =
Disposals HE — (1,645) (1,865) (626) — (,136)
Depreciation charge (note 8) ME(Ms) (43,640) (96,743) (11,921) (11,093) = (163,397)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 927,301 1,127,846 23,961 79,863 463317 2,622,288
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-NE+ZA=+-H
Cost KA 1,143,185 1,646,686 73,999 135,094 463,317 3,462,281
Accumulated depreciation 2HFE (215,884) (518,840) (50,038) (55,231) = (839,993)
Net book amount REFE 97301 1,127,846 23,961 79,863 463317 2,622,288
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont‘d) 17. ¥ BERRE(E
Depreciation was charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss under WMETDRAEHEZRRNAUATERN
the following caption: K& -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—®-NE —F—tf
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETTT

Cost of sales & A A 138,916 134,759
Administrative expenses THRAX 23,558 17,528
Selling expenses HER X 923 807
163,397 153,094

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BEW X

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+t—BLtEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Balance at 1 January R—A—BW&R 26,692 17,177
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B% B JB A A — 10,378
Depreciation charge e (913) (863)
Balance at 31 December RT-ZA=+—HW&H 25,779 26,692
(@) The Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs and (@ RZZE—NEFEERZZT—+tF+=

maintenance as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. A=+—H AEBIEBRE
BREEEVET -

(b)  Independent valuation of the Group's investment properties were by FEEBREMHEBHBIE=F1
performed by independent third party valuers to determine the fair BRETELGE UEBETERE
value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2018. The MER—_T—NF+=ZA=+—
fair value of these investment properties as at 31 December 2018 as BRATEH ZEREMWERZ
assessed by the valuers by direct comparison method or discounted T NF+ZA=+—HHAT
cash flow method were approximately RMB36,017,000 (2017: 1B 4% & {8 RD LA B B2 bb 8% 5k ah
RMB38,230,000). BEEREERTHORARE

36,017,000t (=T —+F : AR
#38,230,0007C) ©

, ErKBIREARDBR AR Annual Report FERE
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19. LAND USE RIGHTS 19. L fE AR
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease REBRTHEAENERSERANT
for lands located in the PRC with a lease term of 40-50 years, and their net L0ES0FEMHPE T ERNLELHRE -
book value are analysed as follows: HEEFESTOT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—BLEFE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—iF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARKETTT

Balance at 1 January R—B—BMH&& 189,751 192,381

Additions NE — 251

Acquisition of subsidiaries I BB B B A R — 3,712

Amortisation charged to administrative BRARIHEHREERAE

expenses and cost of sales (note 8) (Pf3E8) (6,920) (6,593)

Balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—HW&E 182,831 189,751
20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. RBBARELTHTHNE

ARRANGEMENTS L

The following is the summarised information of the financial asset HASEREEFEETHEAN SR

component (receivables under service concession arrangements) with respect BEAKIS D (RBEEFAECELRHETH

to the Group's service concession arrangements: FEUWCRIE) K E R an T -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—-8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Receivables under service concession AR 7% 45 AT 48 & 2 B T B FE WO RRIB

arrangements 4,223,100 5,111,148
Portion classified as current assets DEARBDEENIBS (57,852) (52,928)
Non-current portion FETRE D 4,165,248 5,058,220
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20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

186

(a)

In respect of the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements, credit risks varied amongst the Group's projects
operated in different locations of the PRC. The collection of
receivables under services concession arrangements is closely
monitored in order to minimise any credit risk associated with the
receivables.

20. RBBEHIARELTHTHE
WK IR (&)

(a)

BRARERRBHALERHET
B FIAT 5 - EERRE AR
SERPEARBEHELNHIER
& o BMEEEEKKRIERBY
EREERR  REFFLER
BET B ECRIB R IR SRR B

THER -

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—-8H
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETF T
Shandong Province =) 1,080,714 508,730
Yunnan Province EEE 1,078,982 1,600,057
Jiangsu Province TERE 506,042 477,314
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region HEgETRERRE 414,854 924,870
Hebei Province it 277,156 288,422
Fujian Province BEA 212,737 210,111
Anhui Province ZEA 138,569 177,846
Guangdong Province BRE 130,195 117,076
Shaanxi Province i) 111,919 125,201
Henan Province A 78,701 201,215
Tianjin City REM 73,877 129,502
Zhejiang Province HTE 44,592 —
Guizhou Province =ME — 220,899
Others Hfb 74,762 129,905
4,223,100 5,111,148

The receivables under service arrangements were billable receivables.
They were mainly due from governmental authorities in Mainland
China, as grantors in respect of the Group’s service concession
arrangements. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are considered
fully recoverable.
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B HMBHRERNE

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. RBEHTAKEZHEINE
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) WRIE (&)
(b) The expected collection schedule of receivables under service (b) MRBBHFLCELTHETHEKRKE
concession arrangements is as follows: B TE BRI R AT

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT R ARETTT

Within one year —FHUR 57,852 52,928
One to two years —EWF 49,487 47,114
Two to five years MERF 184,725 171,031
Over five years BBAF 3,931,036 4,840,075

4,223,100 5,111,148
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BEREE
Unfulfilled Technical
Goodwill contract know-how
(note b) Development  Operating rights and software
B2 expenditure  concessions AET Licenses BHEHMR Total
(i &b) BEAX KFGER  ANEA R B &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2017 RZE-t£-A-A
Cost A 223,900 3,852 3,722,356 50,538 658,186 48,829 4,707,661
Accumulated amortisation 28 H - - (16,023 (19,541) (9,537) (2,185)  (147,286)
Net book amount BERE 223,900 3,852 3,606,333 30,997 648,649 46,644 4,560,375
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-tE+t-A=1-H

LEE
Opening net book amount BUEAFE 223,900 3,852 3,606,333 30,997 648,649 46,644 4,560,375
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR 213,413 — 2,508,368 - - 49,758 2,771,539
Additions NE — 1,653 1,473,665 — - - 1,475,318
Currency translation differences SRBEER (9,810) = (6,967) - = (41) (16,818)
Amortisation charge (note 8 and a) BERz (NEska) - - (241,652) (16,.261) (11,778) (5870)  (281,561)
Closing net book amount BAEHFE 421,503 5505 7,333,747 14,736 636,871 90,491 8,508,853
At 31 December 2017 R-B-t&+-A=1-A
Cost KA 427,503 5,505 7,697,422 50,538 658,186 98,546 8,937,700
Accumulated amortisation ESiE §i = = (363,675) (35,802) (21,315) (8,055) (428,847)
Net book amount REFE 427,503 5,505 7,333,747 14,736 636,871 90,491 8,508,853
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-\E+-A=Z1-H

LEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 421,503 5505 7,333,747 14,736 636,871 90,491 8,508,853
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENEAF - - 379,912 - - - 379,912
Additions NE - 899 1,528,724 1,763 — 1,800 1,533,186
Curreny translation differences SBREER 9,957 - 21,763 - - 39 31,759
Transfer from development expenditure ~ EEBHERT - (2,552) - - - 2,552 -
Amortisation charge (note8 and a) BERT (HEska) - - (275,116) (2,466) (18,840) (4133)  (300,555)
Closing net book amount HREAFE 437,460 385 8,989,030 14,033 618,031 90,749 10,153,155
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NE+=A=1-AH
Cost KA 437,460 3,852 9,627,821 52,301 658,186 102,937 10,882,557
Accumulated amortisation 2B — — (638,791) (38,268) (40,155) (12,188)  (729,402)
Net book amount RHFE 437,460 3,852 8,989,030 14,033 618,031 90,749 10,153,155
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Amortisation was charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss under the following
caption:

21.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

BVEE(H)
(a) BEEREHEBERPHT

5|15 B kR :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—BLEFE

2018 2017

—E-N\#F T —tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T AR®EF T

Cost of sales $HE KA 294,991 277,512
Administrative expenses TS 5,564 4,049
300,555 281,561

Impairment test for goodwill

The goodwill of the Group as at 31 December 2018 mainly arose
from the acquisition of GNS, Shandong Tengyue, Harbin Yun Shui and
Future International Group Co., Ltd., amounting to RMB194,640,000,
RMB109,521,000 and RMB53,663,000, respectively. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the goodwill was allocated to a cash
generating unit (“CGU"). The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on fair value less costs to disposal. The calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Management determined
the projection period based on their past experience and expectation
for the market development and is consistent with their business plan.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below, respectively.
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(b) AEREERR

AEBEBR-_ZFE—NF+=A
ST HYBEBETZRAKE
GNS * LR BEEZK
REZEEBR A A MES -
2 Bl A A R ¥ 194,640,000 7T
A R #109,521,000 7t &2 A R #
53,663,000 jT ° Btk & Al & i
T OBESIREERGCELEM
(REEEEM]) REEELSE
MR E & EEREAFER
PERABE -SFEAAFTAB
AReREEE  KEEEEH
ERAFHVREE - EHER
AMEEHREENEEAEN
BECRHRERHEETSERENE
B BEFGEENLEETE —% -
HBEAFHENRERE TS 5
FEATRETIEREHHE -
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(b) Impairment test for goodwill (Cont’d)
(i) Key assumptions used for fair value less costs to disposal
calculations of each CGU were in the range as follows:

21.

BVEE(H)
(b) AERMERNH(HF)

(i)

SERSELBURERT
ERHERAH B R EE
BROBENT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t-HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Average annual growth rate of revenue (i) Uz 19 & 1 & (i)

Long-term growth rate (iv) R HI#E K R(v)
Pre-tax discount rate (v) 5 BT 8L 38 & (v)

5%-9% 5%-9%
3% 3%

11%-14% 11%-14%

(i) Sensitivity analysis on key assumptions used in the calculation
of the impairment tests for goodwill arose from the above
subsidiaries have been carried out. If the average annual growth
rate of revenue had been lower than management estimates
by 5% or discount rate had been higher than management
estimates by 5% with other variables held constant, the
recoverable amount of goodwill would still exceed their carrying

value and no impairment will be required.

(i)  Management determined average annual growth rate of
revenue based on past performance and its expectations for
each market development.

(iv)  The long-term growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts
included in each industry report.

(v)  The discount rate used is pre-tax discount rate applied to the

cash flow projections which reflects specific risks relating to
each business.
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(if)

(iii)

AEBEERFAEFALMBER
BAEL 2 HERENHB
BHARANIERRIEL
HREDWN - WA TFIHE
BEERLEERENMGFTE
5%k Bt 3R K b B IR B Y 1
FtH5% @ M HE Al B 8 R
N AR ER R AT IR M £ R
N EBEREE - Bif#
ZARE e

ERABDREBERAR
H TS TR H A
AFHEHRE -

PrAREIE R REITERSE
PETER — 2 -

PRAREIR R B SR B TR
PRIERARBBIRBE IR R - HR
R B TS A R E A



22.

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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INVENTORIES 22. 78

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Raw materials B 47,077 28,064
Finished Goods K o 35,584 8,683
Work in progress EEm 19,428 8,883
102,089 45,630

No provisions for inventories have been made for the year ended 31

December 2018 and 2017.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

BE_Z—\F#rR=-_ZT—tF+=-A
=+ —HLFE UEGREERE -

23. ES R EMEBERRERRA
(e

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H

2018 2017
—E-\E  —T-tf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT R ARETF T

Trade receivables =) G
— Related parties (note 37(g)) - B (MFE 37(9)) 2,575,260 1,984,773
— Local governments - M T I 824,240 659,286
— Third parties -%=F 1,155,422 865,067
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (59,986) (41,7217)
4,494,936 3,467,405

Other receivables E fth fE R IE
— Related parties (note 37(i)) - BB (M9aE 370)) 31,921 31,412
— Third parties - =5 1,259,880 889,206
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (9,106) (7,562)
1,282,695 913,056
Total trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A W RIE 2T 5,777,631 4,380,461
Less: non-current portion of other receivables A E A EGRIE R FERERE (13,771) (30,214)
Current portion of trade and other receivables 2 5 I H 1 & U 7k 1B /) B HA 2B 5,763,860 4,350,247

Prepayments SEANE s

— Related parties (note 37(g)) - B85 (M95E 37(9) 161,135 67,595
— Third parties -F=H 1,477,238 1,756,930
1,638,373 1,824,525
Less: non-current portion of prepayments B TR RIEIERNER (942,875) (1,695,626)
Current portion of prepayments FES RIEBDERER S 695,498 128,899
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. EZREMEBRAREARA

PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) S+ RE (&)

(a) Trade receivables (a) EFEWRE
In general, the Group grants credit periods of 90 to 180 days to AEBE-—HRAAZPLELHOE
its customers. Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables (including 180 RMIEFE - REHEERIREHE
amounts due from related parties of trading in nature) at the ZEHHSENIERIELNE S E
respective balance sheet dates, based on the invoice dates or WRIEEE(RIEEWREH T E 5
contractual terms, is as follows: MEREB)ERSTOT ¢

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2018 2017
—B-N\F —B—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Within one year —F AR 2,813,369 2,451,422
One to two years —ZMFE 1,035,378 803,928
Two to three years WE=F 511,217 101,300
Over three years =FE 194,958 152,476

4,554,922 3,509,126
Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade REEE 5 EWKIER R E &
receivables are as follows: BHMOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® T ARBTTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHBA&ER 41,721 34,430
Impairment provision ERE 23,655 13,217
Reversal due to collection P Y& (3] iy B (2] — (5,926)
Write off bad debts i sHE AR (5.390) =
Closing balance at 31 December Rt+t=-—B=+—HBHERES 59,986 41,721
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 2. EZRHMERRERTE
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) N RIE (E)
(b) Other receivables (b) HttFEW A
Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of other 7 55 (B A 4t JRE KRR TE B R (B B
receivables are as follows: e

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t-HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—B—BWENERR 7,562 6,877

Impairment provision B 1,855 685

Write off bad debts i 85 5 AR (311) —

Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWNEREE 9,106 7,562
() Prepayments () FAMAFIE

The Group’s prepayments are mainly for purchase of goods, land use AEENBNREBEETERBEER

rights, construction works, services and acquisition of equity interests. W LifERAE BEIERHE

i BR 765 &9 T8 < 3R IR DA K B A Uk
B IR SRR -

(d) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the (d) #EsEEYHSSEERRAE
carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The PR EREERENEREE K
Group does not hold any collateral as security. EEW BB EMERYIERE
R o
24. RESTRICTED CASH 24, SRFBVRE
As at 31 December 2018, the restricted cash mainly comprised of guarantee RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8  ZRH
deposits for construction of projects. ReFZERENERERERELENHR
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5. ReRBEEE
As at 31 December
BR+=—B=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARETTT

Cash at bank and in hand BITEREFERS 2,204,352 2,836,457
Short-term bank deposits at call (note a) EEARITIER (Mista) 10,000 60,470
2,214,352 2,896,927
(@) As at 31 December 2018, short-term bank deposit was denominated (@ RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—8"
in RMB, with interest rate of 1.8% per annum and will mature by 18 RHBRTERAARETE  F
March 2019. ME/I18% R _T—NF=

A+ N\BRIZH -

(b)  As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents of the Group are by HR-—z=—NE+-—A=+—8"
denominated in: AEBNRERBESEBYAT
Sl B’ EHE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8H
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARBT T

- RMB - AR# 2,089,479 2,607,303
- THB - T 60,966 35,126
- UsD - &7 49,584 207,020
- IDR - EE 10,094 7,189
— HKD - BT 2,949 40,289
- SGD — FThE T 1,280 —
2,214,352 2,896,927
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. IR

Number of
shares Share
(thousand) capital

RHEE
(FB&) [
RMB’000
AR¥T T

As at 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, RZZE—tF—H—-H"
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —E—+t+F+-_AF=+—8"
—E-N\F-A—-HkK

—2—)\#+=ZA=+—H 1,193,213 1,193,213

194 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R 2 "] Annual Report 2018 F [& i &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

27. OTHER RESERVES 27. Hitbf& &
Capital Statutory Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total
B A % EERE ERFEE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®BTR AR¥TR AR¥TH

Balance at 1 January 2017 R-ZB-tF-A-BHEHR 2,073,201 197,740 (23,636) 2,247,305

Acquisition of additional interests in W BE B B 1 B M BB AN B

subsidiaries (159,237) — — (159,237)
Share of other comprehensive income ARz A A BREFE(L K% E /Y

of investments accounted for using H 4R & W

the equity method — — 3,731 3,731
Currency translation differences EBHhEER — — 148,011 148,011
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) 8 % % ¥ 4 #4 ([ff iFa) — 91,498 = 91,498
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=-B—-tH&+=-A=+—-H

S 1,913,964 289,238 128,106 2,331,308

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-NE—-—A—-HNEE 1,913,964 289,238 128,106 2,331,308

Acquisition of additional interests in s BB B /BB 1 B A BB O 2

subsidiaries (49,637) — — (49,637)
Currency translation differences EmEEE — — (172,741) (172,741)
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) 8 % % ¥ & ([ff 5Fa) = 88,085 = 88,085
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-Z-NE+=A=+-—H

i & 8 1,864,327 377,323 (44,635) 2,197,015
(a) Statutory reserve (a) EZxEfEE
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, except BB BEARAA R RER - B
for sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, all PRC companies NEEBEREIN FAEFELRANH
are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated ARG RE R B g5 R A RIERE
under PRC accounting rules and regulations to the statutory reserve H R B8 5 B 0 10% 8 8 =5
fund, until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their EffEE BEXRRGtE2RHEE
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon ZEHFAMAERTS0%RIE ° & E
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses carried forward ERS RSB E 77
from previous years or to increase capital of the respective companies. RERERTFEAENBRK

HMERARMNER -
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28. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENT 28. KAEAXIHR
The perpetual capital instruments have no maturity, and the payments of KABARTEWEBR  BHIROX
distribution can be deferred at the discretion of the Company. There was NMAIEARRABWE FAELE - HZE =
RMB83,194,000 of profit attributable to the holders of perpetual capital TE-NF+ZA=ZF+—HLEFEKXKA
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB85,444,000). BRAITEHEEABRBERINAARE

83,194,000 (=T —tF : AR
85,444,0007T) ©

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—-HBLHFE

2018 2017
—2-N\fF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Balance at 1 January R—B—BWiEeR 1,200,000 2,000,000
Issues BT — 1,200,000
Redemptions fEmE — (2,000,000)
Profit attributable to holders of perpetual KABARTEFEE AT

capital instruments 83,194 85,444
Distributions to holders of perpetual capital MK ABARTAFEAELEHD IR

instruments (83,194) (85,444)
Balance at 31 December R+=-BA=+—HBN&e 1,200,000 1,200,000
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29. BORROWINGS
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29. &5k

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2018 2017
—®-NE e
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETTT

Non-current E 00

Long-term bank borrowings RERITER 5,560,168 4,463,214

Corporate bonds and other borrowings NEMfES R EAER 5,618,824 4,886,208
11,178,992 9,349,422

Current BN ER

Short-term bank borrowings RRERRITE X 2,567,745 3,197,013

Current portion of long-term bank borrowings — REIRITIE XA ENEAZE D 1,116,109 687,820

Current portion of corporate bonds and other — REfEH K& H M E KA EIHIZE S

borrowings 2,071,680 553,741

5,755,534 4,438,574
16,934,526 13,787,996

(@)  The Group's borrowings carried weighted average interest rates of
4.86% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
4.27%).

(b)  As at 31 December 2018, other borrowings from a related party is
depicted in note 37(h).

HE_Z2—-—/\F+=-A=+—H
WHFE  AEBFHERERNR
5E4.86% (ZF—+F 1427%) °

RZE-NF+-_A=+—H8"
Hib R h s s B RERE
PABTEE37(h) -
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29. BORROWINGS (Cont‘d)

(0 As at 31 December 2018, borrowings of RMB5,232,228,000 were
secured by pledge of the Group’s receivables under service concession

198

f 75 SRR BT o

arrangements, contract assets, land use rights, property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets and the Company’s investments in

subsidiaries with carrying value of RMB5,278,593,000.

As at 31 December 2018, borrowings of RMB22,204,000 and
RMB226,751,000 were guaranteed by a PRC local government and

third parties, respectively.

(d)  As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as

follows:

29. &%
(0

(II'E
R=—Z-N\F+-A=Z+—-8"
SR 1718 X AR #5,232,228,0007T
B M B A R #5,278,593,0007C
B 7N £ B AR 75 R AT AS B R BEFE K
FIE ANEE - THERE -
ME BERSEBEUREREE
RN B A AR E & IREEE o

RZZE-NF+=ZA=+—81"
R 1718 A R 22,204,000 7T JA
M AR #226,751,0007T 2 5 Bl &
FPREEHBERE=ZFER -

RZF—-—NF+-_A=+—8"
AEBEROEEBFRET :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—+tfF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARETT
Within one year —F LR 5,755,534 4,438,574
One to two years —EWF 3,365,440 2,624,031
Two to five years MERF 5,692,614 4,987,444
Over five years iBidhF 2,120,938 1,737,947
16,934,526 13,787,996
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29. BORROWINGS (Cont‘d)

(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. fE K (A&

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and (&) REFR AEBEERBENTF
the contractual repricing dates at the end of each of the year are as RBFRBLEAYEFEEBH
follows: (I N
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—~H
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R AREFT
Within six months NEA AR 3,510,245 3,894,100
Six months to one year NEAAE—F 7,077,520 4,492,157
One to five years —EhHF 5,282,303 3,855,216
Over five years B TE 1,064,458 1,546,523
16,934,526 13,787,996
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings approximate their AEERERNEREHREQNTE
fair value. BE o
The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing f BEZT-NFN_T—-—+F
facilities during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. +=ZA=+—HLFE A~%5H
BT HERREHTBRL -
The Group’s borrowings were denominated in: (99 FEBEERATIEBFE :
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—~H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥BT R ARETT
- RMB - AR¥ 13,644,864 10,978,059
- USD - %5t 3,175,251 2,785,218
— THB - Rtk 92,207 —
- EUR - BT 22,204 24,719
16,934,526 13,787,996
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZ R HAMESFIE
As at 31 December
BR+=-—B=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Trade payables: B S ENIEA -
— Related parties (note 37(g)) - By (fHEE 37(9) 1,542,830 1,192,382
— Third parties -%=F 3,287,340 1,836,469
Notes payables GARES7 44 40,000
Other payables: H A RERFIA ¢
— Related parties (note 37(i)) - B (BFE 3703) 85,651 82,562
— Third parties -%=F 1,109,245 1,056,272
Advances from customers B — 52,531
Staff welfare benefit payable JEH B T&H 55,837 38,562
Other taxes payable HAb RN 194,108 229,915
Less: non-current portion B 0 JERNERER (3,257,835) (1,272,984)
Current portion BERED 5 3,017,220 3,255,709
(@) Trade payables are settled in accordance with agreed terms with (@) EBSEMNFERERBHMEERRY
suppliers. TE R ERREEE -
(b) At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis of the trade by RZZE-—NFRZZ—tF+=
payables based on invoice date is as follows: BA=+—H BSENREER
BEHEMERRSTOT ¢
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARET T
Within one year —F A 3,735,975 1,830,650
One to two years —EWF 487,378 757,182
Two to three years WME=F 363,768 213,277
Over three years =FpE 243,049 227,742

4,830,170 3,028,851
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31. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represented government grants received from governmental
authorities with respect to Group’s constructions of wastewater treatment
facilities, water supply facilities, solid waste treatment plants as well as the
provision of water supply service. The movement of deferred income is as

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

31. IEE W &=

HEFE W S 4 B A SR B R 205 K BR IR AR
e~ fROKER B B 88 BE W) AR TE R OA K B2
 f1 7K AR 75 2 AT A 18 3% DR RO DR T A
By o JEFEWAREZH T

below:
Government
grants
B KT 8 B
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Opening balance at 1 January 2017 R-ZB—tF—B—BNHBD&EH 646,997
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT B8 R ) 10,409
Additions NE 16,829
Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss FFAGDHERR (40,343)
Closing balance at 31 December 2017 R-B—tE+=-A=+—BHEREs 633,892
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R=ZB-—N\F—A—BNHN&ELR 633,892
Additions NE 94,593
Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss FFAGHERRE (36,124)
Closing balance at 31 December 2018 R-B-NF+=-B=+—BHNHRELR 692,361
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32. IBMEEH

() EEFEHEAE

(a) Deferred income tax assets

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T
The balance comprises temporary DERGEYRMEER
differences attributable to:
Government grants DEiSE 1) 142,336 132,242
Tax losses MIEEE 110,929 81,406
Accrued expenses FEEHFX 78,732 71,231
Unrealised profit of intercompany NAEIEIR 5 AR E 5 5 H)
transactions 63,115 31,794
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 &AM EWFIE R E RS
other receivables 26,695 22,509
Staff welfare benefit payable JEfH B T&H 622 638
Total deferred income tax assets RIEFTSHIEERRE 422,429 339,820
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities BREBELEMERAR (108,297) (24,951)
Net deferred income tax assets SFREFSR A E 314,132 314,869
Provision for
impairment of
Unrealised trade
profit of and other  Staff welfare
Movements 28 intercompany  receivables benefit
Government Accrued  transactions EE ) payable
grants  Tax losses expenses  AFAMRE HHUEWFE At Total
HERE i) iR AEREA HERE BIRA @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARET:R
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZB-tE-F-ANEH 139,214 33,156 27,155 14,343 40,786 695 255,349
(Charge)/credit to consolidated RAGBRESR(NR)/FHA
statement of profit or loss (6,972) 24275 21,149 17,451 (18,277) (57) 44,169
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR = 23975 23834 = = = 47,809
Reversal &m — — (7,507) — — = (7,507)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZA=+-H
LE 132,242 81,406 71,231 31,79 22,509 638 339,820
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-E-NE-B-RiEs 132,282 81,406 7,231 31,79 22,509 638 339,820
Creditcharge) to consolidated REFBERTHA/ (1K)
statement of profit or loss 10,094 29,523 7,501 31,321 4,186 (16) 82,609
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=+-A
i 142,336 110,929 18,732 63,115 26,695 622 422,429
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

32. EEEFTEH (&
(b) EEFBHRAR

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—H
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —TE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETF T
The balance comprises temporary DEAEREEMEER
differences attributable to:
Fair value gains ARG (950,555) (868,672)
Service concession receivables RS 45 57 FE W3R8 (202,529) (123,397)
Accelerated tax depreciation IRBIESTE (3,454) (3,668)
Total deferred income tax liabilities RIEFISTH A RAE (1,156,538) (995,737)
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities BEBELEMERARE 108,297 24,951
Net deferred income tax liabilities FIREFTSHAE (1,048,241) (970,786)
Service Accelerated
concession tax
Movements BE Fair value receivables depreciation
gains R4 nzE Total
AFEREZE PE W R HEHE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARTR ARBTR AR¥TR
Opening balance at R=—ZT—tH&—HA—8
1 January 2017 SRECEIFES S (593,085) (61,677) (1,485)  (656,247)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated ~ RA&HIEZRRTEA (1K)
statement of profit or loss 33,682 (61,720) (2,183) (30,221)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B /B 7 ) (309,269) — — (309,269)
Closing balance at R=—T—tHE+=-A=+-—H
31 December 2017 HYHR AR 54 (868,672) (123,397) (3,668) (995,737)
Opening balance at R-—ZB-N\E—H—H
1 January 2018 RECEIE S (868,672)  (123,397) (3,668)  (995,737)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated — WRAFHEZRKRFRFTA ($0k)
statement of profit or loss 26,871 (79,132) 214 (52,047)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g NG (108,754) — — (108,754)
Closing balance at R=—ZE—N\E+=-A=+-—H
31 December 2018 HYER AR A5 B (950,555) (202,529) (3,454) (1,156,538)
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33. PROVISIONS
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33. &1

Maintenance Employee
costs benefit Total
HEBRAE EEREA Mt
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR TR AR TR AR TR
(note a)
(Kt &Fa)
Opening balance at R-ZB—tF—A— BN
1 January 2017 74,962 3,755 78,717
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT /8 A A 171,915 = 171,915
Provision capitalised in intangible REF A ET SR ERIEER
assets 3,150 — 3,150
Amortised to consolidated statement HiEEaERR(ME10)
of profit or loss (note 10) 10,086 — 10,086
Paid during the year FRENHKIE — (381) (381)
Closing balance at R-B—tF+=A=+—HHH
31 December 2017 REERR 260,113 3,374 263,487
Opening balance at R-ZE-NF—B—BWHD&H
1 January 2018 260,113 3,374 263,487
Acquisition of subsidiaries )N 48,751 = 48,751
Provision capitalised in intangible REREER BREERIEAR
assets 27,684 — 27,684
Amortised to consolidated statement — #$HE A fFEZ X (HE10)
of profit or loss (note 10) 9,916 — 9,916
Paid during the year FABEHKIE — (104) (104)
Closing balance at R-ZB-—N\F+ZA=+—HKHH
31 December 2018 HREEeR 346,464 3,270 349,734

(a) Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by the
Group, the Group has the contractual obligations to maintain the
facilities it operates to specified level of serviceability and/or to restore
the plants to a specified conditions before they are handed over
to the Grantors at the end of the service concession period. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the facilities, except
for any upgrade elements, are recognised and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the year.
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34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3. S BEERERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash used in operation (a) REMARE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—2-N\F  —T—+t%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Profit before income tax Fr 45 554 Bl g A1) 644,226 702,244
Adjustments for: BT IEEH A
- Allowance for doubtful debts - REREE 25,510 7,976
— Amortisation of investment properties - REYEEH 913 906
— Amortisation of land use rights - b R 6,920 6,593
— Amortisation of intangible assets - B EESH 300,555 281,561
— Depreciation of property, plant and - M BERREITE
equipment 163,397 153,094
— Share of profit of investments — DARERE A BRH) FEAG R & 5 A
accounted for using the equity method (34,034) (23,082)
— Other gains — net - Bt s F58 (10,541) (57,354)
— Finance costs — net - BERAFEEE 578,512 504,193
— Other income - EAblA = (41,790)
Change in operating assets and liabilities, KEBERAEES) -
net of effects from purchase of OB B 1R AR B RS 2
controlled entity and sale of engineering HE TR E -
division:
— Inventories -FE (53,034) (10,036)
— Contract assets - BHEE (2,205,161) —
— Amounts due from customers for - B IREREFP KA
contract works — 26,524
— Trade and other receivables and - B 5 REAM EBGRIE A K&
receivables under concession RS e
arrangements BRI (3,485,826) (3,114,822)
— Trade and other payables - B 5 REAMERFIE 1,509,744 333,398
— Contract liabilities - BHIBE 61,855 —
— Deferred income — REW R 58,469 (26,350)
Cash used in operations KEFFARS (2,438,495) (1,256,945)
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34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3. EHBEETRERME(EF)
CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
(b) Net borrowings reconciliation (b) ERFEAG

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—B-N% et
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 2,214,352 2,896,927
Borrowings — repayable within one year &3 — —&ELARREN (5,755,534) (4,438,574)
Borrowings — repayable after one year B3R — —F U FEN (11,178,992) (9,349,422)
Net borrowings &5 FRE (14,720,174) (10,891,069)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 2,214,352 2,896,927
Gross borrowings — fixed interest rates e 4sE — EEH =X (11,685,349) (9,919,404)
Gross borrowings — variable interest rates f& 74258 — & B)F|=R (5,249,177) (3,868,592)
Net borrowings BT (14,720,174) (10,891,069)

Liabilities from
financing activities
REMETHNEE

Borrowings Borrowings
Cash -repayable - repayable

and cash within after
equivalents 1 year 1 year Total

RER fER— AR —
REEEY 1FURENS 1FUEER 8%

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR

Net debt as at 1 January 2017 RZ-Z—tH—A—HKFAM 4,129,921 (2,608,925 (5,689,554) (4,168,558)

Cash flows BERE (1,204,249) (718,892)  (4,520,419)  (6,443,560)
Foreign exchange adjustments HNEYT H TR (28,745) 42,788 135,421 149,464
Other non-cash movements HisE S e —  (1,153,545) 725,130 (428,415)
Net debt as at HR-E—+HE+=-B=+—H

31 December 2017 WEEE 2,896,927  (4,438,574)  (9,349,422) (10,891,069)
Cash flows BERE (697,383) 1,174,430  (4,296,610) (3,819,563)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEITE A 14,808 (21,298) (135,023) (141,513)
Other non-cash movements Hi3E & e —  (2,470,092) 2,602,063 131,971
Net debt as R-ZEB-NE+=B=+—H

at 31 December 2018 WEEE 2,214,352  (5,755,534) (11,178,992) (14,720,174)
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35. COMMITMENTS 35. &R
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXRAERE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred as of 31 BE_Z—N\E+_A=+—8
December 2018 is as follows: EAINERMAREENE AR B
T

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2018 2017
—E-NF e
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Property, plant and equipment, Y - BB KEE  FEEEA R
concession projects and construction HERIER
projects 10,073,186 7,501,972
Equity investments EmEE 102,277 447,695
10,175,463 7,949,667
(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee (b) REFEARE — FXK&H
ERAEBEA
The Group has leased various offices and warehouses under non- AEEBRBTABELEHER
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between ZHEZEABRAERRAE -HE
1 and 10 years. HE1Z10F -
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease rental payments REERBE T RIELEHO%
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: EMRREERSFNRBBAT -
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—AH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFT
Within one year —F AR 12,676 10,143
One to five years —EhHF 18,804 12,269
Over five years BRARF 1,253 865

32,733 23,277
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

208

36.

The Group has completed several business combinations during the year

ended 31 December 2018. The acquired businesses have contributed
revenues of RMB56,055,000 and profit for the year of RMB20,496,000
to the Group for the period from acquisition date to 31 December 2018.

Had the business combinations been completed at 1 January 2018, the

consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 would show pro-forma revenue of RMB6,267,958,000 and

profit for the year of RMB497,342,000.

Set out below are the summarised information of the major completed

business combinations during year ended 31 December 2018.

SRt
AEEREBEEZE_ZE—\F+_A=+—
HIEFEERKZEEBEH - 8K
BEHE_T-NF+ZA=+—H
IEHM  BERBEEAEAEBERK
#= A R # 56,055,000 7T & 45 F) A R B
20,496,000 ° fHEHK R =T — /\F —
A—HEZEK  AEEREEZE=ZT—N\
F+ZA=+T—BILFENEHMHESE
15 7R B = W A R %6,267,958,0007T
KA AN R #497,342,0007T ©

TXRIRBE-—E—NE+=A
S+-ALEFERROEBAHNEE
B

Yunnan DSG
Water Environment
International Shandong
Limited Limited
E K EIBR ERBREIRE
BRAE IWRBRA A
(note a) (note b)
(Bt &Fa) (Kt &Zb)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR® TR
Consideration: KB :
— Cash — B 135,000 115,000
— Unpaid consideration — ARE 20,000 20,000
Total Consideration HRRE 155,000 135,000
Fair value of identifiable net assets RN EBREEN
acquired AFE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H th FEURIE 3,714 20,008
Receivables under service concession BRASFFETAC & R HE T HY
arrangements FEWGRIE 292,241 163,659
Intangible assets mAE 206,940 43,358
Other assets Em&E 1,225 8,968
Trade and other payables B 5 R H bR RIE (131,637) (48,943)
Provision B (24,499) (14,428)
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEMEHAR (66,130) (37,622)
Total identifiable net assets AIBRFEERE 281,854 135,000
Non-controlling interests eI R e (126,854) —
155,000 135,000
Goodwill Sk — —
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

(a)

The principal activity of Yunnan Water International Limited (“Water
International”) and its subsidiary is investment in water related
infrastructure assets, including wastewater treatment plants and water
recycling plants in the PRC. On 9 May 2018, the Group acquired 55%
equity interest of Water International from an independent third party.

The principal activity of DSG Environment Shandong Limited (“DSG
Environment”) and its subsidiary is investment in water related
infrastructure assets, including wastewater treatment plants and water
recycling plants in the PRC. On 10 May 2018, the Group acquired
100% equity interest of DSG Environment from an independent third
party.

The principal activity of other acquisitions is investment in water
recycling and electricity generation industry in the PRC, whose fair
value of acquired net assets and goodwill are individually not material
to the Group.

Acquisition-related costs of above business combinations were charged
to the administrative expenses and were not individually material to
the Group.

37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Major shareholders

The following entities are the major shareholders of the Company.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

36. ¥ 56t (#&)

(a)

EXREBERAT([EKEE])
REWMBARMNEZERKARE
RKEEBEERIEEE £
B KEE IR R N B K -
R-ZZE—N\FHAIB ~EE
RBYBE=ZFKRBEKEED
55% A% # °

BEREEIRLRARAA(EE
SREIRDEKENBRARMNE
BEBRFEENKIEHEEERS
MEEE - BIEP A5 KERRK
EBEKBE R=ZZE—NFERHA
+B AEERBIE=FHKE
BERIEREIRMNI00%E -

HbRBRARMNEZEBR/ERE
PENBEKREETE Ak
BREEENRBENAFEYEASL
BimsXt T TERX -

EiETBA BB AR A A S
ROTBMZ NG BN EEET S
ETFEK -

37. T EBEB AR S
@) FERR

NTERBEARANEIERR

Place of
Name incorporation Ownership interests (%)
£ A 7 & i i FrERERZ (%)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Yunnan Province Water EFE KB PRC 30.07 30.07
B
Beijing OriginWater b R E KR PRC 24.02 24.02
H
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. FE@BM AR F (&)
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(Cont’d)
(b) Subsidiaries (b) B2 A
Interests in principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14. FEMBRBINMRE M L4 -
(c) Name and relationship with other major related (c) BB AMEBRERME
parties ZREBA MR
Name Relationship
it RS
YMCI Shareholder of Yunnan Province Water
TEBREE EEAEAKRKBHRER
Haiyun Environmental Joint venture
HERR BEMHE
Caiyun International Investment Limited Fellow subsidiary
("Caiyun Investment”)
FEBEBRREERAA(THERE]D SES NN
YCH State-owned enterprise
TEEREE Bl A b %
(d) Key management personnel compensation d EZEEBAESHM

Key management includes executive directors. The compensation paid
or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

HMREBAEBREHATEE - AR
BETRBHOEAREEINHIXN
BB N T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—s-N% e
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Short-term employee benefits

FEHEAS TR A

16,210 14,019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Cont’d)

(e)

(f)

Transactions with other state-owned enterprises

In accordance with HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, state-owned
enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by
the PRC Government are regarded as related parties of the Group.

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by
state-owned enterprises. During the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, the Group had transactions with state-owned enterprises
including, but not limited to, operating services, construction services
and equipment sales.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business on terms comparable to those with other entities
that are not state-owned. The Group has established its pricing
strategy and approval process for purchase and sales of products
and services. Such pricing strategy approval processes are consistently
applied regardless of the counterparties are state-owned entities or
not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of these
transactions are material significant related party transactions that
require separate disclosure except for the transactions with YCIH.

Significant transactions with related parties

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related entities which are
carried out on terms agreed with the counter parties in the ordinary
course of business:

(e)

()

FEF 7S 3R R BT o

37. T EBB AR S (&)

EEMBEAERETHX

7
RIBBEB ST ERE 2457 [ B 7
WE] APBEBRFERKREEE

B BERENEABRR
RAEBEREET o

AEEEABRALREHNE
EFREPREEB RBEC
E-NEER_ZE-—ttF+-H
=+t—BLEFE AEEEEEF
TEEETHRZEE(ETRR)
BERY  BRRGLRMEHE -

ERSDEAEEN BB XK
BRI EAMIFEE BN

R E L BHIRRET - AKE
EEVEBEERLMRBENHEER
R ERE - BT BRI
EREE/MER - ﬁ‘ﬁ?uﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ
EERRBEEER KEEEERE
HEERNELR ARAESRR
RUERFHIFALETELRE
WEAFZEBIXRS  HEE
AEREEETHR IR o

HEBINITERS

RBEE-ZF-NFR-_F—LF
TZAZ+—-HLFE *5H
HEMERBREFINERER
BREPHENGERFETTATE
ARG

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R AREFT
Sales and purchases of goods and services HERBEEMRRS

— Sales of goods and services to YCIH — HEERKRB TEREREE 800,659 762,529

— Sales of goods and services to other related — $H% & % MR T R
parties 24,326 3,133
— Purchase of construction services from YCIH — {EmEREEEE2ERE 2,374,968 1,410,359
— Purchase of goods from Beijing OriginWater — #1b REKRES S M 20,540 10,813
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/
purchases of goods and services

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting
period in relation to transactions with related parties:

37. T EBB AR S (&)

() AHE BEERRRY

EENHAREANERLS
153

AT ABEEES RS 0EBR
WK KB -

Year ended 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARETTT

Trade receivables for sales of goods and  $HEE R LRBHE FEKKIE

services

- YCIH — EEEKREE 2,552,563 1,961,545

— Other related parties — H{bEgE S 22,697 23,228
2,575,260 1,984,773

The balances of trade receivables from sales of goods and services are
mainly denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and settled in

accordance with agreed terms with related parties.
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/

37. T EBB AR S (&)

() AHE BEERRRY

purchases of goods and services (Cont’d) EENERENNEIES
&R (4&)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —Z—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARETT
Prepayments for purchase of goods and BB SR &R @K 7B
services
- YCIH — ZEEREE 147,126 57,723
— Beijing OriginWater — JEREKIR 14,009 6,872
— YMCI — EEHREE — 3,000
161,135 67,595
As at 31 December
R+t=—HA=+—8H
2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AR T
Trade and other payables for purchase BEEMEREZESH R
of goods and services H b e 5RIE
- YCIH — EEEREE 1,606,493 1,269,228
— Beijing OriginWater — b REKIR 16,337 3,096
— Other related parties — HinEgms — 52
1,622,830 1,272,376
Less: non-current portion of trade and B B S REAM R TR
other payables JEENERER > (1,458,818) (1,219,717)
Current portion of trade and other B 5 K H AL FER FIER
payables BIHEAEE 164,012 52,659

The trade and other payables for purchase of sales of goods and
services are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and are

settled in accordance with agreed terms with related parties.

BEEmARBZES REME
NRBAAREEE - EER -
B MR BB T 4 E B IR
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37. T EBB AR S (&)

(Cont’d)
(h) Borrowings from a related party — Caiyun (h) BEBAFER — EER
Investment =
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARKETT
Opening balance at 1 January R—B—BWEMERR 784,208 208,240
Receipt e 961,871 1,326,536
Repayment (NES = (737,479)
Currency translation differences BEEBmEEE 37,803 (13,089)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BMERER 1,783,882 784,208

The borrowings granted from Caiyun Investment are denominated
in USD, unsecured, and bear interest at 4.34% per annum and
repayable in 2021. As at 31 December 2018, the interest payable of

the borrowings is RMB4,159,000 (2017: RMB1,040,000).

KERERTHOBRAETE
B \BER RESFL34%H
MEFHFE  WER=ZFT=—
FEE-R-_Z—NHF+=A
=+—HB BRZEGHEAA
R #4,159,000c(=Z & — £ F :
AR #1,040,0007T) °

(i) Funds to/from related parties (i) HEBINES

(i) Funds to Beijing OriginWater (i) ABIREKFEHEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AR T T

Beginning of the year F4 24,311 —

Payment (D= 5 24,311

Closing balance at 31 December R+=A=+—BHEREER 24,316 24,311

(ii) Funds to other related parties

(i) #EMEHETEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARETT

Beginning of the year F1 7,101 6,403
Payment (BN 1,204 700
Receipt Wik (700) )
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWEREE 7,605 7,101
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Funds to/from related parties (Cont’d)
The funds grant to related parties are denominated in RMB,

unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

(iii) Funds from related parties

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

37. T EBB AR S (&)

() REBRINES (&)
FEAN T IR A S AA R
BHME AR BRI B RERE

(i) REBBHLTHEZ

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—LtF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBT T

Beginning of the year F4
Receipt &N 1,527 1,754
Repayment B — 73
Closing balance at 31 December R+T=B=+—HWEREER (35) (300)
1,492 1,527

The funds grant from related parties are denominated in RMB,

unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

BB TR ESHUAR
BEtE  EER - EBNER
EREBREE -

Guarantee (G) #R
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—~
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®BT T AR T
Guarantee provided by YMCI in respect EmWILEE
of the perpetual capital instruments of REEKAEEARTA
the Group RERER 1,200,000 1,200,000
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—~
2018 2017
—®-NF  —Tt7F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®BT T AR®T T
Guarantee provided to related parties in &L A RIAIER
respect of the borrowing of the joint A) B 7 R A HE (R
venture 318,880 —

Annual Report 2018 4F E % YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k %18 & M5 B R A & 215



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

216

3. A RRIEBEEEMFEX

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2018 2017
—ZT-N\F T+ F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E I YN 161,438 138,516
Receivables under service concession RIS E R HE T8
arrangements FEUFRIE 64,080 84,021
Investments in subsidiaries INUEPEEPNGIEE O S 7,179,016 6,089,337
Intangible assets mE AR 3,373 3,314
Investments accounted for using the equity DA REABRRIRE
method 609,049 573,698
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H th FEUGRIE 7,063 7,038
Prepayments TERTFRIE 384,359 731,059
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE — 76
Financial asset at fair value through other NAFEFEEEZESHA
comprehensive income Hittira WamnemEE 76 —
Deferred income tax assets RIS HEAE 49,161 64,701
8,457,615 7,691,760
Current assets REBEE
Inventory FE 208 126
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b FEURIE 740,787 295,727
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUH B A RI5RIE 6,534,494 5,072,431
Prepayments TERTFRIE 1,164 5,566
Restricted cash R HIHIR & 87,275 15,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekIReEEY 664,821 957,191
Derivative financial instruments PTETMIA 10,884 —
8,039,633 6,346,041
Total assets HWEE 16,497,248 14,037,801
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to ordinary ARAREBERRREGER
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [N 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves (note a) H b & (M 5a) 2,295,400 2,264,327
Retained earnings (note a) REB &R (M 5Fa) 203,836 162,715
3,692,449 3,620,255
Perpetual capital instruments KAEBEARTA 1,200,000 1,200,000
Total equity RS 4,892,449 4,820,255
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38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 3. AR FAEERBR(E)
As at 31 December
R+=-—HB=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARKETT

LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings & 5,176,970 4,027,743
Trade and other payables B 5 R HE M FERTRIE 625,384 718,192
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFSTHAE = 2,971
5,802,354 4,748,906
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings RN 4,398,908 3,282,179
Trade and other payables B 5 R M E R RIE 1,403,537 1,186,461
5,802,445 4,468,640
Total liabilities wmesE 11,604,799 9,217,546
Total equity and liabilities e ER 16,497,248 14,037,801
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors KATIEEABREARARARESTEeN -
of the Company on 27 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf. E-NhE=ZA-_++tHMEIHERE
BEo
Yu Long Yang Fang
T Bh
Director Director
BF BF
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38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(@) Movement of other reserves and retained earnings

38. A RAAEEREBER(A)
(a) HEftfBERFAERNEEH

Capital  Statutory Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
N R EE REBZA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARMTRT ARBTR AR¥Tx
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-Z—tFE—-B— B 2,195,657 42,924 134,313 2,372,894
Profit for the year F A A = — 173,469 173,469
Transfer to statutory reserve [ eyl — 25,746 (25,746) —
Dividends for the year ended HE-Z—XfF
31 December 2016 TZA=t+—HEERE = = (119,321)  (119,321)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=-Z—+t%fF
TZRA=+—HM&E 2,195,657 68,670 162,715 2,427,042
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-ZB-NF—F— BN 2,195,657 68,670 162,715 2,427,042
Profit for the year F 175 A — — 227,312 227,312
Transfer to statutory reserve R L TERE — 31,073 (31,073) =
Dividends for the year ended HE-_T—+tF
31 December 2017 +T-A=+—BEERE — —  (155,118)  (155,118)
Balance at 31 December R=-B—N\EF
2018 +Z=—BA=+—HMEe 2,195,657 99,743 203,836 2,499,236
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EERAI R ER
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EEREENME
The emoluments of individual director and supervisor of the Company REFBEN /AR QATEAZE
paid/payable by the Group are presented as below: ENEEHNME 2N HT
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2018 (i) BZ=—ZFE—-NF+=
A=1+—HILEFE
Employer's

Allowances ~ contribution
and other  to pension
Name of directors/supervisors E3/EBHE Discretionary  benefits scheme
Fees Salary  bonuses 2ER ERENE Total
g He  MERL  HeER  REAR &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARKT:R

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Yu Long (chief executive officer) FRrE(TRER) (R=2-N\&F

(Appointed on 12 December 2018) T-A+-REZf) 10 1,920 1,070 125 - 3,125
Mr. Yang Fang BREE 100 1,132 310 124 - 1,666
Mr. Dai Richeng (Resigned on HARAE(RZZ-N\F

12 December 2018) +ZA+=HEH) 190 - - - - 190
Non-executive Directors* FoTES
Mr. Yang Tao BELA - - - - - -
Mr. He Yuanping METEE - - - - - -
Mr. Li Bo Fhat - - - - - -
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi Btk s - - - - - -
Supervisors 2=
Ms. Zhang Ling (Appointed on 5 January ~ FHR A L(R-F-NE

2018) —RRAEZE) 36 = = - - 36
Mr. Huang Yi (Appointed on 21 May BRLIE(N-T-NF

2018) AAZ+-REZA) 35 470 243 58 — 806
Mr. Long Limin EFRELA - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Zhen RERE - - - - - -
Mr. Tan Hairui ERNEE 36 - - - - 36
Ms. Tang Shuang BRI 60 M2 58 57 - 387
Ms. Yang Chuanyun (Resigned on 21 May % JIIZ2%+(R-F-\&

2018) RAAZT—HEE) 25 52 - 28 — 105
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIFHTES
Mr. Liao Chuanjiang (Appointed on 13 Jun BT E4A(R-B-NE

2018) ARTZREZA) 108 - - - - 108
Mr. Ma Shihao StRE4 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Hu Song BREE 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Kwok For Chi (Resigned on 13 Jun ~ BHFEE(R=F-N\F

2018) ANATZHEE) 94 — — — — 9%

894 3,786 1,681 392 — 6,753
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EERARERE (F)
(Cont'd)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a) EEREENME (E)
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2017 (i) BE=—ZF—tF+=
A=+—HLFE
Employer's

Allowances ~ contribution
Discretionary ~ and other  to pension
Name of directors/supervisors BZ/EEiS bonuses benefits scheme
Fees Salary 2HR EERAS Total
ik ¢ BERL  EHBR  HEER EH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®T:R

Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Yu Long (chief executive officer) TREE(TREH)(RZZ—+F

(Resigned on 28 August 2017) NAZ+N\BE) 80 2,000 1,130 107 = 3317
Mr. Liu Xujun (Resigned on 28 August ~ BIBEXA(R-F—+ %

2017) NAZT\BEE) 80 902 120 9% — 1,196
Mr. Huang Yunjian EERAE(N-T—+F

(Resigned on 28 August 2017) NEZT/NBEHE) 80 998 20 94 = 1442
Mr. Yang Fang BARE(R-T—t%

(Appointed on 28 August 2017) NAZ+N\BEZf) 160 1,003 140 101 = 1,404
Mr. Dai Richeng HAMEL 430 290 - 107 - 877
Non-executive Directors* FUTES
Mr. Xu Lei (Resigned on 24 February FERE(RZT—tF

2017) ZAZtTRAET) — - - = = =
Mr. Li Bo (Appointed on 28 August 2017) ZR&ZL(R=T—+#F

NAZ+\BEZAE) = = = = = =
Mr. He Yuanping RTEE = = = = = =
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BitHEE = = = = = =
Mr. Jiao Jun (Resigned on 28 August EERE(R-T—LF

2017) NAZTNREBE) = = = = = -
Mr. Yang Tao BREE = = = = = =
Supervisors Bz
Ms. Yang Chuanyun BIELt 294 - - 69 = 363
Ms. Wang Shugin ITHERT(R=Z—+F

(Resigned on 28 August 2017) NEZT/\BEFE) = = = = = =
Ms. Li Bo (Resigned on 28 August 2017)  ZHZt(R-F—+f&

NEZT/N\BEHE) = = = = =
Mr. Tan Hairui FEHAE 36 = = = = 36
Mr. Cao Jinwen EERRE(R-T—tF

(Resigned on 13 August 2017) NRT=RE&R) 2% - - - - 24
Ms. Tang Shuang BRIT 251 - - 2% = 275
Ms. Xu Cuifen BEREZL(RZE—t%

(Appointed on 28 August 2017 and NAZ+N\BEZER

resigned on 15 November 2017) RZE-tF+-A+RRER) = = = = = =
Mr. Long Limin EANRAE(R-T—+F

(Appointed on 28 August 2017) NE=TN\BEZH) = = = = = =
Mr. Zhu Zhen KEEE(RZZ—1F

(Appointed on 28 August 2017) NB=TN\BEZH) = = = = = =
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BY ¥ #{TEE
Mr. Ma Shihao Ef x4 100 _ _ _ _ 100
Mr. Ren Gangfeng (Resigned on 28 ERBEE(R=F—tF

August 2017) NAZT\BEE) 66 - - - = 66
Mr. Hu Song Bisa 100 - - - — 100
Mr. Kwok For Chi BHFRE 179 - - - - 179

1,930 5193 1,660 596 — 9,379
@ There were no fees or other emoluments payable to non-executive & FRNWEEMNFERTES
directors during the year. WS E M -
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:

none).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2017: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2018, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2017: nil).

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as directors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were RMB702,000 (2017: RMB1,325,000).
The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
were RMB4,681,000 (2017: RMB7,356,000).

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

30. EEEAI R ER (F)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EENERRBANRERE
A
BE-F-—\F+-A=+—8
RS 23 £ =N s &30
AR AR S A BRI (— 2
—tF ) -

BREREBREMESE =
TRAENKE
BE-F-—\F+-A=t+—8
LFE  AREYEARRES
RS =5 XA RAE (=2
—LF )

FRANESE EENIE

FEZERBEEERAX &
ANER EERK HAt
XEHNEHR

RZE-—NF+=-A=+—8"
MEANES BINIEFNER
FEEBERAYZANER &

EXREMZRSRH(ZE—+
FoE) -
EFERURERBE_T—N\F

+-A=+—HALEFEELAR
A A EEDEE Sk E WS H
B 4258 A AR #702,000L (=%
—tF : AR¥1,325,0007T) °
ETRHEERBEE=_Z—N\F
+ZA=+—HLEEHEEAR
NEIEBHRHENEMRG D EE
NkEROFWNEBEAEARE
4,681,000c(ZE—tF : AR
#7,356,0007C) °
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Five-year Financial Summary

hFMBHE
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HEEHERRHEMEES KE
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE =
INCOME
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E ZZT—+tF ZFT—RF ZE—HF ZT—WNOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTIT ARETT
Revenue I = 6,255,628 5,142,242 2,865,890 1,558,394 1,100,761
Gross profit E F 1,498,009 1,304,724 879,500 507,622 333,637
Profit before income tax Fir 15 %8 B & 7 644,226 702,244 516,734 382,869 226,157
Profit for the year F 1N 5 A 496,715 544,000 414,266 317,443 187,896
Profit for the year attributable to: AT AT REIERT
Ordinary shareholders of the Company 7K ‘A &) & 48 A% A% 3R 397,753 422,812 388,093 285,853 166,587
Total comprehensive income for the FRGEERREE
year 323,974 695,742 389,746 318,419 187,804
Total comprehensive income AR AT RS
attributable to: W25 4B %8 -
Ordinary shareholders of the Company 7K /Q &) & 48 A% A% 3R 225,012 574,554 363,573 286,829 166,495
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HHEHEEAEBR
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F ZZ—+F ZT—RF ZT—HF ZT—UF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Assets BE
Total non-current assets IERBEELTE 23,363,751 19,092,066 12,972,400 6,677,868 3,525,728
Total current assets MEEEMBE 9,310,095 8,003,983 7,085,974 2,924,423 1,494,211
Total assets BEME 32,673,846 27,096,049 20,058,374 9,602,291 5,019,939
Equity and liabilities EEzkEE
Equity attributable to: AT MR
Ordinary shareholders of the Company 72 &) & 38 I i 5= 4,556,822 4,536,565 4,240,569 4,058,423 2,384,246
Perpetual capital instruments KABEARTA 1,200,000 1,200,000 2,000,000 = =
Non-controlling interests el 1,177,450 949,384 1,005,890 884,189 337,078
Total equity T 858 6,934,272 6,685,949 7,246,459 4,942,612 2,721,324
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 16,527,163 12,490,571 7,111,213 2,469,257 1,080,945
Current liabilities mEAE 9,212,411 7,919,529 5,700,702 2,190,422 1,217,670
Total liabilities BEES 25,739,574 20,410,100 12,811,915 4,659,679 2,298,615
Total equity and liabilities BN RAE 32,673,846 27,096,049 20,058,374 9,602,291 5,019,939
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

In order to enable stakeholders (including shareholders, investors, regulatory
authorities, customers, employees, partners and communities) to understand
the environmental, social and governance policies, measures and performance
of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Group”, “Yunnan Water”

r “We"), the Group has prepared this ESG Report that covers wastewater
treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment of the Group during the period
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”) according
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of

the Listing Rules (the “ESG Guide").

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the ESG risks relating
to the issuer and it has included the ESG matters in the risk management and
internal monitoring system of the Group. Both the management and staff of the
major subsidiaries and functional departments have participated in preparing the
ESG Report, assisting the Group to review its operations and identify relevant ESG
matters as well as evaluating the importance of the above to our businesses and
to each stakeholder.

Zi &Hv \A#E =

IRIE -

2018 F M FE

TREABRARDERAT (M  [5%
] T2 A ISR M) 5 R A

T(BRERREAREE HERE TP
T &FEEH HR)THRASENRE i

GERERZBER  HEHERR  BHARELD
RAM S -+ LMEZRE e RERRS
#55| ([ESGIE 5| ) &L T RESGHR & - MEAR
EE-_Z-NF-A-BE_ZT-NF+=
A=+—R(BEHHE]  [APBRFE]Z
BKEERE - KR EIEEEER -

%.E. BEFERECETAGHERE &
RERHRER  YELESGEEREEEH
Zﬂﬂaﬁ&ﬁﬂ?&?m¢°ﬁxig?
AAIUEREBENEEEREINELAR
RIESGHRE @ MBS B HEEB R RE R
ABESGEE W HEESEEURMOER
UEREFHENEEN
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The table below sets out a summary of the ESG matters of significance to the TR BESGHR & BT & ¥ A8 & B R AN B U E BT

Group during the financial year as set out in the ESG Report: BEAKESGEEZRE :
ESG Guide Abstract ESGIESIRE Significant ESG Matters B KESGEE
A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. R
A1. Emission Al. BEmY) e Exhaust gas, wastewater, o FER - BE/K % [E RE R IE B AR
solid waste treatment and BER

carbon emission

A2. Use of Resources A2. BR1E AR e Energy and water o BEIRKRIKIHAEEBEME
consumption as well as

packaging materials

A3. Environmental and Natural A3.3B3E R KXARER e Environmental impact o IRIFFEETI
Resources management
B. SOCIAL B. &
B1. Employment B1. Bf&E e Employee benefits e EERB
B2. Health and Safety B2. ERELZ e Occupational health and e BEfRFRHELZSE
safety
B3. Development and Training B3. Z & & 57 e Employee development and o B T E KiEi
training
B4. Labour Standards B4. &5 T A Al e Preventing child or forced o [ilEE Tk H4 T
labour
B5. Supply Chain B5. fitfE §% % 12 e Supply chain environmental o HEHIRFERHTEEEER
Management and social responsibility
management
B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmE e Service quality and standards e fR#&H & KIZ%E
B7. Anti-corruption B7. R&ES e Anti-bribery and anti- e REEEERES
corruption
B8. Community Investment B8. it [RIXE e Social welfare o MHEAZE
A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RIE
Since its inception, Yunnan Water has been specializing in the field of ERKIEB R AR — & Z W R H
environmental protection and providing customers with stable, high-quality, RIRRES - BT - B2 R K
customized and integrated solutions and core technology integration services o BEPIREITH RESHNMHEK T
in the areas of water supply, wastewater, ecological environment and solid K AERRIRIER ERE R R R R
waste treatment. The Group actively plays its role as corporate citizen to ZMZOLFEMEKRRE - EEREBE
fulfill its environmental protection responsibility, strives to improve the eco- TPEANRAG  =THRENEE
environmental quality, promotes sustainable development, creates eco- NN ELERETS A iFE %
friendly cities with technologies and funds and forges ahead with a strategic B HMABAREMMES @ fliEBE kTR
positioning as a leading urban environmental protection integrated services i) rjﬁ:t:l .Aﬁflﬁa’]i}ﬁﬁﬁia ZE R
provider in China. BE Sl EMNELE
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The Group believes that it is crucial to comply with applicable environmental
laws, regulations and policies for the long-term development and success of
the Group. Therefore, we continue to keep abreast with the policy guidance
of the industry, analyze the latest applicable environmental protection laws,
regulations, policies as well as the best domestic and foreign practices,
and timely update our policies and procedures in relation to environmental
protection to ensure our environmental management is in line with the

latest standards.

The Group is actively participating in environmental protection. All the
Group's subsidiaries are required to strictly comply with the Group’s internal
management system in relation to environmental protection in order to
meet the relevant legal requirements. The Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations during the
Reporting Period.

The information disclosed in the ESG Report covers 151 water supply,
wastewater and solid waste treatment project of the Group in the PRC
during the Reporting Period (excluding the Group’s newly constructed
projects in 2018 and projects outside the PRC). See sections below for
detailed information on emission and discharge.

A1. Exhaust gas, wastewater, solid waste treatment
and carbon emission

As a pollution control enterprise, the Group is always committed to
complying with relevant environmental systems and rules in every
production process. Besides, it incorporates sustainable development
as the guiding principle in the decision-making process, takes the
environmental impact of projects into consideration and emphasizes
the harmony between mankind and nature instead of just pursuing
economic benefits. The Group possesses industry-leading membrane
technology, enabling it to effectively increase the quality of both the
treated water and supplied water. Meanwhile, the Group actively
develops new technologies in the field of solid waste treatment and
makes comprehensive reuse of wastes regenerated in the process of
solid waste treatment.

EXHAUST GAS AND WASTEWATER
The Group continues to renovate treatment technologies and to

optimize its production management system, aiming to effectively
achieve the annual emission reduction targets for the operation
project, and therefore has received government recognition and
praise.
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For odor generated from wastewater treatment, the Group has
planted greenbelts around the gas sources and collected it for bio-
treatment in order to meet national emission standards. For hazardous
gas generated from solid waste treatment, the Group has introduced
and adopted international advanced technologies and continued
to enhance the fume treatment equipment to ensure that harmful
components contained in the fume have been effectively removed and

meet emission standards.

Wastewater generated from the operation of sewage treatment and
water supply facilities mainly contains small amount of domestic
sewage and equipment flushing water and was discharged after
being processed and meeting the required standards. Wastewater
generated from the operation of solid waste treatment facilities was
recycled or be discharged into the municipal pipe network after being
processed, striving to achieve “Zero Discharge”. After being processed
by the Group’s sewage treatment facilities, the volume of COD and
NHNH3-N discharged by the Group has been reduced by 122,140

tonnes and 13,261 tonnes, respectively.

The table below summarizes the final volume of emission and

wastewater by the Group during the Reporting Period:

HESKEERBEPELENR
RoRMARBRERRELREAE
BESCRESMERREER
ETEYRBESIZETA £ H
EIBERFANEREE - Y
BEREBRTEENEER
8 RPMSIERRERN - T
B EREERBETERN  ®
REBRERERTONEZTKD
REEERH -

EKEEMEKEREEEREE
WEKEZRIEEFRFKME
AR BREPMBRASKE
BREEEEZERN  BME
BEREREELPELENEK
KRABERSKEREREERE -
ERERBECRAXHEATHRE
B BHERITHEHR] - £
S KEERBERER  KRMO
CODKNH3-N#Y #E 78 2 9 7l #ll &
T7122,140W8 }213,261 W ©

RARESE  BHAOER &
KEREREMAMT

Final volume

of emission (ton)

Type of emission Ry ER AR E ()
Particulate matter (PM) FERLYI(PM) 11.00
Sulfur oxide (SOx) Bt 1k ¥(S0x) 29.72
Nitrogen oxide (NOXx) R AL BI(NOx) 104.15
Chemical oxygen demand (COD) {L 2% | £(COoD) 14,789.53
Ammonia nitrogen (NH3-N) 2 A (NH3-N) 930.48
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SOLID WASTE

The Group actively pays attention to solid waste treatment and
continue to develop solid waste technologies to promote the recycling
of resources. In 2018, the volume of hazardous wastes, medical
wastes and domestic wastes treated in the Group’s solid waste
treatment business was 31,078 tonnes, 37,110 tons and 179,097
tonnes.

The Group also generates solid wastes in its daily operation of
business, which are mainly dewatering sludge generated in the
process of our sewage treatment and water supply and slag and
fly ash in the process of the Group’s solid waste treatment. During
the Reporting Period, the total volume of such non-hazardous and
hazardous wastes was 428,803 tonnes.

The Group has comprehensive management system in place for all
kinds of solid wastes generated in the process of its production and
operation, strictly complies with national discharge standards and
adopts effective measures to reduce and properly dispose of solid
wastes.

For solid wastes such as sludge generated in the process of sewage
treatment and water supply, the Group strictly follows relevant
national policies, regulations, industry standards and the requirements
of environmental impact assessment report approval to establish
comprehensive production management system and process control
system in order to manage the measurement, transportation and
disposal of solid wastes to prevent secondary pollution. Besides, the
Group possesses advanced membrane technology in the industry
and has actively carried out research and development in order
to effectively reduce solid wastes generated during the operation
process.

For solid wastes generated in the process of solid waste treatment,
the Group adopts a number of comprehensive treatment measures
including classification or sealed storage to achieve the purpose of
harmless and recycling treatment in strict compliance with national
policies and industry standards, and set warning signs according
to specifications. All disposals of such solid wastes are carried
out in strict compliance with national policies and regulations
and requirements of government-approved environmental impact

assessment report.
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For the daily office operation, the Group puts great efforts to
promote paperless office and use OA system and video meeting
system by connecting OA platform with various departments of the
Company to reduce waste arising from document circulation. The
Group exercises control over the purchase of stationeries such as
paper, implement strict registration system in respect of the collection
of office supplies and encourage employees to print on both sides of
paper to reduce waste of paper. The Group also advocates reuse of
office stationaries including envelopes and file folders etc. Besides, the
Group advocates that disposable tableware should not be used in the
office and that chargeable office equipment should be purchased in
order to reduce usage of disposable batteries.

CARBON EMISSION
Our carbon emission arises mainly from the consumption of electricity.

During the Reporting Period, the electricity-related carbon dioxide
equivalence (CO2e) generated in its business operation amounted
to 160,603 tons with a density of 0.03626 ton of CO2e per sq.m..
The Group’s implemented various energy conservation measures to
minimize carbon emission. Please refer to the section headed “Energy
Consumption” below for details.

Energy and water consumption

As one of leading integrated service providers in the municipal
wastewater treatment and water supply industries in China, the Group
always takes the environmental, social and governmental impact
into consideration in its core operating practices and strictly controls
the resource consumption of each project according to the principle
of economic operation as well as strives to increase the resource
utilization rate, improve the operation skills of staff to maximize the

resource utilization.
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The Group conducts daily monitoring and statistical analysis for each
operating project to have a deep understanding of the consumption
of energy, water resource and raw materials, determine indicators
of the energy consumption, water consumption and raw materials
consumption and supervise and evaluate each project. In addition
to complying with relevant national laws and regulations, the Group
also has a series of internal monitoring, management and assessment
systems in place, sets the control target for total energy consumption
and gives early warning and fine-tuning to production projects of
which the energy consumption increases rapidly to ensure that the
Group can utilize the resource in an effective way while maintaining
high-standard operation. The Group has been striving to achieve
maximum benefit for customers and the environment with the
minimal resource consumption, and to promote clean and sustainable
resources and energies.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION
During the Reporting Period, the energy consumption of the Group

was mainly consumption of indirectly and externally-purchased
electricity amounting to 262,498,083 KWh in total, representing a
density of electricity consumption of 59.26 KWh per sg.m-.

Waste incineration is a way of converting thermal energy to electricity
which realizes “minimization, reclamation and harmlessness” and
avoids a waste of resource. The Group enhances the measures on
stacking fermentation of waste to increase the heat utilization ratio
and also adopts variable frequency regulation for large-power motors
in order to reduce self-consumed electricity and increase the on-grid
energy. Besides, we adopt advanced operating technology during the
incineration process, enhance the thermal insulation effect of the
equipment and recycle thermal energy for secondary use to increase
the re-utilization rate of energy. Meanwhile, metering devices for
electricity, water, heat, etc. are installed at the energy supply accesses
to measure the energy used, so as to control consumption and reduce
costs.

In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process
of wastewater treatment, the Group focuses on technological
transformation for key devices with large energy consumption and
low efficiency, including the lifting pump, air blower and sludge
dewatering system etc. Besides, the Group continuously develops and
promotes new green technologies to reduce energy consumption in
technological link.
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In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process of
water supply, the Group continues to innovate production technology
and improve the production management system to increase water
production rate.

The Group encourages all staff to save electrical energy during the
production process and office work. The Group also arranges cleaners
to conduct inspections during the non-office hours to ensure that the
electric devices such as lighting equipment have been switched-off.
The Group also sets fuel consumption targets for business vehicles
and encourages all staff to use mass transit.

WATER CONSUMPTION
The Group helps people in different regions to resolve water supply

problems and provide healthy and sufficient tap water for people.
During the Reporting Period, the volume of water sold by the Group
amounted to 180,301,984 m? and the volume of wastewater treated
by the Group amounted to 596,838,561 m>.

The Group requires all its operating projects to use reclaimed water
to clean and cool down equipment if permitted and to water
plants in factories and office areas, so as to reduce water resource
consumption during the production process.

To further reduce water consumption, water in all the solid waste
treatment facilities is fully recycled and reclaimed water is also used
as flushing water in some toilets. The Group also invests resources to
carry out activities such as posting water conservation signs to remind
staff to save water.
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Total water consumption KEFRERE 20,563,458 4.64
Total recycled water fBIRAKEBE 6,297,253 1.42
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For our water supply business, the Group draws water from local
sources with proper government approval. Therefore, the Group does
not have any water sourcing issues.

PACKAGING MATERIALS
As a water environmental enterprise, the Group does not use

packaging materials during the daily course of its business operations.
Environment impact management

The construction of environmental protection projects will have
certain impact on the environment and natural resources. The Group
considers such impact as one of the key factors when making
investment decisions. The Group performs evaluation of the above-
mentioned impact according to relevant laws and regulations. The
Group applies “simultaneous design, construction and operation”
acceptance check after the project has been put into operation to
meet the requirements of the relevant and laws, regulations and
policies. Besides, the Group has also developed relevant systems
and procedures to monitor and manage environmental impact of
all projects in order to avoid excessive use and waste of natural
resources.

As treated wastewater is ultimately discharged to the environment,
the Group strictly adheres to the processing requirements to
guarantee the stable quality of treated water and reduce its impact
on the environment.

The Group attaches great importance to the treatment of pollutants
including exhaust gas, liquid waste, odor and equipment noise
generated in the solid waste treatment process, and takes various
control measures for various pollutants to eliminate the environmental
pollution caused by solid wastes and plays a positive role in protecting

water and soil.

In addition to fly ash in the exhaust gas, pollutants also contain
harmful substances including NOX, SO2, HCI,
dioxins. The major harmful substances are organic substances

heavy metals and

including dioxins, which are controlled with the more economical and
effective "3T+E" technology.
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After treatment of liquid waste with the professional wastewater
treatment system set up in the plant, the effluent will be reused or
used for greening and road cleaning.

Odor is used as combustion air or effective measures including
adsorption and filtration with adsorption device using activated carbon
are adopted to ensure air quality.

For thermal pollution during production process, the Group has
adopted advanced thermal insulation material to provide the heat
generation equipment with thermal insulation treatment in order to
ensure that the heat source point reaches the operation standard,;

For the noise pollution during production process, the Group has also
installed blimps for the equipment that produces noises and utilized
green plants to absorb noise according to function division in order to
ensure the noise emission to reach the standard.

B. SOCIAL
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YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E K #1& &

Employee benefits

Yunnan Water is an enterprise with core technology, aspiration and
social responsibility. It attaches importance to team construction and
employee’s virtues and ethics, introduces talents by multiple channels
and cultivates and retains talents by using incentive mechanism.
The Group has comprehensive human resources policies covering
recruitment, remuneration, staff welfare and performance etc.

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws, regulations and rules
on labour protection to guarantee equal employment. The Group
is against any recruitment discrimination concerning age, marital
status, race, social status, religious belief, disability, gender, sexual
orientation or political background etc. The Group guarantees equal
opportunity and fair treatment for all level of staff and job applicants
in recruitment, internal transfer, training, promotion, performance
evaluation and remuneration. Besides, the Group has the same
remuneration and staff welfare structure for both the male and
female staff.
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The Group carries out open recruitment in the market and around the
world following the principles of fairness, equality and competition,
make overall assessment and recruitment on a selective basis. The
Group enters into labour contracts with employees in accordance with
labour laws and regulations to effectively protect rights and interests
of employees.

With respect to remuneration package, based on the assessment on
values of staff’s posts, guided by the Group’s operation strategy and
with reference to the industry and the region’s salary level, the Group
has established a competitive remuneration system. Besides, the Group
strictly complies with relevant national laws and regulations and
continuously improves staff welfare, reviews staff’'s working hours,
pays various statutory social insurances according to the laws and
ensures that employees are entitled to statutory holidays. Moreover,
employees are also entitled to paid annual leaves, marriage leaves and

maternity leaves.

With respect to performance assessment, the Group has established
a target-oriented employee performance appraisal system covering
various aspects, such as the performance, ability and attitude etc. of
the staff. The promotion and salary adjustment of staff is determined
by the assessment results. In order to create a healthy, diversified
and harmonious working environment, all the matters concerning
promotion, salary review and post transfer will be considered in
an objective way according to staff performance and the business
condition of the Group.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to human resources during the Reporting
Period.
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Occupational health and safety

The Group attaches great importance to occupational health and
safety management in the production and operation process. In
accordance with the Safe Production Law, Law on Occupational
Diseases Control, Fire Protection Law, Environmental Protection
Law, Law on the Safety of Special Equipment, Safety Supervision
Regulations on Special Equipment, and Safety Management
Regulations on Hazardous Chemicals of the PRC and other applicable
national regulations, the Group has established a safety management
organization, appointed safety management personnel, and developed
safety, quality, environmental management guidelines and objectives.
In addition, the Group has prepared the safety management systems,
formulated and released the comprehensive plan on emergency rescue
of safety accidents and emergency plans for safety accidents and
established a safe production committee which held meeting regularly
in order to study, deploy and solve existing problems in the process
of safe production management.

The Group has implemented the safe production responsibility at
each level, carried out hazard identification and risk assessment, and
strengthened hazardous operation management during the operating
management process. Safety inspection is conducted regularly to
eliminate hidden dangers at the production site and prevent the
occurrence of accidents. During the project construction process,
the Group is committed to fulfilling its safety responsibility and to
enhancing safety monitoring in order to ensure construction safety

and provide the staff with a safe working environment.

The Group actively carries out safety trainings and education for the
staff, regularly enhance the professional skill and safety awareness of
the staff, and strengthen emergency response capability by carrying
out emergency drills on production accidents. The Group also provides
safety equipment as necessary in accordance with the polices of the
Group and organizes regular physical examinations for the staff in
order to prevent them from occupational harm and occupational
diseases.

The Group has obtained the OHSAS18001 International Management
System Certificate to strengthen the operation and management of
the occupational health and safety management system.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to workplace health and safety during the
Reporting Period.
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Staff development and training

The Group has built a scientific and effective training programme for
the overall development of the staff. The Group prepares training
programs according to job nature and needs and ensures the
implementation of the plans, which bring positive effect to the Group
and assist the staff in their development. The training programs are
consisted of induction training, business training and continuous
education training etc.

INDUCTION TRAINING
To help new staff to get involved as soon as possible, the Group

provides induction training programs for new staff to introduce the
corporate culture and various internal rules and regulations of Yunnan
Water.

BUSINESS TRAINING
The Group's staff receives different types of training according to

their roles and responsibilities. For instance, the operation center
carried out professional trainings on water quality testing and analysis
skills and automatic control system; the financial center conducted
financial business trainings on financial system, system of purchasing
by invitation to bid, financing system, etc.; the human resources
department held professional trainings for segments on business
etiquette, office system application, training system application,

internal control system and corporate strategy development.

CONTINUOUS EDUCATION TRAINING
The Group provides staff with comprehensive training programs

according to the characteristics of different positions in order to help
employees grow rapidly and realize individual value and to contribute

to the growth and development of the Group.

In addition, to further enhance the communication between the
headquarters and the wholly-owned subsidiaries, and strengthen the
executive power of the team, the Group also organized business

training programs during Reporting Period.
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Preventing child or forced labour

The Group carries out recruitment and employment in strict
compliance with the relevant national and local laws and regulations
and rejects the application from any person that does not meet the
requirements of the laws and regulations. Besides, the Group also
conducts background investigations based on the information provided
by the staff and will reject the application from any person who
provides false information.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with labour
laws and regulations in relation to preventing child or forced labour
during the Reporting Period.

Supply chain environmental and social
responsibility management

In accordance with the provisions of the “Bidding and Bidding
Law” and the “Regulations on the Implementation of Bidding and
Bidding”, the Group adopts the principle of fairness, impartiality and
openness to select qualified suppliers in the form of public bidding
on the public resource trading platform where the project is located.
The Group selects qualified suppliers by bid invitation, comparison &
selection or bid negotiation if the tender amount fails to reach the
requirement as stipulated under the Tendering and Bidding Law. The
Group considers the environmental & social performance, qualification
level, goods provided or service quality, service adaptability and
capability as well as quoted price in a comprehensive way when

selecting suppliers.

The Group requires relevant internal departments to conduct
evaluation on all the goods and services suppliers during the year to

retain or disqualify the suppliers.
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Service quality and standards

The Group attaches great importance to the impact of the Group’s
products and services on the user’s safety and health. The Group
have developed strict internal management policies and procedures
according to relevant national policies and standards, aiming to
provide high quality services and keep making progress towards
higher standards.

QUALITY CONTROL
The Group has technologies and industrial experience necessary to

maintain the quality of environmental protection projects at each
stage such as design, investment, construction and operation. For
instance, the Group adopt advanced online monitoring systems to
continuously monitor the quality of the treated wastewater and
supplied water during the operating process of the wastewater
treatment and water supply facilities. Specifically, the monitoring data
of the online monitoring system for wastewater treatment will be
transmitted to the government platform for pollution sources of the
authority in a real-time way for 24-hour monitoring.

Besides, the Group has obtained international management system
certificates such as 1SO9001, 1SO14001 and OHSAS18001,
abides by the above standards during the process of production and

strictly

assembly, and enhances the operation of the systems on quality,
environment, occupational health & safety in order to ensure the

quality of the membrane products manufactured.

The Group carries out major businesses by strictly complying with
following relevant national/industrial standards and the details of the
articles are in below:

With regard to the wastewater treatment business of the Group, the
Group is committed to ensuring that the treated wastewater meets
the requirement of Discharge Standard for Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB 18918-2002) or Environmental
Quality Standard V for Surface Water and that wastewater discharge
outlets are built in strict compliance with the requirements of the
environmental impact assessment report approved by the government
for designated discharge.
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With regard to the water supply business of the Group, the Group
attaches great importance to water quality control from the water
source to users since the quality of the water supplied directly affects
public health. Water supplied by the Group meets a number of
national standards, including but not limited to Hygienic Standard
for Drinking Water (GB 5749-2006), Standard for Quality of Urban
Water Supply (CJ/T 206-2005), Technical Regulations on Operation,
Maintenance and Safety of Urban Water Supply Plant (CJJ 58-2009),
Technical Regulations on Operation, Maintenance and Safety of Urban
Water Supply Pipeline Network (CJJ 207-2013) and Urban Water
Supply Services (GB/T32063-2015) in order to ensure reliable and safe
water supply. The Group has established strict quality management
systems, tests and inspects against various indexes on production and
operation and conducts real-time monitoring on the water quality to
ensure that the water quality meets the relevant standards.

With regard to the solid waste treatment business, the services
provided by the Group are governed by Pollution Control Standard
for Domestic Waste Landfill (GB 16889-2008), Pollution Control
Standard for Municipal Waste Incineration (GB 18485-2014), Technical
Requirements on Medical Waste Incinerator (GB 19218-2003)
and Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Incineration
(GB 18484-2001). The Group has set up internal control systems and
set discharge limits for incineration plants according to strict operation
conditions and technical requirements in order to minimize the impact
of waste incineration to the environment and to the public.

The Group has prepared comprehensive contingency plans and
emergency mechanisms for potential risks and accidents in the
production process and will immediately activate the contingency
plans in case of emergency happens to ensure users’ safety and
health.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to services quality during the Reporting
Period.
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Anti-bribery and anti-corruption

The Group has established a disciplinary commission and a disciplinary
inspection office dedicated for bribery, blackmail and fraud prevention
as well as relevant investigations and handling; The Group has
established a corruption risk prevention and control system, developed
corruption risk prevention and control measures, and implemented
dynamic management of corruption risk prevention and control; We
also established whistle-blowing channels via telephone and e-mail to
report cases relating to the violation of laws and the code of conduct.
The Group also attaches importance to corruption risk education,
organizes corruption risk training, holds special lectures on corruption
prevention and enhances the anti-corruption awareness of the staff.
Both the management and the staff are required to follow the rules
of moral and conducts of the Group and no cases against the anti-

corruption stipulation and code of conducts has so far been identified.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with

relevant laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.
Social welfare

Yunnan Water has a strong sense of social responsibility. As an
active advocator for building a learning-oriented enterprise, the
cooperation between the Group and universities is regarded as a
meaningful public welfare activity for both the community as well
as the Group. The Group makes contributions in implementing the
strategy of developing the country through science and education
and reinvigorating the country through talents development as well
as building a harmonious society while actively establishing and
enhancing the reputation of the Group.

In 2018, the Group and the Faculty of Environmental Science and
Engineering of Kunming University of Science and Technology
continued to promote in-depth cooperation and exchanges in various
aspects, and commenced a strategic cooperation and entered into
the Yunnan Water Scholarship and Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Fund Agreement (the “Agreement”). The total amount of funding
is RMB500,000 per year. Pursuant to the agreement, both parties
will carry out extensive and in-depth cooperation in terms of
scientific research and development, transformation of scientific and
technological achievements and application of practical technologies,
internship programs for undergraduates and postgraduates,
enhancement of scientific research ability of postgraduates, in
order to contribute to more protection and strength to elevate the
development of environmental science and engineering discipline to a

higher level.
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The Group is enthusiastic in charity. In 2018, it donated more than
RMB140,000 of medical expenses to the children of employees
requiring medical attention. For many years, it has been committed to
making donations to schools and proactively participated in poverty
alleviation projects in the province, to offer love and warmth to
poverty-stricken and disaster areas.

The combination of “reverence, thankfulness and confidence” has
always been the cultural concept advocated by the Group since its
inception. The spirit of actively undertaking responsibilities, dedication
and caring heart of staff fully reflects our cohesion. Under the
guidance of this concept, the Group will continue to strive to perform
its social responsibility as well as actively hold and participate in social
charity activities.
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